
10-K 1 d16510 .htm

(Mark One)

WASHINGTON, D.C . 20549

FORM 10-K

For the transition period from

	

to

Commission file number: 1-3368

8
SEP Z ~ Z006

Mi ssolari Public,

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Annual report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004 or

Transition report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Kansas

	

44-0236370
(State ofIncorporation)

	

(IR.S . Employer Identification No.)

602 Joplin Street, Joplin, Missouri

	

64801
(Address ofprincipal executive offices)

	

(zip code)

Registrant's telephone number : (417) 625-5100
Securities, registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Prma.~rEx4i
Case o(s .1a
Date '"

	

Rptr

Name of each exchange on
Title of each class

	

which registered
Common Stock ($1 par value)

	

New York Stock Exchange
Preference Stock Purchase Rights

	

New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act : None

Page 1 of 85

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 126-2 ofthe Act)_
Yes O No C]

The aggregate market value of the registrant's voting common stock held by nonaffiliates of the registrant, based on the
closing price on the New York Stock Exchange on June 30, 2004, was approximately $512,892,358 .

As ofFebruary 28, 2005, 25,740,813 shares of common stock were outstanding.

The following documents have been incorporated by reference into the parts ofthe Form 10-K as indicated:
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain matters discussed in this annual report are "forward-looking statements" intended to qualify for the safe harbor
from liability established by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 . Such statements address or may address
future plans, objectives, expectations and events or conditions concerning various matters such as capital expenditures,
earnings, pension and other costs, competition, litigation, our construction program, our generation plans, our financing
plans, rate and other regulatory matters, liquidity and capital resources and accounting matters . Forward-looking statements
may contain words like "anticipate," "believe," "expect," "project," "objective" or similar expressions to identify them as
forward-looking statements . Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those currently anticipated in
such statements include :

the amount, terms and timing of rate relief we seek and related matters ;
the cost and availability of purchased power and fuel, and the results ofour activities (such as hedging) to reduce the
volatility of such costs ;
electric utility restructuring, including ongoing state and federal activities ;
weather, business and economic conditions and other factors which may impact customer growth ;
operation of our generation facilities ;
legislation ;
regulation, including environmental regulation (such as NOx regulation) ;
competition ;
the impact of deregulation on off-system sales ;
changes in accounting requirements ;
other circumstances affecting anticipated rates, revenues and costs, including pension and post-retirement costs ;
matters such as the effect of changes in credit ratings on the availability and our cost offunds ;
the periodic revision ofour construction and capital expenditure plans and cost estimates ;
the performance and liquidity needs of our non-regulated businesses ;
the success of efforts to invest in and develop new opportunities ; and
costs and effects oflegal and administrative proceedings, settlements, investigations and claims .

All such factors are difficult to predict, contain uncertainties that may materially affect actual results, and may be beyond
our control . New factors emerge from time to time and it is not possible for management to predict all such factors or to
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assess the impact ofeach such factor on us. Any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which such
statement is made, and we do not undertake any obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or
circumstances after the date on which such statement is made .

We caution you that any forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve known and
unknown risk, uncertainties and other factors which may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to differ
materially from the facts, results, performance or achievements we have anticipated in such forward-looking statements .

ITEM 1 .

	

BUSINESS

General

Electric Generating Facilities and Capacity

At December 31, 2004, our generating plants consisted of:

3

PART I

The Empire District Electric Company, a Kansas corporation organized in 1909, is an operating public utility engaged in
the generation, purchase, transmission, distribution and sale ofelectricity in parts of Missouri, Kansas, Oklahoma and
Arkansas . We also provide water service to three towns in Missouri and have investments in some non-regulated businesses .
In 2004, 93 .0% of our gross operating revenues were provided from the sale ofelectricity, 0.4% from the sale of water and
6.6% from our non-regulated businesses .

The territory served by our electric operations embraces an area ofabout 10,000 square miles with a population ofover
450,000 . The service territory is located principally in Southwestern Missouri and also includes smaller areas in Southeastern
Kansas, Northeastern Oklahoma and Northwestern Arkansas . The principal activities ofthese areas include light industry,
agriculture and tourism. Ofour total 2004 retail electric revenues, approximately 88.7% came from Missouri customers,
5.6% from Kansas customers, 3 .2% from Oklahoma customers and 2.5% from Arkansas customers .

We supply electric service at retail to 121 incorporated communities and to various unincorporated areas and at wholesale
to four municipally owned distribution systems . The largest urban area we serve is the city ofJoplin, Missouri, and its
immediate vicinity, with a population of approximately 157,000 . We operate under franchises having original terms of
twenty years or longer in virtually all of the incorporated communities . Approximately 48% of our electric operating
revenues in 2004 were derived from incorporated communities with franchises having at least ten years remaining and
approximately 21% were derived from incorporated communities in which our franchises have remaining terms of ten years
or less . Although our franchises contain no renewal provisions, in recent years we have obtained renewals of all of our
expiring electric franchises prior to the expiration dates .

Our electric operating revenues in 2004 were derived as follows : residential 41%, commercial 31%, industrial 17%,
wholesale on-system 4.5%, wholesale off-system 2% and other 4.5% . Our largest single on-system wholesale customer is the
city of Monett, Missouri, which in 2004 accounted for approximately 3% ofelectric revenues . No single retail customer
accounted for more than 2% of electric revenues in 2004.

Our non-regulated businesses, which we operate through our wholly-owned subsidiary EDE Holdings, Inc ., include
leasing of fiber optics cable and equipment (which we are also using in our own operations), and provision of Internet access,
close-tolerance custom manufacturing and customer information system software services. See Item 2, "Properties - Other"
for further information about our non-regulated businesses .

-Capacity
Plant

	

(megawatts)

	

Primary Fuel

Asbury

	

210 Coal
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*

	

based on summer rating conditions (as described below) .

See Item 2, "Properties- Electric Facilities" for further information about these plants_

4

We, and most other electric utilities with interstate transmission facilities, have placed our facilities under FERC
regulated open access tariffs that provide all wholesale buyers and sellers of electricity the opportunity to
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procure transmission services (at the same rates) that the utilities provide themselves . We are a member of the Southwest
Power Pool (SPP), a regional reliability coordinator of the North American Electric Reliability Council . We have, however,
filed a notice of intent with the SPP for the right to withdraw from the SPP effective October 31, 2005 . See Item 7,
"Management's Discussion and Analysis ofFinancial Condition and Results of Operations -Results of Operations-
Competition."

We currently supplement our on-system generating capacity with purchases of capacity and energy from other utilities in
order to meet the demands ofour customers and the capacity margins applicable to us under current pooling agreements and
National Electric Reliability Council rules . The SPP requires its members to maintain a minimum 12% capacity margin . We
have contracted with Westar Energy for the purchase ofcapacity and energy through May 31, 2010 . We had short-term
contracts for the purchase of firm energy with American Electric Power (AEP) from January 2002 through June 2003 . The
amount of capacity purchased under such contracts supplements our on-system capacity and contributes to meeting our
current expectations of future power needs . To the extent we do not need such capacity to meet our customers' needs, we can
sell it in the wholesale market.

On December 10, 2004, we entered into a 20-year contract with PPM Energy, to purchase the energy generated at the
proposed Elk River Windfarm which will be located in Butler County, Kansas . We anticipate purchasing approximately
550,000 megawatt-hours of energy annually from the project beginning in December 2005 . On January 24, 2005, Flint Hills
Tallgrass Prairie Heritage Foundation, Inc . filed a purported class action complaint in the United States District Court (the
Court) seeking to halt the development or operation of industrial wind turbine electric power generation facilities within the
Flint Hills Tallgrass Prairie Ecosystem . This complaint was dismissed with prejudice by the Court on February 11, 2005 . A
notice ofappeal has been filed See Item 3, "Legal Proceedings" . On February 4, 2005, we filed an application with the
Missouri Public Service Conunission to initiate a process to obtain a certificate ofconvenience and necessity to participate in
a proposed steam electric generating station in Platte County, Missouri (Iatan Unit 2), and in connection therewith, obtain
approval ofan Experimental Regulatory Plan that will provide adequate assurance to potential investors concerning this, or
other baseload generation options . We are considering owning up to 200 MWs of the 800-900 MW Iatan Unit 2, although we
are not committed to own any of the unit at this time and have not received any proposed contractual documents from
KCP&L. Our forecasted customer growth indicates we will be below the SPP's 12% minimum capacity requirement
beginning in 2007. As a result, we have purchased, and will install at our Riverton facility, a Siemens V843A2 combustion
turbine with an expected summer capacity of 155 megawatts to be operational in 2007 .

The following chart sets forth our purchase commitments and our anticipated owned capacity (in megawatts) during the
indicated contract years (which run from June 1 to May 31 of the following year) . The capacity ratings we use for our
generating units are based on summer rating conditions as utilized by SPP guidelines . The 155 megawatts from the new
combustion turbine are included under anticipated owned capacity beginning in 2007 . The purchased power to be received
from the new windfarm and the proposed latan Unit 2 project, however, are not included in this chart . Because the wind
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Riverton 136 Coal
latan (12% ownership) 80 Coal
State Line Combined Cycle (60% ownership) 300 Natural Gas
Empire Energy Center 271 Natural Gas.
State Line Unit No . t 89 Natural Gas
Ozark Beach 16 Hydro

Total 1,102



power is an intermittent, non-firm resource, we do not expect the SPP to allow us to count a substantial amount of the
wind power as capacity . See Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations - Liquidity and Capital Resources ."
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The charges for capacity purchases under the Westar contract referred to above during calendar year 2004 amounted to
approximately $16.2 million . Minimum charges for capacity purchases under the Westat contract total approximately $97.1
million for the period June 1, 2004, through May 31, 2010 .

The maximum hourly demand on our system reached a record high of 1,041 megawatts on August 25, 2003 . Our previous
record peak of 1,001 megawatts was established in August 2001 . The maximum hourly winter demand

5

of 987 megawatts was set on January 23, 2003. Our previous winter peak of 941 megawatts was established on December 19,
2000 . Our 2004 peak was 1,014 megawatts established on August 3, 2004 .

Construction Program

Total gross property additions (including construction work in progress) for the three years ended December 31, 2004,
amounted to $184 .4 million and retirements during the same period amounted to $14.9 million . Please refer to Item 7,
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Liquidity and Capital
Resources" for more information.

Our total capital expenditures, including allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC), but excluding
capitalized software costs and expenditures to retire assets, were $41 .4 million in 2004 and for the next three years are
estimated for planning purposes to be as follows :

Additions to our transmission and distribution systems to meet projected increases in customer demand and construction
expenditures for new generating facilities constitute the majority of the projected capital expenditures for the three-year
period listed above, including approximately $16.9 million in 2005, $13 .5 million in 2006 and $14 .1 million in 2007 for the
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Contract Year
Purchased
Power

Commitment

Anticipated
Owned
Capacity Total

2004 162 1102 1264
2005 162 1102 1264
2006 162 1102 1264
2007 162 1257 1419
2008 162 1257 1419
2009 162 1257 1419

Estimated Capital Expenditures
(amounts in millions)

2005 2006 2007 Total

New generating facilities $21 .7 $30.7 . $29.9 $ 82.3
Additions to existing generating facilities 11 .4 12.3 17.7 41 .4
Transmission facilities 1 .8 6.0 5.4 13.2
Distribution system additions - 26.5 26.9 27.4 80.8
Non-regulated additions 2.7 2.4 2.4 7.5
General and other additions _5.2 7.7 _5.6 18.5

Total $69.3 $86.0 $88.4 $243.7



purchase and installation at our Riverton facility of the planned Siemens V84.3A2 combustion turbine with an expected
capacity of 155 megawatts . Our estimated capital expenditures for 2005 and 2006 have increased over previously estimated
amounts due to the reallocation of $14 million of new generation expenditures that had been anticipated to be spent in 2004
but were not .

Estimated capital expenditures are reviewed and adjusted for, among other things, revised estimates of future capacity
needs, the cost of funds necessary for construction and the availability and cost of alternative power . Actual capital
expenditures may vary significantly from the estimates due to a number of factors including changes in equipment delivery
schedules, changes in customer requirements, construction delays, ability to raise capital, environmental matters, the extent to
which we receive timely and adequate rate increases, the extent of competition from independent power producers and co-
generators, other changes in business conditions and changes in legislation and regulation, including those relating to the
energy industry . See "-Regulation" below and Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations - Results of Operations - Competition."

Fuel

Coal supplied approximately 70.5% of our total fuel requirements in 2004 based on kilowatt-hours generated . The
remainder was supplied by natural gas (28 .7%) with oil and tire-derived fuel (TDF), which is produced from discarded
passenger car tires, providing the remaining 0.8% . We expect that the amount and percentage of electricity generated by
natural gas will decrease in 2006 and in the immediate future thereafter due to the 20-year contract we entered into with PPM
Energy to purchase the energy generated by the Elk River Windfarm . We anticipate purchasing approximately 550,000
megawatt-hours of energy, or 10% of our annual needs, from the project beginning in December 2005 . We anticipate the cost
of this contract to also be offset by purchasing less higher-priced power from other suppliers or by displacing on-system
generation .

Our Asbury Plant is fueled primarily by coal with oil being used as start-up fuel and TDF being used as a supplement
fuel . In 2004, Asbury burned a coal blend consisting of approximately 90.3% Western coal (Powder
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River Basin) and 9.7% blend coal on a tonnage basis . Our average coal inventory target at Asbury is approximately 60 days .
As of December 31, 2004, we bad sufficient coal on hand to supply anticipated requirements at Asbury for 93 days . This
extra inventory was due to coal purchased over and above our contractual obligations in order to take advantage of favorable
market conditions and for test burns conducted during 2004 .

Our Riverton Plant fuel requirements are primarily met by coal with the remainder supplied by natural gas and oil . During
2004 Riverton burned 100% Western coal (Powder River Basin) on Unit No . 8 and a blend consisting ofapproximately 75%
Western coal (Powder River Basin) and 25% blend coal on UnitNo . 7 on a tonnage basis . Our average coal inventory target
at Riverton is approximately 60 days . As ofDecember 31, 2004, we had coal supplies on hand to meet anticipated
requirements at the Riverton Plant for 60 days .

Our long-term contract with Peabody Holding Company, Inc . for low sulfur Western coal (Powder River Basin) for the
Asbury and Riverton Plants expired in December 2004 . We signed a new, three-year contract with Peabody on December 15,
2004 that covers approximately 100% of our anticipated 2005 Western coal requirements, approximately 67% of our
anticipated 2006 Western coal requirements and approximately 33% of our anticipated 2007 Western coal requirements . This
Peabody coal is supplied from the Rochelle/North Antelope mines located in Campbell County, Wyoming, and is shipped to
the Asbury Plant by rail, a distance ofapproximately 800 miles . The coal is delivered under a transportation contract with
Union Pacific Railroad Company and The Kansas City Southern Railway Company which expires at the end of June 2005 . In
2004 we accepted a binding proposal and are in the process of finalizing contractual terms and conditions on a new
transportation contract . We expect that, beginning in July 2005, this coal will be delivered under the new transportation
contract . The delivered price of coal is expected to be higher than the 2004 price during the first and second quarters of2005,
but we expect the delivered price increase to be substantially mitigated beginning in the third quarter of 2005 due to a
combination ofour new coal supply and coal transportation contracts . We are currently leasing one 125-car aluminum unit
train, which delivers Peabody coal to the Asbury Plant . The Peabody coal is transported from Asbury to Riverton via truck .
We have a long-tern contract expiring December 31, 2007 with Phoenix Coal Sales, Inc . for a supply ofblend coal . We
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began receiving coal from Phoenix's Garland mine in June 2004 . Previously, the Riverton Plant blend coal was supplied
under the same contract out ofPhoenix's Bunker Hill mine . The Phoenix coal is transported to Riverton and Asbury via
truck .

Unit No. 1 at the latan Plant is a coal-fired generating unit which is jointly-owned by Kansas City Power & Light
(KCP&L) (70%), Aquila (18%) and us (12%) . KCP&L is the operator of this plant and is responsible for arranging its fuel
supply . KCP&L has secured contracts for low sulfur Western coal in quantities sufficient to meet substantially all of latan's
requirements for 2005, approximately 90% for 2006, approximately 75% for 2007 and approximately 20% for 2008 . The coal
is transported by rail under a contract expiring on December 31, 2010, with the Burlington Northern and Santa Fe Railway
Company .

Our Energy Center and State Line combustion turbine facilities are fueled primarily by natural gas with oil being used as
a backup fuel . In April 2003, two 50 megawatt FTS peaking units were placed into commercial operation at the Energy
Center . During 2004, fuel consumption at the Energy Center was 88.1 % natural gas with the remaining 11.9% being oil
based on kilowatt hours generated. State Line fuel consumption during 2004 was 100% natural gas . Our targeted oil
inventory at the Energy Center facility permits eight days of full load operation on Units No . 1 and 2 . As of December 31,
2004, we have oil inventories sufficient for approximately five and one half days of full load operation for these two units at
the Energy Center and five days of full load operation for State Line Unit No . 1 . The two new peaking units at the Energy
Center are currently designed with a day tank for fuel oil storage, which allows both units to operate at full load for
approximately one day .

We have firm transportation agreements with Southern Star Central Pipeline, Inc . with original expiration dates ofJuly
31, 2016, for the transportation of natural gas to the State Line Power Plant for the jointly-owned Combined Cycle Unit . This
date is adjusted for periods ofcontract suspension by us during outages ofthe SLCC. This transportation agreement can also
supply natural gas to State Line Unit No . 1, the Energy Center or the Riverton Plant, as elected by us on a secondary basis.
Our transportation agreement was originally with Williams Natural Gas Company (Williams). In 2002, we signed a precedent
agreement with Williams (now Southern Star Central), which upon completion of-necessary upgrades to the natural gas
pipeline system in September 2004, will provide additional transportation capability for 20 years . This contract provides firm
transport to the sites listed above that previously were only served on a secondary basis . We expect that these transportation
agreements will serve nearly

7
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all of our natural gas transportation needs over the next several years . Any remaining gas transportation requirements,
although small, will be met by utilizing capacity release on other holder contracts, interruptible transport, or delivered to the
plants by others . The majority of our physical natural gas supply requirements will be met by short-term forward contracts
and spot market purchases . Forward natural gas commodity prices and volumes are hedged several years into the future in
accordance with our Risk Management Policy in an attempt to lessen the volatility in our fuel expense and gain predictability .

The following table sets forth a comparison of the costs, including transportation and other miscellaneous costs, per
million Btu of various types of fuels used in our facilities :

Our weighted cost offuel burned per kilowatt-hour generated was 1 .885 cents in 2004, 1 .686 cents in 2003 and 1.652
cents in 2002 .
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7004 - 2003 2002

Coal -latan $0 .726 $0.750 $0.811
Coal- Asbury 1 .179 1.155 1 .125
Coal - Riverton 1.309 1.307 1 .264
Natural Gas 4.451 3.651 3.280
Oil 6.842 5.575 5.300



Employees

At December 31, 2004, we had 855 full-time employees, including 174 employees ofMid-America Precision Products
(MAPP), of which we own a 50.01% controlling interest . 331 of these employees are members of Local 1474 of The
International Brotherhood ofElectrical Workers (1BEW)_ On April 29, 2003, we and the B3EW entered into a new four-year
labor agreement effective retroactively to November l, 2002 .

8
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ELECTRIC OPERATING STATISTICS(')

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Electric Operating Revenues
(000s):
Residential $ 124,394 $ 125,197 $ 126,088 $ 110,584 $ 108,572
Conunercial 92,407 90,577 91,065 82,237 77,601
Industrial 51,861 50,643 50,155 44,509 42,711
Public authorities 7,441 7,210 7,099 6,311 5,927
Wholesale on-system 13,614 12,440 11,868 12,911 11,738
Miscellaneous 6,168 6,618 6,987 5,583 4,546
Total system 295,885 292,685 293,262 262,135 251,095

Wholesale off-system 7,010 10,849 17,185 3,898 7,842
Less Provision for IEC
Refunds - - 15,875 2,843 -
Total electric operating
revenues(2 ) 302,895 303,534 294,572 263,190 258,937

Electricity generated and
purchased
(000s of kWh):
Steam 2,409,002 2,287,352 2,143,323 1,969,412 2,193,847
Hydro 63,036 58,118 45,430 53,635 51,132
Combustion turbine 1,009,259 816,343 943,924 790,993 455,678
Total generated 3,481,297 3,161,813 3,132,677 2,814,040 2,700,657

Purchased 1,726,994 2,112,879 2,520,421 2,092,955 2,255,076
Total generated and
purchased 5,208,291 5,274,692 5,653,098 4,906,995 4,955,733

Interchange (net) 100 91 (69) (264) 145
Total system input 5,208,391 5,274,783 5,653,029 4,906,731 4,955,878

Maximum hourly system
demand (Kw) 1,014,000 1,041,000 987,000 1,001,000 993,000

Owned capacity (end of
period) (Kw) 1,102,000 1,102,000 1,004,000 1,007,000 878,000

Annual load factor (%) 55.98 54.28 56.88 54.75 55.12
Electric sales (000s of kWh) :
Residential 1,703,858 1,728,315 1,726,449 1,681,085 1,660,928
Commercial 1,417,307 1,386,806 1,378,165 1,375,620 1,333,310
Industrial 1,085,380 1,058,730 1,027,446 1,004,899 1,015,779
Public authorities 106,416 102,338 101,188 100,125 96,403
Wholesale on-system 305,711 308,574 323,103 322,336 309,633
Total system 4,618,672 4,584,763 4,556,352 4,484,065 4,416,053

Wholesale off-system 236,232 324,622 735,154 105,975 161,293



Executive Officers and Other Officers of Empire

(1)

	

See Item 6 - Selected Financial Data for additional financial information regarding Empire .

(2)

	

Before intercompany eliminations .
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The names of our officers, their ages and years ofservice with Empire as of December 31, 2004, positions held and
effective date ofsuch positions are presented below. All of our officers, other than Gregory A . Knapp, Bradley P. Beecher
and Ronald F. Gatz (whose biographical information is set forth below), have been employed by Empire for at least the last
five years .
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Total electric sales 4,854,904 4,909,385 5,291,506 4,590,040 4,577,346

Company use (000s of kWh) 10,087 10,093 9,960 10,134 8,714

KWh Losses (000s of kWh) 343,400 355,305 351,563 306,557 369,818

Total system input 5,208,391 5,274,783 5,653,029 4,906,731 4,955,878

Customers (average number
of monthly
bills rendered) :

Residential 132,172 129,878 127,681 125,996 123,618

Commercial 23,256 23,077 22,858 22,670 22,504

Industrial 357 362 349 337 345

Public authorities 1,766 1,716 1,690 1,645 1,674

Wholesale on-system 4 5 7 7 7

Total system 157,555 155,038 152,585 150,655 148,148
Wholesale off-system 16 17 16 7 6

Total 157,571 155,055 152,601 150,662 148,154

Average annual sales per
residential
customer (kWh) 12,891 13,307 13,522 13,342 13,436

Average annual revenue per
residential customer S 941.15 S 963 .96 S 936.21 $ 869.72 S 878.29

Average residential revenue
per kWh 7.30¢ 7.24¢ 6.92¢ 6.52¢ 6.54¢

Average commercial revenue
per kWh 6.524 6.53¢ 6.21¢ 5.91¢ 5.82¢

Average industrial revenue
per kWh 4.74 4.78¢ 4 .55¢ 4.35¢ 4.204

Name
Age at
12/31/04 Positions with the Company

With the
Company since

Officer
since

William L . Gipson 47 President and Chief Executive Officer (2002), Executive Vice 1981 1997
President and ChiefOperating Officer (2001), Vice President
Commercial Operations (1997)

Bradley P . Beecherltl 39 Vice President- Energy Supply (2001), General Manager- 2001 2001
Energy Supply (2001)

Ronald F. Gatztzl 54 Vice President- Strategic Development (2002), Vice President 2001 2001
-Nonregulated Services (2001), General Manager-
Nomegulated Services (2001)

DavidW. Gibson 58 Vice President- Regulatory and General Services (2002), Vice 1979 1991
President-Regulatory Services (2002), Vice President-
Finance and ChiefFinancial Officer (2001), Director ofFinancial
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Bradley P . Beecher was previously with Empire from 1988 to 1999 and held the positions of Director of Production
Planning and Administration (1993) and Director of Strategic Planning (1995) . During the period from 1999 to 2001,
Mr. Beecher served as the Associate Director of Marketing and Strategic Planning for the Energy Engineering and
Construction Division ofBlack & Veatch .
Ronald F . Gatz was previously with Hook Up, Inc, a contract truck delivery business, from 1999 to 2001 as Chief
Administrative Officer, and with Mercantile Bank in Joplin from 1985 to 1999 where he held the positions ofExecutive
Vice President, Senior Credit Officer, and Chief Financial Officer.
Gregory A. Knapp was previously with Empire from 1978 to 2000 and held the position of Controller and Assistant
Treasurer (1983) . During the period from 2000 to 2002, Mr . Knapp served as Controller for the Missouri Department of
Transportation .

General. As a public utility, we are subject to thejurisdiction of the Missouri Public Service Commission (MPSC), the
State Corporation Commission of the State ofKansas (KCC), the Corporation Commission of Oklahoma (OCC) and the
Arkansas Public Service Commission (APSC) with respect to services and facilities, rates and charges, accounting, valuation
of property, depreciation and various other matters . Each such Commission has jurisdiction over the creation of liens on
property located in its state to secure bonds or other securities . The KCC

also has jurisdiction over the issuance of securities because we are a regulated utility incorporated in Kansas . Our
transmission and sale at wholesale of electric energy in interstate commerce and our facilities are also subject to the
jurisdiction of the FERC, under the Federal Power Act. FERC jurisdiction extends to, among other things, rates and charges
in connection with such transmission and sale ; the sale, lease or other disposition of such facilities and accounting matters .
See discussion in Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations -
Results of Operations - Competition."

During 2004, approximately 91% of our electric operating revenues were received from retail customers . Approximately
88 .7%, 5.6%, 3.2% and 2.5% of such retail revenues were derived from sales in Missouri, Kansas, Oklahoma and Arkansas,
respectively . Sales subject to FERC jurisdiction represented approximately 9% ofour electric operating revenues during
2004 .

Rates . See Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Results
ofOperations - Electric Operating Revenues and Kilowatt-Hour Sales - Rate Matters" for information concerning recent
electric rate proceedings .

Fuel Adjustment Clauses . Typical fuel adjustment clauses permit changes in fuel costs to be passed along to customers
without the need for a rate proceeding. Fuel adjustment clauses are presently applicable to our retail electric sales in
Oklahoma and system wholesale kilowatt-hour sales under FERCjurisdiction . We have implemented an Energy Cost
Recovery Rider in Arkansas that adjusts for changing fuel and purchased power costs on an annual basis . We do not have a
fuel adjustment clause in Kansas or Missouri . Fuel adjustment clauses are not currently statutorily authorized in the state of
Missouri .
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We are subject to various federal, state, and local laws and regulations with respect to air and water quality as well as
other environmental matters . We believe that our operations are in compliance with present laws and regulations .

Air. The 1990 Amendments to the Clean Air Act, referred to as the 1990 Amendments, affect the Asbury, Riverton, State
Line and Iatan Power Plants and Units 3 and 4 (the FT8 peaking units) at the Empire Energy Center. The 1990 Amendments
require affected plants to meet certain emission standards, including maximum emission levels for sulfur dioxide (S02) and
nitrogen oxides (NOx) . When a plant becomes an affected unit for a particular emission, it locks in the then current emission
standards . The Asbury Plant became an affected unit under the 1990 Amendments for S02 on January 1, 1995 and for NOx
as a Group 2 cyclone-fired boiler on January l, 2000- The Iatan Plant became an affected unit for both S02 and NOx on
January 1, 2000 . The Riverton Plant became an affected unit for NOx in November 1996 and for S02 on January I, 2000 .
The State Line Plant became an affected unit for S02 and NOx on January 1, 2000 . Units 3 and 4 at the Empire Energy
Center became affected units for both S02 and NOx in April 2003 .

S02 Emissions . Under the 1990 Amendments, the amount ofS02 an affected unit can emit is regulated . Each existing
affected unit has been awarded a specific number ofemission allowances, each of which allows the holder to emit one ton of
S02. Utilities covered by the 1990 Amendments must have emission allowances equal to the number of tons of S02 emitted
during a given year by each oftheir affected units . Allowances may be traded between plants or utilities or "banked" for
future use . A market for the trading of emission allowances exists on the Chicago Board ofTrade. The Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) withholds annually a percentage of the emission allowances awarded to each affected unit and sells
those emission allowances through a direct auction. We receive compensation from the EPA for the sale of these withheld
allowances .

(n 2004, out Asbury, Riverton and tatan plants burned a blend of tow sulfur Western coal (Powder River Basin) and
higher sulfur local coal or burned 100% low sulfur Western coal . In addition, tire derived fuel (TDF) was used as a
supplemental fuel at the Asbury plant. The Riverton plant can also bum natural gas as its primary fuel . The State Line Plant
and the Energy Center Units 3 and 4 are gas-fired facilities and do not receive S02 allowances . Annual allowance
requirements for the State Line Plant and the Energy Center Units 3 and 4, which are not expected to exceed 20 allowances
per year, will be transferred from our inventoried bank of allowances . Based on current operations, the combined actual S02
allowance need for all affected plant facilities is approximately equal to the

number of allowances awarded to us annually by the EPA. As of December 31, 2004, we have 48,000 banked allowances .

On July 14, 2004, we filed an application with the Missouri Public Service Commission seeking an order authorizing us
to implement a plan for the management, sale, exchange, transfer or other disposition of our S02 emission allowances issued
by the EPA. Subsequently, we, the Missouri Public Service Commission Staff (Staff) and the Office of Public Counsel (OPC)
engaged in discussions to determine an agreeable manner for us to implement an S02 Allowance Management Policy
(SAMP) . As a result of these discussions, the parties entered into a Unanimous Stipulation and Agreement on January 18,
2005, stating that we should be granted authority by the Commssion to manage our S02 allowance inventory in accordance
with the terms in our SAMP document, which would provide us the authority to swap banked allowances for future vintage
allowances and/or monetary value and, in extreme market conditions, provides us with the authority to sell S02 allowances
outright for monetary value . On March 1, 2005, the Missouri Public Service Commission approved the Stipulation and
Agreement to become effective March It, 2005 .

NOx Emissions . The Asbury, latan, State Line, Energy Center and Riverton Plants are each in compliance with the NOx
limits applicable to them under the 1990 Amendments as currently operated .

The Asbury Plant received permission from the Missouri Department ofNatural Resources (MDNR) to bum TDF at a
maximum rate of 2% of total fuel input . During 2004, approximately 9,550 tons of TDF were burned . This is equivalent to
955,000 discarded passenger car tires .

In April 2000 the MDNR promulgated a final rule addressing the ozone moderate non-attainment classification of the St.
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Louis area . The final regulation, known as the Missouri NOx Rule, set a maximum NOx emission rate of 0.25 Ibs/inmBtu
for Eastern Missouri and a maximum NOx emission rate of0.351bs/nunBtu for Western Missouri . The Iatan, Asbury, State
Line and Energy Center facilities are affected by the Western Missouri regulation . In April 2003 the MDNR approved
amendments to the Missouri NOx Rule . Included were amendments to delay the effective date of the rule until May 1, 2004
and to establish a NOx emission limit of 0.68 lbs/mmBm for plants burning tire derived fuel with a minimum annual burn of
100,000 passenger tire equivalents . The Asbury Plant qualified for the 0.68 Ibs/mmBtu emission rate . All of our plants
currently meet the required emission limits and additional NOx controls are not required .

Water. We operate under the Kansas and Missouri Water Pollution Plans that were implemented in response to the
Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972 . The Asbury, latan, Riverton, Energy Center and State Line
facilities are in compliance with applicable regulations and have received discharge permits and subsequent renewals as
required. The Energy Center permit was revised in 2004 . The Riverton Plant is affected by final regulations for Cooling
Water Intake Structures issued under the CWA 316 (b) Phase II. The regulations became final on February 16, 2004 and
require the submission of a Comprehensive Demonstration Study with the permit renewal in 2008 . The costs associated with
compliance with these regulations are not expected to be material .

Other. Under Title V of the 1990 Amendments, we must obtain site operating permits for each of our plants from the
authorities in the state in which the plant is located. These permits, which are valid for five years, regulate the plant site's
total emissions ; including emissions from stacks, individual pieces of equipment, road dust, coal dust and other emissions .
We have been issued permits for Asbury, Iatan, Riverton, State Line and the Energy Center Power Plants . We submitted the
required renewal application for the Asbury Title V permit in 2004 and will operate under the existing permit until the
MDNR issues the renewed permit . A Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) plan is expected to be required by the
renewed permit . We estimate that the capital costs associated with the CAM plan will not exceed $2 million.

In mid-December 2003, the EPA issued proposed regulations with respect to S02, NOx and mercury emissions from
coal-fired power plants in a proposed rulemaking known as the Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) . The final CAIR was issued
by the EPA on March 10, 2005 and will affect 28 states, including Missouri, where our Asbury plant is located, but excluding
Kansas, where our Riverton plant is located . Also in mid-December 2003, the EPA issued proposed regulations for mercury
emissions by power plants under the requirements of the 1990 Amendments . These proposed regulations are currently
expected to be finalized in March 2005 . It is possible that we may need to make some expenditures as early as 2005 in order
to meet a proposed December 15, 2007
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requirement for anticipated mercury reduction requirements under the proposed clean air mercury regulations . The CAIR was
issued, and the clean air mercury regulations are expected to be issued, as a result of delays and setbacks in the legislative
process for the President's Clear Skies Act legislation, which would have imposed different restrictions on S02, NOx and
mercury emissions . The CAIR is not directed to specific generation units, but instead, requires the state of Missouri to
develop a State Implementation Plan (SIP) within the'next 18 months in order to comply with specific NOx and S02 state-
wide annual budgets . Until that plan is finalized, we cannot determine the required emission rate of NOx and S02 for the
Asbury or Iatan plants . Also, the SIP will likely include an allowance trading program for NOx and S02 that could provide
compliance without additional capital expenditures . Until the proposed mercury regulations are finalized and additional
testing for mercury emissions is completed at Iatan, Asbury and Riverton, we cannot determine if additional investments are
required . It is possible that compliance with the proposed mercury regulations will not require additional capital expenditures .
However, we expect that pollution control equipment required at the Iatan plant by 2015 may include a Selective Catalytic
Reduction (SCR) system and a Flue Gas Desulphurization (FGD) system and a Bag House, with out share of the capital cost
estimated at $30 million . We expect that pollution control equipment needed at the Asbury plant by 2015 may include a SCR,
a FGD and a Bag House at an estimated capital cost of $80 million .

Conditions Respecting Financing

Our Indenture ofMortgage and Deed of Trust, dated as of September 1, 1944, as amended and supplemented (the
Mortgage), and our Restated Articles of Incorporation (Restated Articles), specify earnings coverage and other conditions
which must be complied with in connection with the issuance of additional first mortgage bonds or cumulative preferred
stock, or the incurrence of unsecured indebtedness . The Mortgage contains a requirement that for new first mortgage bonds to
be issued, our net earnings (as defined in the Mortgage) for any twelve consecutive months within the 15 months preceding

http ://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/32689/000120677405000338/dl6510 .htm 9/1 0/2006



issuance must be two times the annual interest requirements (as defined in the Mortgage) on all first mortgage bonds then
outstanding and on the prospective issue of new first mortgage bonds . Our earnings for the twelve months ended December
31, 2004, would permit us to issue approximately $172.2 million of new first mortgage bonds based on this test at an
assumed interest rate of 7.0% . In addition to the interest coverage requirement, the Mortgage provides that new bonds must
be issued against, among other things, retired bonds or 60% of net property additions . At December 31, 2004, we had retired
bonds and net property additions which would enable the issuance of at least $401 .0 million principal amount of bonds if the
annual interest requirements are met . As ofDecember 31, 2004, we are in compliance with all restrictive covenants ofthe
Mortgage .

Under our Restated Articles, (a) cumulative preferred stock may be issued only ifour net income available for interest
and dividends (as defined in our Restated Articles) for a specified twelve-month period is at least 1-112 times the sum of the
annual interest requirements on all indebtedness and the annual dividend requirements on all cumulative preferred stock to be
outstanding immediately after the issuance of such additional shares of cumulative preferred stock, and (b) so long as any
preferred stock is outstanding, the amount ofunsecured indebtedness outstanding may not exceed 20% of the sum of the
outstanding secured indebtedness plus our capital and surplus . We have no outstanding preferred stock. Accordingly, the .
restriction in our Restated Articles does not currently restrict the amount of unsecured indebtedness that we may have
outstanding .

Our Website

We maintain a website at www.empiredistrict.com . Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q,
current . reports on Form 8-K and related amendments are available free of charge through our website as soon as reasonably
practicable after such reports are filed with or furnished to the SEC electronically. Our Corporate Governance Guidelines, our
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, our Code ofEthics for the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers, the
charters for our Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee, our
Procedures for Reporting Complaints on Accounting, Internal Accounting Controls and Auditing Matters and our Procedures
for Communicating with Non-Management Directors can also be found on our website . All of these documents are available
in print to any shareholder who requests them. Our website and the information contained in it and connected to it shall not
be deemed incorporated by reference into this Form 10-K .

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Electric Facilities
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At December 31, 2004, we owned generating facilities with an aggregate generating capacity of 1,102 megawatts .

Page 1 4 of 85

Our principal electric baseload generating plant is the Asbury Plant with 210 megawatts of generating capacity . The
plant, located near Asbury, Missouri, is a coal-fired generating station with two steam turbine generating units .

The plant presently accounts for approximately 19% ofour owned generating capacity and in 2004 accounted for
approximately 40% of the energy generated by us . Routine plant maintenance, during which the entire plant is taken out of
service, is scheduled once each year, normally for approximately four weeks in the spring. Every fifth year the maintenance
outage is scheduled to be extended to a total of six weeks to permit inspection ofthe UnitNo. I turbine . The last such outage
took place from September 15, 2001 to December 17, 2001, a total of thirteen weeks . The 2001 five-year major generator
turbine inspection was extended to allow for expanded boiler maintenance and the replacement of the control system . The
next such outage is scheduled for the spring of 2007 . The Unit No . 2 turbine is inspected approximately every 35,000 hours
ofoperations and was also inspected during the 2001 outage . As of December 31, 2004, Unit No . 2 has operated
approximately 2,500 hours since its last turbine inspection . When the Asbury Plant is out of service, we typically experience
increased purchased power and fuel costs associated with replacement energy .

Our generating plant located at Riverton, Kansas, has two steam-electric generating units with an aggregate generating
capacity of 92 megawatts and three gas-fired combustion turbine units with an aggregate generating capacity of44
megawatts . The steam-electric generating units bum coal as a primary fuel and have the capability of burning natural gas .
Unit No. 8 was taken out ofservice from February 14, 2003 to May 14, 2003 for its scheduled five-year maintenance outage
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as well as to make necessary repairs to a high-pressure cylinder. The next five-year scheduled maintenance outage for the
Riverton Plant's other coal-fired unit, Unit No. 7, is scheduled for October 1 through November 13, 2005 . We have
purchased, and currently expect to install at our Riverton plant, a Siemens V84 .3A2 combustion turbine with an expected
capacity of 155 megawatts to be operational in 2007.

We own a 12% undivided interest in the 670 megawatt coal-fired Unit No . 1 at the Iatan Generating Station located 35
miles northwest of Kansas City, Missouri, as well as a 3% interest in the site and a 12% interest in certain common facilities .
We are entitled to 12% of the unit's available capacity and are obligated to pay for that percentage of the operating costs of
the unit . Kansas City Power & Light and Aquila own 70% and 18%, respectively, of the Unit. Kansas City Power & Light
operates the unit for thejoint owners . See Note 10 of"Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements" under Item 8 .

We have four combustion turbine peaking units, including two FT8 peaking units installed in 2003, at the Empire Energy
Center in Jasper County, Missouri, with an aggregate generating capacity of 271 megawatts . These peaking units operate on
natural gas as well as oil . On January 7, 2004, one ofthe original combustion turbine peaking units, Unit No. 2, experienced a
rotating blade failure . Upon dismantling and inspecting the unit, we found damage to rotating and stationary components in
the turbine as well as anomalies in the generator . We incurred $4 .1 million of insurable costs to repair this facility, including
a $ l million insurance deductible we expensed in the first quarter of 2004 related to this damage, and, as of December 31,
2004, had received $1 .2 million in insurance reimbursement and recorded a $1 .9 million receivable for the remaining
insurance claims . We received an additional $0.6 million insurance reimbursement payment in January 2005 and expect to
receive the remaining $1 .3 million from our insurer .

Our State Line Power Plant, which is located west of Joplin, Missouri, presently consists of Unit No . 1, a combustion
turbine unit with generating capacity of 89 megawatts and a Combined Cycle Unit with generating capacity of 500
megawatts of which we are entitled to 60%, or 300 megawatts . The Combined Cycle Unit consists ofthe combination of two
combustion turbines, two beat recovery steam generators, a steam turbine and auxiliary equipment . The Combined Cycle
Unit is jointly owned with Westar Generating Inc ., a subsidiary ofWestar Energy, Inc . which owns the remaining 40% of the
unit . We are the operator of the Combined Cycle Unit. All units at our State Line Power Plant bum natural gas as a primary
fuel with Unit No. 1 having the capability ofburning oil .

Our hydroelectric generating plant, located on the White River at Ozark Beach, Missouri, has a generating capacity of 16
megawatts . We replaced two of the four water wheels at our hydroelectric plant in 2003, finished
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replacing the third wheel in early 2004 and began replacement ofthe fourth and final wheel in the fall of 2004 with
completion in March 2005 . We have a long-term license from FERC to operate this plant which forms Lake Taneycomo in
Southwestern Missouri .

On December 10, 2004, we entered into a 20-year contract with PPM Energy, to purchase the energy generated at the
proposed Elk River Windfamt which will be located in Butler County, Kansas . We anticipate purchasing approximately
550,000 megawatt-hours of energy annually from the project beginning in December 2005 . We will not own any portion of
the windfarm . On January 24, 2005, Flint Hills Tallgrass Prairie Heritage Foundation, Inc . filed a purported class action
complaint in the United States District Court (the Court) seeking to halt the development or operation of industrial wind
turbine electric power generation facilities within the Flint Hills Tallgrass Prairie Ecosystem. This complaint was dismissed
by the Court with prejudice on February 11, 2005 . A notice ofappeal has been filed . See Item 3, "Legal Proceedings" .

At December 31, 2004, our transmission system consisted ofapproximately 22 miles of 345 kV lines, 430 miles of 161
kV lines, 747 miles of 69 kV lines and 81 miles of 34.5 kV lines . Our distribution system consisted of approximately 6,566
miles of line .

Our electric generation stations are located on land owned in fee. We own a 3% undivided interest as tenant in common
with Kansas City Power & Light and Aquila in the land for the latan Generating Station . We own a similar interest in 60% of
the land used for the State Line Combined Cycle Unit . Substantially all ofour electric transmission and distribution facilities
are located either (1) on property leased or owned in fee ; (2) over streets, alleys, highways and other public places, under
franchises or other rights ; or (3) over private property by virtue of easements obtained from the record holders of title .
Substantially all of our property, plant and equipment are subject to the Mortgage .
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We also own and operate water pumping facilities and distribution systems consisting of a total of approximately 84
miles of water mains in three communities in Missouri_

We also have investments in non-regulated businesses which we commenced in 1996 . These businesses are operated
through our wholly-owned subsidiary EDE Holdings, Inc ., which we created in 2001 to hold our non-regulated companies .
As of December 31, 2004, we owned : a 100% interest in Empire District Industries, Inc ., a subsidiary for our fiber optics
business ; a 100% interest in Conversant, Inc ., a software company that markets Customer Watch, an Intemet-based customer
information system software, a 100% interest in Southwest Energy Training that offers technical training to the utility
industry ; a 100% interest in Utility Intelligence, Inc ., a company that distributes automated meter reading equipment, a 100%
interest in Fast Freedom, Inc ., an Internet provider ; and a controlling 50.01% interest in MAPP, a company that specializes in
close-tolerance custom manufacturing for the aerospace, electronics, telecommunications and machinery industries, including
components for specialized batteries for Eagle Picker Technologies . We sold E-Watch, our electronic monitored security
company, to Federal Protection, Inc . of Springfield, Missouri in December 2002 after it did not meet our earnings
expectations . In February 2003, we purchased Joplin.com, a leading Internet service provider in the Joplin, Missouri area :
The purchase was made through our non-regulated subsidiary, Transaeris, and we merged Transaeris and Joplin.com into one
company under the name Fast Freedom, Inc . On January, 31, 2005, we sold our interest in Southwest Energy Training. This
divestiture will not have a material impact on our balance sheets or statements ofincome in future periods .

On December 10, 2004, Empire entered into a contract with PPM Energy to purchase the energy generated at the
proposed Elk River Windfarm which will be located in Butler County, Kansas . The Elk River project has been developed by
Greenlight Energy. On January 24, 2005, Flint Hills Tallgrass Prairie Heritage Foundation, Inc . filed a purported class action
complaint in the United States District Court for the District of Kansas (the Court) styled Flint Hills Tallgrass Prairie
Heritage Foundation, Inc . v. Scottish Power, PLC, et al ., No . 05-1025JTM (D .

Kansas), against, among others, The Empire District Electric Company. Also named as defendants in the action are Scottish
Power, PLC, PacificCorp, PPM Energy, Inc ., Greenlight Energy, Inc . and Elk River Windfarm LLC. The plaintiffs seek
various forms of declaratory and injunctive reliefunder the United States and Kansas Constitutions as well as various
statutory and common law bases . Plaintiffs seek, among other things, to enjoin the defendants from any development or
operation of industrial wind turbine electric power generation facilities within the Flint Hills Tallgrass Prairie Ecosystem and
challenge the tax status of any such facility . Empire believes this case is without merit and will defend it vigorously . The
complaint was dismissed with prejudice by the Court on February 1 L, 2005 . A notice of appeal has been filed .

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERSTO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None .

PART 11

ITEM 5.

	

MARKETFOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange . On March 1, 2005, there were 6,153 record holders and
27,485 individual participants in security position listings . The high and low sale prices for our common stock as reported by
the New York Stock Exchange for composite transactions, and the amount per share ofquarterly dividends declared and paid
on the common stock for each quarter of 2004 and 2003 were as follows :

Price orCommon stock
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Holders of our common stock are entitled to dividends if, as, and when declared by the Board of Directors, out of funds
legally available therefore, subject to the prior rights of holders of any outstanding cumulative preferred stock and preference
stock. Payment ofdividends is determined by our Board of Directors after considering all relevant factors . We pay dividends
out of our retained earnings, which is essentially our accumulated net income less dividend payouts. As of December 31,
2004, our retained earnings balance was $29.1 million after paying out $32.6 million in dividends during 2004 .

The Mortgage and the Restated Articles contain certain dividend restrictions . The most restrictive of these is contained in
the Mortgage, which provides that we may not declare or pay any dividends (other than dividends payable in shares of our
common stock) or make any other distribution on, or purchase (other than with the proceeds of additional common stock
financing) any shares of, our common stock if the cumulative aggregate amount thereof after August 31, 1944 (exclusive of
the first quarterly dividend of $98,000 paid after said date) would exceed the earned surplus (as defined in the Mortgage)
accumulated subsequent to August 31, 1944, or the date of succession in the event that another corporation succeeds to our
rights and liabilities by a merger or consolidation. As of December 31, 2004, our level of retained earnings did not prevent us
from issuing dividends . In addition, under certain circumstances (including defaults thereunder), our Junior Subordinated
Debentures, 8-1/2% Series due 2031, reflected as a note payable to securitization trust on our balance sheet, held by Empire
District Electric Trust I, an unconsolidated securitization trust subsidiary, may also restrict our ability to pay dividends on our
common stock .

During 2004, no purchases ofour common stock were made by or on behalfof us .
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Participants in our Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan may acquire, at a 3% discount, newly issued
common shares with reinvested dividends . Participants may also purchase, at an averaged market price, newly issued
common shares with optional cash payments on a weekly basis, subject to certain restrictions . We also offer participants the
option of safekeeping for their stock certificates .

Our shareholders rights plan provides each of the common stockholders one Preference Stock Purchase Right (Right) for
each share of common stock owned . One Right enables the holder to acquire one one-hundredth ofa share of Series A
Participating Preference Stock (or, under certain circumstances, other securities) at a price of $75 per one-hundredth of a
share, subject to adjustment. The rights (other than those held by an acquiring person or group (Acquiring Person)) will be
exercisable only ifan Acquiring Person acquires 10% or more ofour common stock or ifcertain other events occur . See Note
5 of "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements" under Item 8 for additional information. In addition, we have stock based
compensation programs-which are described in Note 4 of"Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements" under Item 8 .

Our By-laws provide that K.S.A. Sections 17-1286 through 17-1298, the Kansas Control Share Acquisitions Act, will not
apply to control share acquisitions of our capital stock.

See Note 4 of"Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements" under Item 8 for additional information regarding our
common stock .

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
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2004

High Low

2003

High Low

Dividends Paid
Per Share

2004 2003

First Quarter $23 .48 $21.38 $19.71 $17.00 $0.32 $0.32
Second Quarter 22.99 .1948 22.20 17.67 0.32 0.32
Third Quarter 20.87 19.53 22.26 20.80 0.32 0.32
Fourth Quarter 23.00 20.25 22.45 21.00 0.32 0.32
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*

	

2000 through 2003 have been reclassified to present cost of asset removal accruals as a regulatory liability . See Note 1 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 .
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ITEM 7.

	

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The Empire District Electric Company is an operating public utility engaged in the generation, purchase, transmission,
distribution and sale of electricity in parts of Missouri, Kansas, Oklahoma and Arkansas . We also provide water service to .
three towns in Missouri and have investments in some non-regulated businesses including fiber optics, Internet access, close-
tolerance custom manufacturing and customer information system software services through our wholly owned subsidiary,
EDE Holdings, Inc . to 2004, 93 .0% of our gross operating revenues were provided from the sale ofelectricity, 0.4% from the
sale of water and 6.6% from our non-regulated businesses .

The primary drivers of our electric operating revenues in any period are : (1) weather, (2) rates we can charge our
customers, (3) customer growth, (4) the ability (or inability due to the lack of a fuel adjustment provision in Missouri) to
recover increases in fuel costs in rates and (5) general economic conditions. Weather affects the demand for electricity for our
regulated business . Very hot summers and very cold winters increase demand, while mild weather reduces demand .
Residential and commercial sales are impacted more by weather than industrial sales, which are mostly affected by business
needs for electricity and general economic conditions. The utility commissions in the states in which we operate, as well as
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2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Operating revenues $ 325,540 $ 325,505 $ 305,903 $ 265,821 $ 261,691
Operating income $ 51,540 $ 61,435 $ 56,837 $ 43,212 $ 45,862
Total allowance for funds used
during construction $ 220 $ 282 $ 571 $ 3,611 $ 5,775

Net income $ 21,848 $ 29,450 $ 25,524 $ 10,403 $ 23,617
Weighted average number of
common shares outstanding
- basic 25,467,740 22,845,952 21,433,889 17,777,449 17,503,665

Basic and diluted earnings per
share $ 0.86 $ 1 .29 $ 1 .19 $ 0.59 $ 1 .35

Cash dividends per share $ 1 .28 $ 1 .28 $ 1 .28 $ 1.28 $ 1 .28
Common dividends paid as a
percentage of net income 149.3% 99 .0% 109.3% 217.4% 94.9%

Allowance for funds used
during construction as a
percentage of net income 1 .0% 1 .0% 2.2% 34.7% 24.5%

Book value per common share
outstanding at end of year $ 14.76 $ 15 .17 $ 14.59 $ 13.64 $ 13 .62

Capitalization :
Common equity $ 379,180 $ 378,925 $ 329,315 $ 268,308 $ 240,153
Long-term debt $ 399,917 $ 410,393 $ 410,998 $ 358,615 $ 325,644
Ratio ofearnings to fixed
charges 2.12x 2.44x 125x 1 .31x 2.25x

Total assets* $ 1,027,539 $ 1,025,091 $ 991,034 $ 904,087 $ 852,369
Plant in service at original cost $ 1,254,255 $ 1,221,352 $ 1,125,460 $ 1,080,100 $ 928,561
Capital expenditures (inc .
AFUDC) $ 41,892 $ 65,906 $ 76,877 $ 77,316 $ 131,824



the FERC, set the rates at which we can charge our customers . In order to offset expenses, we depend on our ability to
receive adequate and timely rate relief. We continue to assess the need for rate relief in all ofthe jurisdictions we serve and
file for such relief when necessary . Customer growth, which is the growth in the number ofcustomers, contributes to the
demand for electricity . We expect our annual customer growth to be approximately 1 .6% over the next several years . We
define sales growth to be growth in kWh sales excluding the impact of weather . The primary drivers ofsales growth are
customer growth and general economic conditions.

The primary drivers of our electric operating expenses in any period are : (1) fuel and purchased power expense, (2)
maintenance and repairs expense, (3) employee pension and health care costs, (4) taxes and (5) non-cash items such as
depreciation and amortization expense . Fuel and purchased power costs are our largest expense items . Several factors affect
these costs, including fuel and purchased power prices, plant outages and weather, which drives customer demand . In order to
control the price we pay for fuel and purchased power, we have entered into long and short-term agreements to purchase coal
and natural gas for our energy supply and currently engage in hedging . activities in an effort to minimize our risk from
volatile natural gas prices . We enter into contracts with counterparties relating to our future natural gas requirements that lock
in prices (with respect to predetermined percentages of our expected future natural gas needs) in an attempt to lessen the
volatility in our fuel expense and improve predictability . We have purchased, and will install at our Riverton facility, a
Siemens V84.3A2 combustion turbine with a summer rated capacity of 155 megawatts to be operational in 2007 to meet
additional capacity requirements due to anticipated customer growth.

On December 10, 2004, we entered into a 20-year contract with PPM Energy, to purchase the energy generated at the
proposed Elk River Windfarm which will be located in Butler County, Kansas . We expect that the amount and percentage of
electricity we generate by natural gas wit[ decrease in 2006 and in the immediate future thereafter due to this contract. We
anticipate purchasing approximately 550,000 megawatt-hours of energy, or 10% ofour annual needs, from the project
beginning in December 2005 . We anticipate the cost ofthis contract to also be offset by purchasing less higher-priced power
from other suppliers or by displacing on-system generation . We believe this project is a significant step in assuring that our
shareholders and customers benefit from a balanced mix of generation options . With the improvements made in wind
generation technology and the extension of the production tax credits, wind energy provides price stability, is
environmentally friendly and is economical for our customers .

For the twelve months ended December 3 t, 2004, basic and diluted earnings per weighted average share ofcommon
stock were $0.86 as compared to $1.29 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2003 .

The following reconciliation of earnings per share between 2003 and 2004 is a non-GAAP presentation . We believe this
information is useful in understanding the fluctuation in earnings per share between the prior and current year . The
reconciliation presents the after tax impact of significant items and components ofthe statement of operations on a per share
basis before the impact of additional stock issuances which is presented separately . Earnings per share for the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2004 shown in the reconciliation are presented on a GAAP basis and are the same as
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the amounts included in the statements of income . This reconciliation may not be comparable to other companies or more
useful than the GAAP presentation included in the statements of operations .
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Earnings Per Share - 2003 $ 1 .29

Revenues
On-System-Electric $ 0.11
Off-System- Electric (0.12)
Non-Regulated 0.02
Water 0.00

Expenses
Fuel (034)
Purchased power 0.21



Fourth Quarter Results

Revenues for the fourth quarter of 2004 were $74.3 million compared to $73.0 million in the fourth quarter of 2003. The
increase in revenues was primarily driven by customer growth . Earnings for the fourth quarter of2004 were $2.0 million, or
$0.08 per share, compared to fourth quarter 2003 earnings of$4.8 million, or $0.21 per share. While an increase in revenues
for the fourth quarter of 2004 contributed an estimated $0.04 per share in the fourth quarter of 2004 as compared to the fourth
quarter of 2003, due to customer growth, increases in total fuel and purchased power costs reduced earnings per share by an
estimated $0.08 per share . Also negatively impacting earnings were increases in health care expense, depreciation, property
taxes and losses from our non-regulated business units .

RESULTS OFOPERATIONS

The following discussion analyzes significant changes in the results of operations for 2004, compared to 2003, and for
2003, compared to 2002 .

Electric Operating Revenues and Kilowatt-Hour Sales

Electric operating revenues comprised approximately 93% of our total operating revenues during 2004. Of these total
electric operating revenues, approximately 41% were from residential customers, 31% from commercial customers, 17%
from industrial customers, 4.5% from wholesale on-system customers, 2% from wholesale off-system transactions and 4.5%
from miscellaneous sources, primarily transmission services . The breakdown of our customer classes has not significantly
changed from 2003 or 2002 .
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The amounts and percentage changes from the prior periods in kilowatt-hour ("kWh") sales and operating revenues by
major customer class for on-system electric sales were as follows :

OperatingRevenues
(in millions)
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kWhSales
(in millions)

2004 2003 IChange' 2003 2002 % Change'

Residential 1,703 .9 1,728.3 (1 .4)°10 1,728.3 1,726.5 0.1%
Commercial 1,417 .3 1,386.8 2.2 1,386.8 1,378.2 0.6
Industrial 1,085 .4 1,058.7 2.5 1,058.7 1,027.4 3.0
Wholesale On-System 305 .7 308.6 (0.9) 308.6 323.1 (4.5)
Other*** 108.0 103.9 4.2 103 .9 102.8 1 .1
Total On-System 4,6203 4,586.3 0 .7 4,5863 4,558.0 0.6

Regulated - other (excluding employee health care expense) (0.06)
Regulated- other (employee health care expense only) (0.03),
Non - Regulated expenses (0.05)
Maintenance and repairs (0.02)
Depreciation and amortization (0.06)
Other taxes (0.05)
Interest charges 0.06
Other income and deductions 0.00
Dilutive effect of additional shares 0.10
Earnings Per Share-2004 $0.86



On-System Electric Transactions
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*

	

Percentage changes are based on actual kWhs and revenues and may not agree to the rounded amounts shown in this
table .

**

	

Revenues exclude amounts collected under the Interim Energy Charge during 2002 and refunded to customers during
the first quarter of 2003 . See discussion below.

*** Other kWh sales and Other Operating Revenues include street lighting, other public authorities and interdepartmental
usage .

KWh sales for our on-system customers increased slightly during 2004 primarily due to continued sales growth .
Revenues for our on-system customers increased approximately $3 .7 million, with an estimated $1 .8 million of this increase
attributed to the Oklahoma and FERC rate increases discussed below . Continued sales growth contributed an estimated $8.5
million to revenues during 2004, offset by an estimated $6.4 million negative effect from weather . Our customer growth was
1 .7% in 2004 and 1 .6% in both 2003 and 2002 . We expect our annual customer growth to be approximately 1 .6% over the
next several years .

Residential kWh sales and revenues, which are more weather sensitive than the other sales classes, decreased in 2004 due
primarily to milder temperatures, which had a negative effect on sales, during the first, third and fourth quarters of2004 as
compared to the same periods in 2003 . Commercial sales and revenues and industrial sales and revenues, which are not
particularly weather sensitive, increased during 2004 primarily due to the continued sales growth discussed above . Industrial
sales also benefited from the addition of two new oil pipeline pumping stations on our system that became fully operational
in June 2003 . In addition, industrial revenues, as well as residential and commercial revenues, were favorably impacted by
the August 2003 Oklahoma rate increase .

On-system wholesale kWh sales decreased slightly while revenues associated with these FERC-regulated sales increased
as a result of the FERC rate increase that became effective May 1, 2003 and as a result of the fuel adjustment clause
applicable to such sales . This clause permits the distribution to customers of changes in fuel and purchased power costs . The
decrease in kWh sales was mainly due to the change in customer status in June 2003 of an on-system wholesale
customerlaggregator, comprising three of our on-system wholesale accounts, which elected to go off-system and purchase
power from us at market-based rates . Revenues received from these accounts,

which comprised 5-6% of our on-system wholesale sales and revenues, but less than one-halfpercent of our total on-system
sales and revenues in 2002, are now included in our off-system revenues .

KWh sales for our on-system customers increased slightly during 2003 as compared to 2002, primarily due to continued
sales growth. Colder temperatures during the first quarter of 2003 as compared to milder temperatures during the same period
in 2002 had a positive effect on sales with a new all-time winter peak of 987 megawatts being established on January 23,
2003, replacing the previous winter peak of 941 megawatts established in December 2000 . However, the increase in first
quarter sales was offset by unfavorable weather in the second, third and fourth quarters of 2003 notwithstanding setting a new
summer peak demand of 1,041 megawatts on August 25, 2003 . Despite only a slight increase in kWh sales, revenues from
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2004 2003 % Change 2003 2002" % Change

Residential $124.4 $125 .2 (0.6)% $125.2 $119.5 4.7%
Commercial 92.4 90.6 2.0 90.6 85.5 5.9
Industrial 51 .9 50.6 2.4 50.6 46.8 8.3
Wholesale On-System 13.6 12 .4 9.4 12.4 11 .9 4.8
Other*** _7.5 _7.3 3.2 _7.3 6.8 7.3
Total On-System $289.8 $286 .1 l .3 $286.1 $270.5 5 .8



our on-system customers increased approximately $15.6 million, with an estimated $13 million of this increase attributed
to the Missouri, Oklahoma and FERC rate increases discussed below with the remainder attributed to continued sales growth.
This continued sales growth contributed an estimated $7 million to revenues during 2003 offset by an estimated $5 million
negative effect from weather.

Notwithstanding the new summer peak demand, the slight increases in residential and commercial kWh sales in 2003
were due primarily to the continued sales growth discussed above . Industrial sales and revenues, which are not particularly
weather sensitive, increased during 2003 mainly due to increased sales resulting from the addition of the two new oil pipeline
pumping stations on our system in June 2003 . Also contributing to the increase were increased sales during the first quarter
of2003 because of better economic conditions as compared to the first quarter of 2002 when our service territory
experienced a general slowdown in economic activity . In addition, industrial revenues, as well as residential and commercial
revenues, were favorably impacted by the December 2002 Missouri rate increase and, to a lesser extent, the August 2003
Oklahoma rate increase .

On-system wholesale kWh sales decreased due mainly to the change in customer status in June 2003 of the on-system
wholesale customer/aggregator which elected to go off-system and purchase power from us at market-based rates . Overall
revenues associated with these FERC-regulated sales increased as a result of the FERC rate increase that became effective
May 1, 2003 and as a result of the fuel adjustment clause applicable to such sales.

Rate Matters
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The following table sets forth information regarding electric and water rate increases granted during the four year period
ended December 31, 2004 affecting the revenue comparisons discussed above :

The 2001 Missouri order approved an annual Interim Energy Charge, or IEC, ofapproximately $19.6 million effective
October 1, 2001 and expiring two years later which was collected subject to refund (with interest) . The 2002 Missouri
electric order called for us to refund all funds collected under the IEC, with interest, by March 15, 2003 . The refunds were
made in the first quarter of 2003 and did not have a material impact on our earnings in any ofthe years from 2001 through
2003 .

On March 4, 2003, we filed a request with the Oklahoma Corporation Commission for an annual increase in base rates for
our Oklahoma electric customers in the amount of$954,540, or 12.97%. On August t, 2003 a Unanimous Stipulation and
Agreement was approved by the Oklahoma Corporation Commission providing an annual increase in rates for our Oklahoma
customers of approximately $766,500, or 10.99%, effective for bills rendered on or after August 1, 2003 . This reflects a rate
of return on equity (ROE) of 11 .27%.
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On March 17, 2003, we filed a request with the FERC for an annual increase in base rates for our on-system wholesale
electric customers in the amount of$1,672,000, or 14.0°10 . This increase was approved by the FERC on April 25, 2003 with
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Jurisdiction
Date

Requested

Annual
Increase
Granted

Percent
Increase
Granted

Date
Effective

Missouri- Electric November 3, 2000 $17,100,000 8.40% October 2, 2001
Missouri- Electric March 8, 2002 11,000,000 4 .97% December l, 2002
Missouri - Electric April 30, 2004 25,705,500 9 .96% March 27, 2005
Missouri- Water May 15, 2002 358,000 33 .70% December 23, 2002

Kansas-Electric December 28, 2001 2,539,000 17 .87% July l, 2002

FERC-Electric March 17, 2003 1,672,000 14 .00% May 1, 2003

Oklahoma-Electric March 4, 2003 766,500 10.99% August 1, 2003



the new rates becoming effective May 1, 2003 .
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On April 30, 2004, we filed a request with the Missouri Public Service Commission (MPSC) for an annual increase in
base rates for our Missouri electric customers in the amount of$38,282,294, or 14.82% . As part ofthe filing, we asked the
Commission to consider, in addition to a traditional ratemaking approach, two options that would allow us to recover our
actual fuel and purchased power expenses : an IEC, subject to refund, similar to the one approved in our 2001 case, or a fuel
adjustment clause, that would reflect actual fuel prices . We subsequently abandoned our request for a fuel adjustment clause
due to Missouri statutes not providing for such clauses but retained our request for the IEC, subject to refund . We also asked
for a ROE of 11 .65% and an annual increase in Missouri depreciation expense of approximately $10 million .

On May 20, 2004, we filed a request with the MPSC to implement the proposed IEC no later than June 15, 2004 .
However, the MPSC denied this request on August 1.2, 2004. On September 20, 2004, the Staff of the MPSC filed direct
testimony in response to our initial April 2004 filing recommending an IEC be adopted for a period of 24 months, due to the
extreme volatility currently exhibited by natural gas prices . We completed two weeks ofevidentiary hearings during
December 2004 . Items that were covered during the hearings were : ROE, depreciation, base fuel and purchased power costs
and the term and amount of an IEC . On February 22, 2005, we, the Office of Public Counsel (OPC) and two intervenors filed
a Nonunanimous Stipulation and Agreement Regarding Fuel and Purchased Power Expense establishing a three-year
refundable IEC which became unanimous by operation ofCommission rule on March 1, 2005.

Prior to the hearings, we were able to settle several miscellaneous issues with other parties to the case . On December 22,
2004, we, the MPSC Staff, the OPC and two intervenors filed a unanimous Stipulation and Agreement as to Certain Issues
with the MPSC settling several of these issues . One of the issues we were able to agree on was a change in the recognition of
pension costs . See Item 8 - "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data - Note 1 - Pensions" and "Note 8 -
Retirement Benefits - Pensions ."

The MPSC issued a final order on March 10, 2005 approving an annual increase in base rates ofapproximately $25.7
million, or 9.96%, effective March 27, 2005 . The order granted us a return on equity of 11%, an increase in depreciation rates
and an increase in base rates for fuel and purchased power at $24.68/MWH. In addition, the order approved an annual Interim
Energy Charge (IEC) of approximately $8 .2 million effective March 27, 2005 and expiring three years later. Tire IEC is
$0.0021 per kilowatt hour of customer usage. The recent extraordinarily high natural gas prices and extreme volatility of
natural gas led the MPSC to allow forecasted fuel costs to be used rather than the traditional historical costs in determining
the fuel portion ofthe rate increase . At the end of two years, the excess money collected from customers, if any, above $10
million of the greater ofthe actual and prudently incurred costs or the base cost offuel and purchased power set in rates, will
be refunded to the customers with interest equal to the current prime rate at that time . At the end of the three year term of the
IEC all excess money collected from customers, if any, of the greater ofthe actual and prudently incurred costs or the base
cost offuel and purchased power set in rates, will be refunded to the customers with interest equal to the current prime rate at
that time .

On July 14, 2004, we filed a request with the Arkansas Public Service Commission for an annual increase in base rates
for our Arkansas electric customers in the amount of $1,428,225, or 22.1% . Any new rates approved as a result of this request
are not expected to be effective until the second quarter of2005 .

On March 2, 2005, we notified the Kansas Corporation Commission of our intent to file an application requesting a
change in base rates for our Kansas electric customers . We plan to file this application in the second quarter of 2005.

We will continue to assess the need for rate relief in all of the jurisdictions we serve and file for such relief when
necessary .

Off-System Electric Transactions
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In addition to sales to our own customers, we also sell power to other utilities as available and provide transmission
service through our system for transactions between other energy suppliers . The following table sets forth information
regarding these sales and related expenses for the applicable periods ended December 31, :
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Operating Revenue Deductions
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The decrease in revenues less expenses in 2004 as compared to 2003 and in 2003 as compared to 2002 resulted primarily
from the non-renewal of short-term contracts for firm energy that ran from January 2002 through June 2003 . We sold this
energy in the wholesale market when it was not required to meet our own customers' needs during that period . See "-
Competition" below . These expenses are included in our discussion ofpurchased power costs below .

During 2004, total operating expenses increased approximately $9.9 million (3.8%) compared to 2003. Total fuel costs
increased approximately $12.1 million (23 .1%) during 2004 offset by a decrease in purchased power costs of approximately
$7.4 million (12 .2°!0), resulting in a net increase of $4 .7 million for fuel and purchased power. The increase in fuel costs was
primarily due to increased generation by both our coal fired and gas fired units during 2004 (an estimated $7.9 million) and
lower volumes ofhedged natural gas in 2004 as compared to 2003 combined with higher prices for the unhedged portion of
the natural gas that we burned in our gas-fired units (an estimated $5.1 million) . The decrease in purchased power costs
primarily reflected a shift from serving our energy needs with purchased power to generating our own power reflecting that it
was more economical to ran our own generating units during 2004 than to purchase power . The decrease in purchased power
costs also reflects the non-renewal of the short-term contracts for firm energy that ran from January 2002 through June 2003 .
Despite the overall increase in fuel costs due to increased generation and higher costs, the positive effect ofour gas hedging
program reduced fuel cost by $11 .5 million in 2004 and $9.4 million in 2003, in each case as compared to buying all natural
gas requirements on the spot market . Given the current market conditions, we don't expect the results of our gas hedging
program to reduce our 2005 fuel costs by amounts comparable to the 2004 and 2003 reductions . See "Hedging Activities"
under "Critical Accounting Policies" for information on future hedging activity . We also expect fuel costs to increase in 2005
due to changes in delivered prices resulting from the expiration of our long-term coal and freight contracts . A long-term
contract with a subsidiary of Peabody Holding Company, Inc . for the supply of low sulfur Western coal (Powder River
Basin) at the Asbury and Riverton Plants expired in December 2004- We signed a new, three-year contract with Peabody on
December 15, 2004 that covers approximately 100% of our anticipated 2005 Western coal requirements, approximately 67% .
of our anticipated 2006 Western coal requirements and approximately 33% of our anticipated Western coal requirements for
2007 . We also currently have a contract with Union Pacific Railroad Company and The Kansas City Southern Railway
Company which provides for transportation of the Powder River Basin coal which will expire at the end of June 2005. In
2004 we accepted a binding proposal and are in the process of finalizing contractual terms and conditions on a new
transportation contract . We expect that, beginning in July 2005, this coal will be delivered under the new transportation
contract. The delivered price of coal under the new contracts is expected to be higher than the 2004 price during the first and
second quarters of 2005, but we expect the delivered price increase to be substantially mitigated beginning in the third quarter
of2005 due to a combination of our new coal supply and coal transportation contracts . We also expect changes in gas prices
to contribute to variances in fuel costs, partially offset by the impact ofour hedging program.

Regulated- other operating expenses increased approximately $3 .2 million (6.5%) during 2004 as compared to 2003
primarily due to a $1 .2 million increase in employee health care costs, an approximate $0.8 million increase in stock
compensation costs, a $0.9 million increase in customer accounts expense, of which $0.4 million was a first quarter 2004
addition to bad debt expense, a $0.5 million increase in steam power operating expenses at the Asbury" and Riverton plants
and a $0.5 million increase in general administrative expense due primarily to $0.6 million associated with Sarbanes-Oxley
compliance . These increases were partially offset by a $0.7 million decrease

in transmission and distribution expense, a $0.6 million decrease in professional service expenses and a $0.5 million decrease
in employee pension expense. Based on the performance of our pension plan assets through January 1, 2003, we were
required under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) to fund approximately $0.3 million in 2004
in order to maintain minimum funding levels and contributed this $0.3 million to our pension plan in the first quarter of 2004 .
Based on the performance of our pension plan assets through December 31, 2004, we expect there will be no contribution
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(n millions) 2004 2003 2002

Revenues $10.8 $15.3 $21 .9
Expenses 6.3 9.8 13 .4
Net Revenue $ 4.5 $ 5.5 $ 8.5



Non-regulated operating expense for all periods presented is discussed below under "-Non-regulated Items" .
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required under ERISA in order to maintain minimum funding levels in 2005. This could change, however, based on
actual investment performance, any future pension plan funding and finalization of actuarial assumptions . No minimum
pension liability was required to be recorded as of December 31, 2003 or 2004 . No significant changes are expected for our
post-retirement benefits in 2005 as compared to 2004 . See Note 8 of "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements" under
Item 8 for further discussion regarding our pension and post-retirement benefit plans,

Maintenance and repairs expense increased approximately $0.9 million (4 .4%) during 2004 as compared to 2003
primarity due to the $ 1 .0 million insurance deductible recorded to expense in the first quarter of 2004 related to the
maintenance on the Energy Center's Unit No . 2 which experienced a rotating blade failure on January 7, 2004 (which caused
damage throughout the machine) and to the second and third quarter maintenance costs related to repairs at the Energy Center
not subject to insurance recovery . Also contributing to this increase was a $0.8 million increase in transmission and
distribution maintenance and a $0.7 million increase in maintenance costs for the SLCC as compared to the prior year due
mainly to a $1 .8 million true-up credit (our share of the credit as 60% owners of the SLCC) received from Siemens
Westinghouse in June 2003 related to our maintenance contract for the period July 2002 through June 2003 for the SLCC.
These increases were partially offset by a $1 .4 million decrease in maintenance costs for our coal-fired units during 2004 as
compared to the prior year, reflecting the maintenance outages during the second quarter of 2003 when the latan Plant
underwent a planned boiler outage, the Riverton Plant's Unit No . 7 had a 12-day scheduled spring maintenance outage and
Unit No . 8 had an extended maintenance outage that ran from February 14, 2003 until May 14, 2003 .

Depreciation and amortization expense increased approximately $2.1 million (7.4%) during 2004 due to increased plant
in service . Total provision for income taxes decreased approximately $4.7 million (29.8%) during 2004 due primarily to
lower taxable income. Our effective federal and state income tax rate for 2004 was 34.1% as compared to 34.5% for 2003 .
See Note 9 of "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements" under item 8 for additional information regarding income taxes .
Other taxes increased $1 .9 million (11.6%) during 2004 due mainly to increased property taxes reflecting our additions to
plant in service and increased city taxes in the first quarter of 2004 as compared to the first quarter of 2003 when we had a
decrease in city taxes resulting from the refund of the IEC in the first quarter of 2003 .

During 2003, total operating expenses increased approximately $15.0 million (6.0%) compared to 2002 . Total fuel costs
increased approximately $2 .6 million (5 .2%) during 2003 offset by a decrease in purchased power costs of approximately
$2.6 million (4.1%) making total combined fuel and purchased power costs in 2003 virtually the same as in 2002 . The
increase in total fuel costs reflects a $1 million payment in the fourth quarter of 2003, expensed as additional fuel costs in the
third quarter of2003, pursuant to a settlement with Enron of a fuel contract dispute, a $0 .7 million unfavorable coal inventory
adjustment in August 2003 and increased generation by our coal-fired units, reflecting the non-renewal ofshort-term
contracts for firm energy discussed above . Despite the effectiveness of our natural gas procurement program, increased
natural gas prices during 2003 led to a 16.6 % increase in our average cost of gas as compared to 2002 . See Note 14- "Risk
Management and Derivative Financial Instruments" under Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for
information on the over hedged and qualified portions ofour hedging activities . The decrease in purchased power costs
primarily reflects a shift from serving our energy needs with purchased power to generating our own power, reflecting that it
was more economical to run our own generating units during the third and fourth quarters of 2003 than to purchase power.
This decrease in purchased power costs also reflects the decrease in off-system sales due to the non-renewal of the short-term
contracts for firm energy discussed above.

Regulated- other operating expenses increased approximately $6,7 million (15 .5%) during 2003 as compared to 2002 .
This increase was primarily due to an increase of $5.6 million in employee pension expense due primarily to a decline in the
value of invested funds . Expenses relating to our employee health care plan contributed $0.6
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million to the increase in regulated - other operating expenses while increases in insurance premiums added $0.4 million .

There were no expenses during 2003 relating to the terminated merger with Aquila, Inc . as compared with $1 .5 million
during 2002 . Expenses related to the terminated merger in 2002 were primarily the result of expenses related to severance
benefits incurred under our Change in Control Severance Pay Plan in the first quarter of 2002. These expenses are shown on
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the Other line in our Consolidated Statement of Income under the heading "Operating revenue deductions" .

Non-regulated Items

Page 26 of 85

Maintenance and repairs expense decreased approximately $4.5 million (18.3%) during 2003 as compared to 2002 .
Maintenance and repairs expense for the State Line and Energy Center units decreased approximately $6.1 million partially
offset by an approximate $1 .3 million increase in maintenance and repairs at our Riverton Plant reflecting a scheduled five-
year maintenance outage for Unit No . 8 in the first and second quarters of2003 as well as to make necessary repairs to a
high-pressure cylinder. The decrease in maintenance and repairs expense for the State Line Combined Cycle Unit reflects, in
part, the $1.8 million true-up credit received from Siemens Westinghouse discussed above as well as estimated monthly
credits we have been accruing since July 2003 . Monthly payments on this contract had been based on an assumption of 250
equivalent starts per unit each year . Actual starts during the twelve month period ended June 30, 2003, however, were
significantly less than originally estimated resulting in the June 2003 true-up credit. We expensed maintenance costs and
accrued a credit based on a combination ofstarts and actual monthly usage hours for the contract year ended June 30, 2004 .
As ofDecember 31, 2003, we had accrued $0.9 million in estimated credits . A $0.5 million payment during the third quarter
of 2002, per contract terms, to Westar Generating, Inc. (WGI) for maintenance expense related to our usage of the existing
Unit No . 2 turbine prior to WGI's 40% joint ownership of the State Line Combined Cycle Unit also contributed to the
decreased maintenance expense in 2003. Lower payments during the first half of 2003 on our long-term operating plant
maintenance contracts for outage services on Units No. 1 and No. 2 at the Energy Center and State Line Unit No . 1 as
compared to the first halfof 2002 when we were making additional payments ofapproximately $ l .1 million also contributed
to the decrease . Lastly, renegotiated terms for the Energy Center units and State Line Unit No. I contract for outage services
reduced maintenance costs during 2003 by $0.5 million .

Depreciation and amortization expense increased approximately $2.6 million (10.0%) during 2003 due to increased plant
in service. Total provision for income taxes increased approximately $2.4 million (17.6%) during 2003 due primarily to
higher taxable income . Our effective federal and state income tax rate for 2003 was 34 .5% as compared to 34.3% for 2002 .
See Note 9 of "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements" under Item 8 for additional information regarding income taxes .

We began investing in non-regulated businesses in 1996 . Our non-regulated businesses, which we operate through our
wholly-owned subsidiary EDE Holdings, Inc., include leasing of fiber optics cable and equipment (which we are also using
in our own operations), Internet access, close-tolerance custom manufacturing and customer information system software
services . On January, 31, 2005, we sold our 100% interest in Southwest Energy Training, a company that offers technical
training to the utility industry . This divestiture will not have a material impact on our balance sheets or statements of income
in future periods. We evaluated our non-regulated businesses for impairment at December 31, 2004, and determined that no
impairment exists based on our forecast of future net cash flows . Failure to achieve forecasted cash flows could result in an
impairment in the future .

During 2004, total non-regulated operating revenue increased approximately $0.7 million (3.5%) while total non-
regulated operating expense increased approximately $1.8 million (8.6%) as compared with 2003 . The increase in revenues
was mainly due to the activities of our fiber optics business and Fast Freedom, an Internet provider we own a 100% interest
in. The increase in expenses was due mainly to MAPP, which we own a 50.01% interest in, and Conversant, Inc ., a software
company that we own a 100% interest in which began business in early 2002. Conversant markets Customer Watch, an
Internet-based customer information system software, and began contributing revenues in the fourth quarter of 2003 .

During 2003, total non-regulated operating revenue increased approximately $10.6 million while total non-regulated
operating expense increased approximately $9.2 million as compared with 2002 . The significant increases

25

during 2003 were primarily due to the inclusion of a full year of MAPP operating revenues and expenses as compared to the
prior year results which reflected the acquisition of our 50.01% interest in MAPP in July 2002. The increase in expenses was
also due to the activities ofConversant, Inc .

Our non-regulated businesses generated a $1 .8 million net loss in 2004 as compared to a $1 .4 million net loss in 2003 and
a $1 .5 million net loss in 2002 .
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Nonoperating Items

Total allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC) decreased $0.1 million in 2004 and $0 .3 million in 2003
due to lower levels of construction. See Note 1 of "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements" under Item 8 .

Total interest charges on long-term debt decreased $1 .4 million (5.4%) in 2604 as compared to 2003 primarily reflecting
the refinancing we accomplished in 2003 by calling higher interest debt issues and replacing them with debt issues at lower
interest rates . See "- Liquidity and Capital Resources" for further information. Total interest charges on long-term debt
increased $1.1 million (4.4°/") in 2003 as compared to 2002 primarily reflecting the effects of the sale of $50.0 million of
7.05% senior notes on December 23, 2002, the sale of the $98 million of 4 .5% senior notes in June 2003 and the redemption
ofthe $100 million of senior notes in November 2003 . Commercial paper interest decreased $0.6 million during 2004 as
compared to 2003, reflecting decreased usage of short-term debt.

Other Comprehensive Income

The change in the fair value of the effective portion of our open gas contracts and our interest rate derivative contracts
and the gains and losses on contracts settled during the periods being reported, including the tax effect of these items, are
reflected in our Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income as the net change in unrealized gain or toss . This net
change is recorded as accumulated other comprehensive income in the capitalization section of our balance sheet and does
not affect net income or earnings per share . All of these contracts have been designated as cash flow hedges . The unrealized
gains and losses accumulated in comprehensive income are reclassified to fuel, or interest expense, in the periods in which
they are actually realized or no longer qualify for hedge accounting .

The following table sets forth the net-of-tax increase/(decrease) and the change in the fair market value (FMV) of our
open contracts in Other Comprehensive Income for the years presented (in millions) .

Our average cost for our open financial hedges increased from $3.695/Dth at December 31, 2003 to $4.795/Dth at
December 31, 2004 .

We had entered into an interest rate derivative contract in May 2003 to hedge against the risk of a rise in interest rates
impacting our 4.5% Senior Notes due 2013 prior to their issuance on June 17, 2003 . Costs associated with the interest rate
derivative (primarily due to interest rate fluctuations) amounted to approximately $2.7 million and have been capitalized as a
regulatory asset and are being amortized over the life of the 2013 Notes, along with the $9.1 million redemption premium
paid on the redemption ofthe $100 million aggregate principal amount of our 7.70% Senior Notes due 2004. The $60 million
30-year interest rate derivative contract that we had entered
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2004 2003 2002

Natural gas contracts settled'l $(11.5) $(9.4) (9 .4S) $ 0.3
Interest rate contracts settled 0.0 (2 .4) 0.0
Total contracts settled $(11.5) $(11 .8) $ 0.3

Change in FMV of open contracts for natural gas $ 4.2 $ 10.4 $12.9
Change in FMV of open contracts for interest rates 0.0 24 _0.0
Total change in FMV ofopen contracts $ 4.2 $ 12.8 $12.9

Taxes- natural gas $ 2.8 $ (0.4) $(5.0)
Taxes- interest rates 0.0 0.0 _0.0
Total taxes $ 2.8 $ (0.4) $ 5 .0

Total change in OCI - net of tax $ (4.5) $ 0.6 $ 8.2

(1) Reflected in fuel expense
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into on May 16, 2003 to hedge against the risk of a rise in interest rates impacting our 6.7% Senior Notes due 2033 prior to
their issuance on November 3, 2003, expired on October 29, 2003 with a gain of $5.1 million. This amount was recorded as a
regulatory liability and is being amortized against interest expense over the 30 year life ofthe debt issue we had hedged . See
Note 6- Long Term Debt under "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements" under Item 8 . We had no interest rate
derivative contracts in 2002 or 2004.

Competition

Federal regulation has promoted and is expected to continue to promote competition in the wholesale electric utility
industry . However, none of the states in our service territory has legislation that could require competitive retail pricing to be
put into effect . The Arkansas Legislature passed a bill in April 1999 that called for deregulation of the state's electricity
industry as early as January 2002 . However, a law was passed in February 2003 repealing retail deregulation in the state of
Arkansas .

We, and most other electric utilities with interstate transmission facilities, have placed our facilities under FERC
regulated open access tariffs that provide all wholesale buyers and sellers of electricity the opportunity to procure
transmission services (at the same rates) that the utilities provide themselves . We are a member of the Southwest Power Pool
(SPP), a regional reliability coordinator of the North American Electric Reliability Council and FERC approved Regional
Transmission Organization (RTO) . Effective September 1, 2002, we began taking Network Integration Transmission Service
under the SPP's Open Access Transmission Tariff. This provides a cost-effective way for us to participate in a broader
market ofgeneration resources with the possibility of lower transmission costs . This tariffprovides for a zonal rate structure,
whereby transmission customers within the same zone pay a pro-rata share, in the form ofa reservation charge, for the use of
the facilities for each transmission owner that serves them . Currently, all revenues collected within a zone are allocated back
to the transmission owner serving the zone . To the extent that we are allocated revenues and charges to serve our on-system
wholesale and retail power customers, only the difference, if any, is recorded . Revenues received from off-system
transmission customers are reflected in electric operating revenues and the related charges expensed .

Prior to the time we began taking Network Integration Transmission Service under the SPP's Open Access Transmission
Tariff, we had an agreement with Kansas City Power & Light (KCP&L) for transmission service from the latan plant . We
believed we had the right to terminate the service under the older latan transmission agreement, whereas KCP&L contended
that we did not . While we were working to resolve this dispute, we ceased scheduling service from KCP&L but continued to
accrue (but not pay) the monthly amount we had paid under the original contract terms . We reached a settlement with
KCP&L to pay approximately $0.8 million which was the amount that had accrued since October 2002 and was paid in
August 2003, and to continue the service agreement with KCP&L through March 2004, at which time we were released from
the original agreement . The additional cost for continuing the service agreement through March 2004 was approximately $0.7
million, which was paid in monthly installments .

In December 1999, the FERC issued Order No . 2000 which encourages the development of RTOs. RTOs are designed to
independently control the wholesale transmission services of the utilities in their regions thereby facilitating open and more
competitive bulk power markets . On October 15, 2003, the SPP announced it had filed with the FERC seeking formal
recognition as an RTO in accordance with FERC Order 2000 and on February 10, 2004, the FERC approved the SPP RTO
with conditions. Upon completion of the conditions, the SPP would gain status and FERC acceptance as an RTO. On October
4, 2004, the FERC granted RTO status to the SPP and ordered the SPP to resolve rate "pancaking" (accumulation of multiple
access charges) concerns and assure the independence ofits proposed market monitor as conditions ofthe decision . FERC
also ordered SPP to finalize a joint operating agreement with Midwest Independent Transmission System Operator, Inc .
(MISO) . These conditions have been addressed and the SPP is now operating as an RTO .

In October 2003, we filed a notice ofintent with the SPP for the right to withdraw from the SPP effective October 31,
2004 because of uncertainty surrounding the treatment from the states regarding RTO participation and cost recoveries . Such
withdrawal requires approval from the FERC. We retained the option, however, to rescind such notice on or before October
31, 2004 and remain a member ofthe SPP, which we did on October 25, 2004 . At the same time, we filed a new notice of
intent with the SPP for the right to withdraw from the SPP effective October 31, 2005 . We will be seeking authorization from
Missouri, Kansas and Arkansas to participate in and
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transfer functional control of our transmission facilities to the SPP RTO should we decide to remain a member . As part of the
applications to the aforementioned states, a formal independent SPP RTO Cost Benefit Analysis (CBA) will be submitted. It
is anticipated that the completion ofthe CBA will be finalized by or before April 2005 . We are unable to quantify the
potential impact of membership in the RTO on our future financial position, results of operation or cash flows at this time,
but will continue to evaluate the situation and make a decision whether or not to discontinue membership with the SPP .

In November 2003, FERC issued its Final Rule, Order 2004, with subsequent follow-up Orders regarding electric and
natural gas industry Code of Conduct requirements for natural gas and electric transmission service providers and their
affiliates . Such Orders are closely related to Order 889 standards of conduct for electric transmission providers and
management ofOpen Access Same Time Information Systems (OASIS) for the power industry . In February 2004, we made
an Informational Filing to FERC in response to Order 2004 describing our existing waiver, issued in May 1997, of Order 889
requirements and requesting the continuation of such waiver for Order 2004 requirements . In its April 2004 Order, FERC
addressed existing 889 waivers/exemptions and affirmed that such existing waivers/exemptions would continue . If in the .
future, FERC determines that a waiver ofOrders 889 or 2004 is not appropriate for us, then we will be required to separate
our bulk power retail sales and purchase functions from our transmission operations functions as well as implement formal
code of conduct training and OASIS practices .

In July 2004, FERC issued an order regarding new testing standards for assessing market power by entities that have
wholesale market-based rates tariffs filed with the FERC. The parameters included in the tests are such that most investor
owned electric utilities fail the test within their own control area and are subject to a rebuttable presumption of market power .
Entities with wholesale market based rates tariffs are subject to a triennial filing to test for market power and are required to
apply the new testing criteria. Failure to show a lack ofmarket power would result in the inability for a utility to continue to
charge such market-based rates . Our filing has been submitted and followed by subsequent informational data filings to the
FERC. On March 3, 2005, the FERC issued an order commencing an investigation to determine if we have market power
within our control area based on our failure to meet one of FERC's wholesale market share screens. We are required to file a
response within 60 days. Even if the FERC does find we have market power within our control area, it will not have a
material impact on our financial position because we currently have no market-price based wholesale customers within our
control area. The outcome of FERC rulings for all utilities is pending . .

Approximately 4.5% of our electric operating revenues are derived from sales to on-system wholesale customers, the type
of customer for which the FERC is already requiring wheeling, or the use, for a fee, of transmission facilities owned by one
company or system to move electrical power for another company or system . Our two largest on-system wholesale customers
accounted for 92% of our wholesale business in 2004 . We have contracts with these customers that run through the first
quarter of 2008 .

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
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Our net cash provided by operations was higher in 2004 as compared to 2003 due to the repayment in 2003 of a
previously accumulated IEC . Investments were lower due to decreased construction . Our primary sources of cash flow during
2004 were $74.4 million in internally generated funds and $ t3.4 million in proceeds from the issuance of common stock,
primarily related to our Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan . Our primary uses of cash during 2004 were $41 .9
million in capital expenditures, $13.3 million in short-term debt repayments and $32.6 million in dividend payments .

Our capital expenditures are expected to increase during 2005-2007 due to the purchase and expected installation of a
"Siemens V84 .3A2 combustion turbine with an expected capacity of 155 megawatts at our Riverton Plant to meet additional
capacity requirements . This unit is expected to be operational in 2007 . Our future construction expenditures include
approximately $16.9 million in 2005, $13.5 million in 2006 and $14 .1 million in 2007 for the purchase and installation of this
turbine .

A detailed discussion on cash flow activity follows .
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Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Our.net cash flows provided by operating activities increased $4 .6 million during 2004 as compared to 2003 primarily
due to the refunding of$18.7 million to our Missouri electric customers in the first quarter of2003 (the amount of the IEC,
with interest, collected between October 2001 and December 2002) . Other major factors positively impacting cash flows
provided by operating activities during 2004 as compared to 2003 were a $2.4 million increase due to changes in accounts
payable and accrued liabilities, a $2.7 million increase in depreciation and amortization due to increased plant in service and
a $1.0 million increase due to changes in prepaid expenses and deferred charges . Negatively impacting cash provided by
operating activities were a $7.6 million decrease in net income, a $6_0 million decrease due to higher accounts receivable and
accrued unbilled revenues, a $4.0 million decrease in deferred income taxes associated with lower net income and a $3.8
million decrease due to changes in cash used for fuel, materials and supplies .

Our net cash flows provided by operating activities decreased $3 .3 million during 2003 as compared to 2002 primarily
due to the refunding ofthe $18.7 million to our Missouri electric customers in the first quarter of 2003. This outflow of cash
in 2003 was partially offset by a $3 .9 million increase in net income, a $6.9 million increase due to changes in accounts
receivable and accrued unbilled revenues and a $3 .3 million increase in depreciation and amortization due to increased plant
in service during 2003 . Also positively impacting cash flows provided by operating activities were (I) a deferred income tax
increase of $3.2 million during 2003 as compared to 2002 primarily due to deferred taxes related to an additional first year
depreciation tax allowance recorded for financial statement purposes primarily for our FT8 peaking units and the deduction
for tax purposes of the loss on reacquired debt (unamortized issuance costs and discounts on the redeemed first mortgage
bonds) and (2) a change from pension income of $3.6 million in 2002 to pension expense of $3.9 million in 2003 primarily
due to a decline in the value ofinvested funds .

We do not expect a significant change in our cash flows from operating activities as a result of our 20-year contract with
PPM Energy for the purchase of approximately 550,000 megawatt-hours of energy annually from the proposed Elk River
Windfarm beginning in December 2005 . We expect that the amount and percentage of electricity we generate by natural gas
will decrease in 2006 and in the immediate future thereafter due to this contract . We anticipate the cost ofthis contract to also
be offset by purchasing less higher-priced power from other suppliers or by displacing on-system generation .

Capital Requirements and Investing Activities

Our net cash flows used in investing activities decreased $24.0 mullion during 2004 as compared to 2003, primarily
reflecting the completion of the two FT8 peaking units at the Empire Energy Center in April 2003 .

Our net cash flows used in investing activities decreased $11 .0 million during 2003 as compared to 2002, primarily
reflecting completion of the two FT8 peaking units at the Empire Energy Center .

Our capital expenditures totaled approximately $41 .9 million, $65.9 million, and $76.9 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively . These capital expenditures include AFUDC, increases in capitalized software costs, capital expenditures to
retire assets and benefits from salvage.
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A breakdown of these capital expenditures for 2004, 2003 and 2002 is as follows :

Capital Expenditures

(in millions) 2004 2003 2002

Distribution and transmission system additions $26.6 $27 .7 $25.5
FT8 peaking units - Energy Center - 20 .8 31.7
Combustion turbine - Riverton 2.3 - -
May 2003 tomado damage 0.7 6.7 -
Other Storms 0.6 - -
Additions and replacements - Asbury 1 .8 1 .0 3.0
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Approximately 99%, 58% and 63% of the cash requirements for capital expenditures for 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, were satisfied with internally generated funds (net cash provided by operating activities less dividends paid) .
The remaining amounts of such requirements were satisfied from short-term borrowings and proceeds from our sales of
common stock and unsecured Senior Notes discussed below .

On July 17, 2002 our subsidiary, EDE Holdings, Inc ., together with other investors, acquired the assets of the Precision
Products Department of Eagle Picher Technologies, LLC. The acquisition was accomplished through the creation of a newly
formed limited liability company, Mid-America Precision Products, LLC (MAPP) . EDE Holdings, Inc . acquired a controlling
50.01% interest in MAPP through a cash investment of $0.65 million and, as of December 31, 2003, was the guarantor for
50.01% ofa $2.4 million long-term note payable and a $0.75 million revolving short-term credit facility . Although our
ownership interest in MAPP remained at 50.01%, as of January 1, 2004, our guaranty was lowered to 25%.However, as part
of curing MAPP's violation ofcertain financial covenants at December 31, 2004, MAPP's loan covenants have been revised
and, as of January 1, 2005, EDE Holdings, Inc, is again the guarantor of 50.01% of the remaining $2.7 million long-term note
payable and the $0.85 million revolving short-term credit facility, of which $0.8 million was outstanding .

We estimate that our capital expenditures will total approximately $69.3 million in 2005, $86.0 million in 2006 and $88.4
million in 2007 . Of these amounts, we anticipate that we will spend approximately $26.5 million, $26.9 million and $27.4
million in 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively, for additions to our distribution system to meet projected increases in customer
demand . These capital expenditure estimates also include approximately $16.9 million in 2005, $13 .5 million in 2006 and
$14.1 million in 2007 for the purchase and installation ofa Siemens V84.3A2 combustion turbine at our Riverton Plant with
an expected capacity of 155 megawatts which is scheduled to be operational in 2007 to meet additional capacity
requirements .

We estimate that internally generated funds will provide 69% ofthe funds required in 2005 for capital expenditures . As in
the past, we intend to utilize short-term debt or the proceeds of sales of long-term debt or common stock (including common
stock sold under our Employee Stock Purchase Plan, our Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan, and our 401(k)
Plan and ESOP) to finance any additional amounts needed for such capital expenditures . We will continue to utilize short-
term debt as needed to support normal operations or other temporary requirements . The estimates herein may be changed
because of changes we make in our construction program, unforeseen construction costs, our ability to obtain financing,
regulation and for other reasons .

Financing Activities

30

Our net cash flows used in financing activities increased $27.8 million to $33 .0 million during 2004 as compared to 2003,
primarily due to the borrowing and repayment of short-term debt (commercial paper), the payment of dividends on an
increased number ofshares of our common stock, partially offset by proceeds from stock issuances, and by the lack of
issuances and redemptions ofsecurities consummated in 2003 as described below.
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Additions and replacements - Riverton, Iatan and Ozark Beach 1.3 1.2 2 .2
Additions and replacements - Energy Center - 1 .2 - -
Additions and replacements-State Line Combined Cycle Unit 0.4 - 2.0
Additions and replacements - State Line Unit 1 0.6 - -
System mapping project 1.7 2.2 1 .3
Fiber optics (non-regulated) 1.5 2.1 2.0
Other non-regulated capital expenditures 0.8 2,1 3.9
Transportation - 1 .0 0.2 0.7
Computer Services projects 0.1 0.3 0.8
Combustor inspection- State Line Unit I - 1.8
Other 1.4 0.5 0.8
Retirements and salvage (net) 0.1 1 .1 1 .2
Total $41.9 $65.9 $76.9
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Our net cash flows provided by financing activities decreased $12.0 million during 2003 as compared to 2002 resulting in
a $5.3 million use of cash during 2003 . Our net cash flows provided by financing activities in 2003 were primarily affected
by issuances of common stock, senior notes and trust preferred securities and redemptions and repayments of senior notes
and first mortgage bonds, each of which is described in detail below . Also increasing net cash flows provided by financing
activities for 2003 was the receipt of $5.1 million from a realized gain resulting from an interest rate derivative, which was
partially offset by a loss of $2.7 million on a similar interest rate derivative.

On May 22, 2002, we sold to the public in an underwritten offering 2,500,000 shares ofnewly issued common stock for
$51 .9 million . The net proceeds of approximately $49.4 million were used to repay $37 .5 million ofour First Mortgage
Bonds, 7 .50% Series due July 1, 2002 and to repay short-term debt .

On December 23, 2002, we sold to the public in an underwritten offering $50 million aggregate principal amount of our
unsecured Senior Notes, 7.05% Series due 2022, which mature on December 15, 2022- The net proceeds of approximately
$48 .6 million were added to our general funds and used to repay short-term debt .

On June 17, 2003, we sold . t o the public in an underwritten offering, $98 million aggregate principal amount ofour
unsecured Senior Notes, 4.5% Series due 2013, for net proceeds of approximately $96.6 million . We used the net proceeds
from this issuance, along with short-term debt, to redeem all $100 million aggregate principal amount of our Senior Notes,
7.70% Series due 2004 for approximately $109.8 million, including interest . We had entered into an interest rate derivative
contract in May 2003 to. hedge against the risk of a rise in interest rates impacting the 2013 Notes prior to their issuance .
Costs associated with the interest rate derivative (primarily due to interest rate fluctuations) amounted to approximately $2.7
million and were capitalized as a regulatory asset and are being amortized over the life of the 2013 Notes, along with the $9.1
million redemption premium paid on the Senior Notes, 7.70% Series due 2004 .

On November 3, 2003, we issued $62.0 million aggregate principal amount of Senior Notes, 6.70% Series due 2033 for
net proceeds of approximately $61.0 million . We used the proceeds from this issuance, along with short-term debt, to redeem
three separate series ofour outstanding first mortgage bonds : (1) all $2.25 million aggregate principal amount of our First
Mortgage Bonds, 9-3/4% Series due 2020 for approximately $2 .4 million, including interest; (2) all $13.1 million aggregate
principal amount of our First Mortgage Bonds, 7-1/4% Series due 2028 for approximately $13.7 million, including interest;
and (3) all $45.0 million aggregate principal amount of our First Mortgage Bonds, 7% Series due 2023 for approximately
$46.8 million, including interest . The $1 .7 million aggregate redemption premiums paid in connection with the redemption of
these first mortgage bonds, together with $1 .1 million of remaining unamortized issuance costs and discounts on the
redeemed first mortgage bonds, were recorded as a regulatory asset and are being amortized as interest expense over the life
of the 2033 Notes . On May 16, 2003, we entered into an interest rate derivative contract with an outside counterparty to
hedge against the risk of a rise in interest rates impacting the 2033 Notes prior to their issue . Upon issuance of the 2033
Notes, the realized gain of$5 .1 million from the derivative contract was recorded as a regulatory liability and is being
amortized over the life ofthe 2033 Notes as a reduction of interest expense .

We "marked-to-market" the fair market value of these contracts at the end of each accounting period and included the
change in value in Other Comprehensive Income until they were reclassified as a regulatory asset upon issuance of the 2013
Notes in June 2003 and a regulatory liability upon issuance of the 2033 Notes in November 2003 .

On December 17, 2003, we sold to the public in an underwritten offering, 2,000,000 newly issued shares of our common
stock for $42.3 million . The net proceeds of approximately $40.3 million were used to repay short-term debt and for other
general corporate purposes . On January 8, 2004, we sold an additional 300,000 shares to cover the underwriters' over-
allotments for approximately $6.1 million . The proceeds were added to our general funds .

	

.
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During 2004 and 2003 we also issued $7.3 million and $6.9 million, respectively, in common stock pursuant to our stock
plans, primarily through our employee stock purchase and dividend reinvestment plans .

We have an effective shelfregistration statement with the SEC under which approximately $89 million of our common
stock, unsecured debt securities, preference stock and first mortgage bonds remain available for issuance .

On October 22, 2004, we extended our $100 million unsecured revolving credit facility until May 31, 2006 . Borrowings
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are at the bank's prime commercial rate or LIBOR plus 100 basis points based on our current credit ratings and the
pricing schedule in the line of credit facility . The credit facility is used for working capital, general corporate purposes and to
back up our use of commercial paper_ This facility requires our total indebtedness (which does not include the Trust Preferred
Securities or the related note payable to the securitization trust) to be less than 62.5% ofour total capitalization at the end of
each fiscal quarter and our EBITDA (defined as net income plus interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and certain other
non-cash charges) to be at least two times our interest charges (which includes interest on the note payable to the
securitization trust) for the trailing four fiscal quarters at the end of each fiscal quarter. Failure to maintain these ratios would
result in an event ofdefault under the credit facility and would prohibit us from borrowing funds thereunder. We are in
compliance with these ratios as of December 31, 2004 . This credit facility is also subject to cross-default if we default on
excess of $5,000,000 in the aggregate of our other indebtedness . There were no borrowings outstanding under this revolver as
of December 31, 2004 .

Short-term commercial paper outstanding and notes payable averaged $1 .4 million and $42 .8 million daily during 2004
and 2003, respectively, with the highest month-end balances in each year being $8.5 million and $74.4 million, respectively.
Our commercial paper borrowings decreased to zero at December 31, 2004 compared to $13 million at December 31, 2003 .

Restrictions in our mortgage bond indenture could affect our liquidity . The Mortgage contains a requirement that for new
first mortgage bonds to be issued, our net earnings (as defined in the Mortgage) for any twelve consecutive months within the
fifteen months preceding issuance must be two times the annual interest requirements (as defined in the Mortgage) on all first
mortgage bonds then outstanding and on the prospective issue ofnew first mortgage bonds. Our earnings for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2004 would pemut us to issue approximately $172.2 million of new first mortgage bonds based
on this test with an assumed interest rate of 7.0% . In addition to the interest coverage requirement, the Mortgage provides
that new bonds must be issued against, among other things, retired bonds or 60% of net property additions . At December 31,
2004, we had retired bonds and net property additions which would enable the issuance ofat least $401 .0 million principal
amount of bonds if the annual interest requirements are met. We are in compliance with all restrictive covenants of the
Mortgage .

The Mortgage and the Restated Articles contain certain dividend restrictions . The most restrictive of these is contained in
the Mortgage, which provides that we may not declare or pay any dividends (other than dividends payable in shares of our
common stock) or make any other distribution on, or purchase (other than with the proceeds of additional common stock
financing) any shares of, our common stock if the cumulative aggregate amount thereof after August 31, 1944 (exclusive of
the first quarterly dividend of $98,000 paid after said date) would exceed the earned surplus (as defined in the Mortgage)
accumulated subsequent to August 31, 1944, or the date of succession in the event that another corporation succeeds to our
rights and liabilities by a merger or consolidation. As of December 31, 2004, our level of retained earnings did not prevent us
from issuing dividends . In addition, under certain circumstances (including defaults thereunder), our Junior Subordinated
Debentures, 8-1/2% Series due 2031, reflected as a note payable to securitization trust on our balance sheet, held by Empire
District Electric Trust I, an unconsolidated securitization trust subsidiary, may also restrict our ability to pay dividends on our
common stock .

On July 22, 2004, Standard & Poor's notified us that they had upgraded their rating on our first mortgage bonds from
BBB to A- . On September 28, 2004, Standard & Poor's notified us that they had placed that rating on credit watch with
negative implications reflecting, "prospects for erosion of Empire's pressured financial condition if recent testimony by the
MPSC staff in Empire's pending general rate case is ultimately endorsed by the MPSC." On March 14, 2005, Standard &
Poor's affirmed its 'BBB/A-2' corporate credit rating on us and removed the rating from credit watch with negative

http://www.sec .gov/Archives/edgar/data/32689/000120677405000338/dl6510 .htm 9/10/2006

As ofDecember 31, 2004, the ratings for our securities were as follows :

Moody's Standard & Poor's

First Mortgage Bonds Baal A-
First Mortgage Bonds - Pollution Control Series Aaa AAA
Senior Notes Baa2 BBB-
Commercial Paper P-2 A-2
Trust Preferred Securities Baa3 BB+



implications . The outlook is now stable reflecting the MPSC's rate case decision on March 10, 2005 that exceeded
expectation and supports our credit quality . Moody's currently has a negative rating outlook on Empire . These ratings
indicate the agencies' assessment of our ability to pay interest, distributions, dividends and principal on these securities . The
lower the rating the higher our financing costs will be when our securities are sold . Ratings below investment grade (Baa3 or
above for Moody's and BBB- or above for Standard & Poor's) may also impair our ability to issue short-term debt,
commercial paper or other securities or make the marketing of such securities more difficult.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Set forth below is information summarizing our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2004 . Not included in these
amounts are expected obligations associated with the installation of the new combustion turbine at Riverton, the wind energy
agreement, postretirement benefit funding or any future pension funding commitments . These items are discussed in
"Executive Summary", "Liquidity and Capital Resources" and Item 8 - "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data -
Note 8 - Retirement Benefits."

*

	

includes fuel and purchased power contracts.
**

	

Other Long-term Liabilities primarily represents 100% of the long-term debt issued by Mid-America Precision Products,
LLC. As of December 31, 2004, EDE Holdings, Inc . was the 25% guarantor of a $2.7 million note included in this total
amount . On January 1, 2005, the guarantee was increased to 50.01% .

OFF-BALANCE SHEETARRANGEMENTS

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our
financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures
or capital resources.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Page 34 of 85

Set forth below are certain accounting policies that are considered by management to be critical and to possibly involve
significant risk, which means that they typically require difficult, subjective or complex judgments, often as a result of the
need to make estimates about the effect ofmatters that are inherently uncertain (other accounting policies may also require
assumptions that could cause actual results to be different than anticipated results) . A change in assumptions or judgments
applied in determining the following matters, among others, could have a material impact on future financial results .
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Payments Due by Period

Contractual Obligations Total
Less than

1 Year

(in millions)

1-3 Years 3-5 Years
More than
5 Years

Long-Term Debt (w/o discount) $ 358.1 $ 10.0 $ - $ 20.0 $328.1
Note Payable to Securitization Trust 50.0 - - - 50.0
Interest on Long-Term Debt 430.7 26.2 51 .9 51 .4 301 .2
Capital Lease Obligations 0.4 0.3 0 .1 - -
Operating Lease Obligations 2.7 0.6 1 .2 0.9 -
Purchase Obligations* 253 .5 52 .7 71.9 56.6 72.3
Open Purchase Orders 32 .8 112 20.4 1 .2 -
Other Long-Term Liabilities** 3.0 0.5 2 .5 - -
Total Contractual Obligations $1,131 .2 $101 .5 $148.0 $130.1 $751 .6
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Pensions. Our pension expense or benefit includes amortization of previously unrecognized net gains or losses . The
amortized amount represents the average of gains and tosses over the prior five years, with this amount being amortized over
five years . In compliance with FAS 87, additional gain or expense may be recognized when our unrecognized gain or loss
exceeds 10% of our pension benefit obligation or fair value of plan assets . In addition, we record a liability when the
accumulated benefit obligation of the plan exceeds the fair value of the plan assets . Our policy is consistent with the
provisions of SFAS 87, "Employers' Accounting for Pensions" .

In our most recently approved Missouri Rate Case (effective March 27, 2005), the MPSC ruled that we would be allowed
to recover pension costs consistent with our GAAP policy noted above except that unrecognized actuarial gains or losses will
now be amortized over a 10 year period. In accordance with the rate order, we will prospectively calculate the value ofplan
assets using the Market Related Value method 9 (as defined in SFAS 87) . This is a change from the policy approved in the
2002 order, which allowed us to recover pension costs on an ERISA minimum funding (or cash) basis . Prior to the 2002
order, the MPSC allowed us to recover pension costs consistent with our GAAP policy . We had determined that the
difference between the ERISA recovery allowed by the MPSC and our accounting for pension costs under GAAP did not
meet the FAS 71 requirements for treatment as a regulatory asset or liability . As a result, we have continued to account for
pension expense or benefits in accordance with SFAS 87, using the previously mentioned amortization formula for
recognizing net gains or losses . We now expect future pension expense or benefits will be fully recovered or recognized in.
rates charged to customers .

Risks and uncertainties affecting the application ofthis accounting policy include : future rate of return on plan assets,
interest rates used in valuing benefit obligations (i.e . discount rates), demographic assumptions (i .e. mortality and retirement
rates) and employee compensation trend rates . Based on the performance ofour pension plan assets through January 1, 2003,
we were required under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) to fund approximately $0.3 million
in 2004 in order to maintain minimum funding levels and contributed this $0.3 million to our pension plan in the first quarter
of 2004 . No minimum pension liability was required to be recorded as of December 31, 2003 or December 31, 2004 . Factors
that could result in additional pension expense include : a lower discount rate than estimated, higher compensation rate
increases, lower return on plan assets, and longer retirement periods .

Postretirement Benefits. We recognize expense related to postretirement benefits as earned during the employee's period
of service . Related assets and liabilities are established based upon the funded status of the plan compared to the accumulated
benefit obligation . Our postretirement expense or benefit includes amortization of previously unrecognized net gains or
losses . The amortized amount represents the average of gains and losses over the prior five years, with this amount being
amortized over five years . Additional gain or expense may be recognized when our unrecognized gain or loss exceeds 10% of
our postretirement benefit obligation or fair value ofplan assets . Our policy is consistent with the provisions ofSFAS 106,
"Employers' Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions" . Factors that could result in additional
postretirement expense include : a lower discount rate than estimated, higher compensation rate and medical cost rate
increases, lower return on plan assets, and longer retirement periods .

Risks and uncertainties affecting the application ofthis accounting policy include: future rate ofreturn on plan assets,
interest rates used in valuing benefit obligations (i .e . discount rates), healthcare cost trend rates, Medicare prescription drug
costs and demographic assumptions (i .e . mortality and retirement rates) .

Hedging Activities. We currently engage in hedging activities in an effort to minimize our risk from volatile natural gas
prices . We enter into contracts with counterparties relating to our future natural gas requirements that lock in prices (with
respect to predetermined percentages of our expected future natural gas needs) in an attempt to lessen the volatility in our fuel
expense and gain predictability . We recognize that if risk is not timely and adequately balanced or if counterparties fail to
perform contractual obligations, actual results could differ materially from intended results . All derivative instruments are
recognized on the balance sheet with gains and losses from effective instruments deferred in other comprehensive income (in
stockholders' equity), while gains and losses from ineffective (overhedged) instruments are recognized as the fair value of the
derivative instrument changes .

As of March 4, 2005, approximately 61% ofour anticipated volume ofnatural gas usage for the remainder of the year
2005 is hedged at an average price of $4.795 per Dekatherm (Dth) . In addition, approximately 40% ofour anticipated volume
of natural gas usage for the year 2006 is hedged at an average price of $4.760 per Dth,
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approximately 37% ofour anticipated volume ofnatural gas usage for the year 2007 is hedged at an average price of $4.526
per Dth, approximately 21 % of our anticipated volume of natural gas usage for the year 2008 is hedged at an average price of
$4.569 per Dth and approximately 40% of our anticipated volume of natural gas usage for the years 2009-2011 is hedged at
an average price of $4.522 per Dth .

Risks and uncertainties affecting the application of this accounting policy include: market conditions in the energy
industry, especially the effects of price volatility, regulatory and political environments and requirements, fair value
estimations on longer term contracts, the effectiveness of the derivative instrument in hedging the change in fair value of the
hedged item, estimating underlying fuel demand and counterparty ability to perform. Ifwe estimate that we have overhedged
forecasted demand, the gain or loss on the overhedged portion will be recognized immediately in our Consolidated Statement
of Income .

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities. In accordance with SFAS No . 71, "Accounting for the Effects ofCertain Types of
Regulation", our financial statements reflect ratemaking policies prescribed by the regulatory commissions having
jurisdiction over us (FERC and four states) .

Certain expenses and credits, normally recognized as incurred, are deferred as assets and liabilities on the balance sheet
until the time they are recovered from or refunded to customers . This is consistent with the provisions of SFAS No. 7l . We
have recorded certain regulatory assets which are expected to result in future revenues as these costs are recovered through
the ratemaking process . Historically, all costs of this nature which are determined by our regulators to have been prudently
incurred have been recoverable through rates in the course of normal ratemaking procedures, and we believe that the
regulatory assets and liabilities we have recorded will be afforded similar treatment. If these items are not afforded similar
treatment they will be required to be recognized in our statement of income .

As of December 31, 2004, we have recorded $52.1 million in regulatory assets and $30.2 million in income taxes, gain on
interest rate derivatives and costs of removal as regulatory liabilities . See Note 3 of "Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements" under Item 8 for detailed information regarding our regulatory assets and liabilities .

We continually assess the recoverability of our regulatory assets . Under current accounting standards, regulatory assets
and liabilities are eliminated through a charge or credit, respectively, to earnings if and when it is no longer probable that
such amounts will be recovered through future revenues .

Risks and uncertainties affecting the application ofthis accounting policy include : regulatory environment, external
regulatory decisions and requirements, anticipated future regulatory decisions and their impact and the impact ofderegulation
and competition on ratemaking process and the ability to recover costs .

UnbilledRevenue. At the end of each period we estimate, based on expected usage, the amount of revenue to record for
energy that has been provided to customers but not billed. Risks and uncertainties affecting the application of this accounting
policy include : projecting customer energy usage and estimating the impact of weather and other factors that affect usage
(such as line losses) for the unbilled period .

	

.

Contingent Liabilities. We are a party to various claims and legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course ofour
business . We regularly assess our insurance deductibles, analyze litigation information with our attorneys and evaluate our
loss experience . Based on our evaluation as ofthe end of2004, we believe that we have accrued liabilities in accordance with
the guidelines of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS 5, "Accounting for Contingencies" (FAS 5) sufficient
to meet potential liabilities that could result from these claims . This liability at December 31, 2004 is $1 .5 million .

Risks and uncertainties affecting these assumptions include: changes in estimates on potential outcomes of litigation and
potential litigation yet unidentified in which we might be named as a defendant .

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTINGSTANDARDS

See Item 8 -"Financial Statements and Supplementary Data - Note 1 - Recently Issued and Proposed Accounting
Standards ."
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
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Market risk is the exposure to a change in the value of a physical asset or financial instrument, derivative or non-
derivative, caused by fluctuations in market variables such as interest rates or commodity prices . We handle our commodity
market risk in accordance with our established Energy Risk Management Policy, which may include entering into various
derivative transactions . We utilize derivatives to manage our gas commodity market risk and to help manage our exposure
resulting from purchasing_ most of our natural gas on the volatile spot market for the generation ofpower for our native-load
customers . See Note 14 of "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements" for further information .

Interest Rate Risk. We are exposed to changes in interest rates as a result offinancing through our issuance of
commercial paper . We manage our interest rate exposure by limiting our variable-rate exposure (applicable only to
commercial paper) to a certain percentage oftotal capitalization, as set by policy, and by monitoring the effects of market
changes in interest rates . See Notes 6 and 7 of "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements" under Item 8 for further
information .

If marketinterest rates average 1% more in 2005 than in 2004, our interest expense would increase, and income before
taxes would decrease by less than $100,000 . This amount has been determined by considering the impact of the hypothetical
interest rates on our highest month-end commercial paper balance for 2004 . There was no outstanding commercial paper as
of December 31, 2004 . These analyses do not consider the effects of the reduced level ofoverall economic activity that could
exist in such an environment . In the event ofa significant change in interest rates, management would likely take actions to
further mitigate its exposure to the change. However;due to the uncertainty ofthe specific actions that would be taken and
their possible effects, the sensitivity analysis assumes no changes in our financial structure .

Commodity Price Risk . We are exposed to the impact of market fluctuations in the price and transportation costs of coal,
natural gas, and electricity and employ established policies and procedures to manage the risks associated with these market
fluctuations, including utilizing derivatives.

We have entered into a three-year contract for the purchase of coal in order to manage our exposure to fuel prices . See
Note I 1 ofour Financial Statements under Item 8 for further information. We satisfied 70.5% of our 2004 fuel supply need
through coal . Approximately 90% of our 2004 coal supply was Western coal . Our new three-year coal contract satisfies
approximately 100% of our anticipated 2005 requirements, approximately 67% of our 2006 requirements and approximately
33% of our anticipated requirements for 2007 for our Asbury and Riverton Western coal needs. Future coal supplies will be
acquired using a combination of short-term and long-term contracts .

We are exposed to changes in market prices for natural gas we must purchase to tun our combustion turbine generators .
Our natural gas procurement program is designed to minimize our risk from volatile natural gas prices . We enter into
physical forward and financial derivative contracts with counterparties relating to our future natural gas requirements that
lock in prices (with respect to predetermined percentages ofour expected future natural gas needs) in an attempt to lessen the
volatility in our fuel expense and improve predictability. We expect that increases in gas prices will be partially offset by
realized gains under financial derivative transactions . As of March 4, 2005, 61%, or 4.25 million Dths's, of our anticipated
volume of natural gas usage for the remainder of year 2005 is hedged . See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results ofOperations - Critical Accounting Policies - Hedging Activities" for further
information.

Based on our expected natural gas purchases for 2005, if average natural gas prices should increase 10% more in 2005
than the price at December 31, 2004, our fuel expense would increase, and income before taxes would decrease by
approximately $2.1 million based on our 2005 financial hedge positions .

36

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

http ://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/32689/000120677405000338/dl6510 .htm 9/10/2006



To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
of The Empire District Electric Company :

Consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule
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We have completed an integrated audit ofThe Empire District Electric Company's 2004 consolidated financial
statements and of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 and audits of its 2003 and 2002
consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards ofthe Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States) . Our opinions, based on out audits, are presented below .

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under Item 15 present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of The Empire District Electric Company and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2004
and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 3 l,
2004 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America . In addition, in our
opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the indexappearing under Item 15 present fairly, in all material respects,
the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements . These financial
statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility ofthe Company's management . Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits . We conducted our
audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) . Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement . An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation . We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion .

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management's assessment, included in Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting appearing under Item 9A, that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004 based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those
criteria . Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework
issued by the COSO. The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting . Our responsibility is to
express opinions on management's assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) . Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects . An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding
of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management's assessment, testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the
circumstances . We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions .

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles . A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions ofthe assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable

	

.
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assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company ; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance
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regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements .

Because ofits inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements .
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because ofchanges in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate .

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
St. Louis, Missouri
March 10, 2005
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Assets

(Continued)

2004

80,519,312
$1,027,538,538
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Plant and property, at original cost: (Note 2)
Electric $1,221,384,998 $1,191,445,355
Water 9,201,314 8,801,483
Non-regulated 23,668,864 21,105,515
Construction work in progress 8,653,720 5,840,870

1,262,908,896 1,227,193,223
Accumulated depreciation and amortization 405,873,917 379,235,073

857,034,979 847,958,150
Current assets :
Cash and cash equivalents 12,593,369 13,108,197
Accounts receivable- trade, net ofallowance of $248,000 and $702,000,
respectively 20,052,892 21,946,990

Accrued unbilled revenues 7,599,964 7,784,403
Accounts receivable- other (Note 15) 12,874,123 9,243,073
Fuel, materials and supplies 32,044,113 29,179,937
Unrealized gain in fair value of derivative contracts (Note 14) 2,867,550 11,631,350
Prepaid expenses 1,952,236 2,240,748

89,984,247 95,134,698
Noncurrent assets and deferred charges :
Regulatory assets (Note 3) 52,127,262 55,977,495
Unamortized debt issuance costs 5,881,384 6,289,783
Unrealized gain in fair value of derivative contracts (Note 14) 4,142,900 567,000
Prepaid pension asset (Note 8) 13,973,827 16,532,132
Other 4,393,939 2,631,587



The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements .
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THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (continued)

Capitalization and Liabilities

2004

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements .
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Common stock, $1 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 25,695,972 and
24,975,604 shares issued and outstanding, respectively $ 25,695,972 $ 24,975,604

Capital in excess of par value 321,632,092 306,727,950
Retained earnings 29,078,105 39,848,572
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of income tax (Note 14) 2,774,221 7,272,705

Total common stockholders' equity 379,180-390 378,824,831
Long-term debt (Note 6) :
Note payable to securitization trust 50,000,000 50,000,000
Obligations under capital lease 122,570 297,655
First mortgage bonds and secured debt 140,363,500 150,692,450
Unsecured debt 209,430,556 209,402,515
Total long-term debt 399,916,626 410,392,620
Total long-term debt and common stockholders' equity 779,097,016 789,217,451

Current liabilities :
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 36,926,520 34,102,261
Current maturities of long-term debt 10,462,211 429,140
Obligations under capital lease 239,684 205,556
Commercial paper 13,000,000
Customer deposits 5,724,211 5,251,359
Interest accrued - 2,700,402 2,836,241
Unrealized loss in fair value ofderivative contracts (Note 14) 1,030,100 583,140
Taxes accrued 1,411,355 1,389,389

58,494,483 57,797,086
Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)
Noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits :
Regulatory liabilities (Note 3) 30,225,020 31,686,523
Deferred income taxes (Note 9) 133,403,329 125,065,620
Unamortized investment tax credits 5,041,000 5,581,000
Postretirement benefits other than pensions (Note 8) 8,248,004 8,088,674
Unrealized loss in fair value of derivative contracts (Note 14) 1,505,800 80,350
Minority interest 705,326 1,159,953
Other 10,818,560 6,414,188

189,947,039 178,076,308
Total Capitalization and Liabilities $1,027,538,533 $1,025,090,845
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2004

Year ended December 31,

2003 2002

Operating revenues :
Electric $302,590,345 $303,261,146 $294,571,794
Water 1,369,316 1,388,832 1,075,671
Non-regulated (Note 12) 21,579,975 20,854,918 10,255,530

325,539,636 325,504,896 305,902,995
Operating revenue deductions :
Fuel 64,440,543 52,337,362 49,755,465
Purchased power 52,845,618 60,208,746 62,765,107
Regulated - other (Note 16) 52,962,362 49,752,972 43,064,291
Non-regulated (Note 12) 22,972,582 21,160,154 11,911,021
Other - - 1,524,355
Maintenance and repairs 20,793,630 19,923,408 24,395,974
Depreciation and amortization 30,797,854 28,688,480 26,084,430
Provision for income taxes 11,054,035 15,751,999 13,390,001
Other taxes 18,133,136 16,247,256 16,175,446

273,999,760 264,070,377 249,066,090
Operating income 51,539,876 61,434,519 56,836,905

Other income and (deductions) :
Allowance for equity funds used during construction 121,673 - -
Interest income 205,178 57,011 87,336
Benefit (provision) for other income taxes (245,965) 250,000 80,000
Minority interest 308,107 (353,634 (142,463)
Other- non-operating income 67,016 52,857 115,955
Other- non-operating expense (969,098) (860,398) (882,509 )

(513,089) (854,164) - _(741,681)
Interest charges :
Long-term debt - other 24,640,812 26,044,688 24,957,961
Note payable to securitization trust (Note 1) 4,250,000 - -
Trust preferred distributions by subsidiary holding solely
parent debentures (Note 1) - 4,250,000 4,250,000

Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction (98,055) (282,268) (570,808)
Other 386,496 1,117,628 1,933,953

29,179,253 31,130,048 30,571,106
Net income $ 21,847,534 _L29,450,307 $ 25,524,118
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding-basic 25,467,740 22,845,952 21,433,889

Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding-diluted 25,520,963 22,853,105 21,437,710

Earnings per weighted average share of
common stock-basic $ 0.86 $ 1.29 $ 1 .19

Earnings per weighted average share of
common stock- diluted $ 0.86 $ 1 .29 $ 1 .19

Dividends per share ofcommon stock $ 1 .28 $ 1 .28 $ 1.28



The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements .
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2004

Year ended December 31,

2003 2002

Common stock, $1 par value :
Balance, beginning of year $ 24,975,604 $ 22,567,179 $ 19,759,598
Stock/stock units issued through :
Public offering 300,000 2,000,000 2,500,000
Stock purchase and reinvestment plans 420,368 408,425 307,581
Balance, end ofyear $ 25,695,972 _L24,975,604 $ 22,567,179

Capital in excess of par value :
Balance, beginning of year $306,727,950 $260,559,197 $208,223,200
Excess of net proceeds over par value of stock issued:
Public offering 5,632,346 38,370,600 46,857,626
Stock purchase and reinvestment plans 9,271,796 7,798,153 5,478,371
Balance, end of year $321,632,092 $306,727,950 $260,559,197

Retained earnings :
Balance, beginning of year $ 39,848,572 $ 39,544,819 $ 41,906,483
Net income 21,847,534 29,450,307 25,524,118

61,696,106 68,995,126 67,430,601
Less common stock dividends declared 32,618,001 - 29,146,554 27,885,782

Balance, end of year $ 29,078,105 $ 39,848,572 $ 39,544,819
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) :

2004

Year ended December 31,

2003 2002

Net income $ 21,847,534 $ 29,450,307 $25,524,118
Reclassification adjustments for (gains) / losses included in net
income or reclassified to regulatory asset or liability (11,471,020) (11,752,251) 337,660

Change in fair value of open derivative contracts for period 4,215,400 12,767,151 12,928, 110
Income taxes 2,757,136 (385,662) (5,040,993)
Net change in unrealized (gain)/loss on

derivative contracts (4,498,484) 629,238 8,224,777
Comprehensive income $ 17,349,050 $ 30,079,545 $33,748,895
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2004

Year ended December 31,

2003 2002

Operating activities
Net income $ 21,847,534 $ 29,450,307 $ 25,524,118

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash flows :
Depreciation and amortization 35,259,579 32,556,221 29,301,526
Pension expense/(income) 3,005,548 3,858,417 (3,581,781)
Deferred income taxes, net 11,440,001 15,392,000 12,180,000
Investment tax credit, net (540,000) (550,000) (550,000)
Allowance for equity funds used during construction (121,673) - -
Issuance ofcommon stock and stock options for
incentive plans 2,231,023 1,300,305 1,195,752

Unrealized (gain)/loss on derivatives 161,790 1,157,850 (1,238,940)

Cash flows impacted by changes in :
Accounts receivable and accrued unbilled revenues (1,909,613) 4,127,022 (2,745,282)
Fuel, materials and supplies (1,738,892) 2,047,510 (2,098,946)
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 11,233 (1,016,909) 559,689
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,974,238 (467,384) (1,238,517)
Customer deposits, interest and taxes accrued 358,979 (465,000) (507,261)
Other liabilities and other deferred credits 2,420,083 1,171,65t 436,818
Accumulated provision- rate refunds - (18,718,679) 15,875,234
Net cash provided by operating activities 74,399,830 69,843,311 73,112,410

Investing activities
Capital expenditures-regulated (39,191,831) (61,997,311) (72,805,389)
Capital expenditures and other investments -
non-regulated (2,700,283) (3,908,397) (4,071,514)
Net cash (used in) investing activities (41,892,114) (65,905,708) (76,876,903)

Financing activities
Proceeds from interest rate derivative - 5,099,325 -
Payment of interest rate derivatives - (2,683,000) -
Proceeds from issuance ofSenior Notes - 160,000,000 50,000,000

Balance, beginning of year $ 7,272,705 $ 6,643,467 $ (1,581,310)
Reclassification adjustment for (gains)/losses included in
net income (11,471,020) (11,752,251) 337,660

Change in fair value ofopen derivative contracts
for period 4,215,400 12,767,151 12,928,110

Income taxes 2,757,136 (385,662 ) (5,040,993 )
Balance, end of year $ 2,774,221 $ 7,272,705 $ 6,643,467
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Interest paid was $27,473,000, $30,935,000, and $30,943,000 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002,
respectively. Income taxes paid were $1,506,000, $0, and $1,767,000 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and
2002, respectively . Net income taxes paid in 2003 of $0 were due to payments offset by a refund of federal income tax of
$750,000 .

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements .

THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY
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The Empire District Electric Company, headquartered in Joplin, Missouri, is primarily a regulated electric utility engaged
in the generation, purchase, transmission, distribution and sale ofelectricity. Empire also provides regulated water utility
service to three towns in Missouri . Currently, the regulated utility accounts for about 98% of consolidated assets and 93% of
consolidated revenues . The utility portions of the business are subject to regulation by the Missouri Public Service
Commission (MPSC), the State Corporation Commission of the State of Kansas (KCC), the Corporation Commission of
Oklahoma (OCC), the Arkansas Public Service Commission (APSC) and the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
(FERC) . Empire also has a wholly-owned non-regulated subsidiary, EDE Holdings, Inc . Through the non-regulated
subsidiary, as ofDecember 31, 2004, we teased capacity on our fiber optics network, provided Internet access, performed
close-tolerance custom manufacturing (Mid America Precision Products, LLC (MAPP)) and licensed customer infonnation
system software services . For discussion of the activities of our non-regulated operations and non-regulated results of
operations, see Note 12 . Our accounting policies are in accordance with the ratemaking practices of the regulatory authorities
and conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applied to regulated public utilities . Our electric revenues in 2004
were derived as follows : residential 41%, commercial 31%, industrial 17%, wholesale on-system 4.5%, wholesale off-system
2% and other 4.5% . Our electric revenues for 2004 byjurisdiction were as follows : Missouri 88.7°/x, Kansas 5 .6%, Arkansas
2.5%, and Oklahoma 3.2% . These percentages have not significantly changed from 2003 and 2002 . Following is a
description of the Company's significant accounting policies :

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts ofThe Empire District Electric Company (EDEC), and the
consolidated financial statements ofour wholly-owned non-regulated subsidiary, EDE Holdings, Inc . (EDE Holdings) and its
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Proceeds from issuance of common stock 13,393,487 47,250,514 53,947,826
Long-term debt issuance costs - (1,695,567) (1,574,401)
Redemption of senior notes - (100,058,000) -
Redemption of First Mortgage Bonds - (60,326,000) (37,578,000)
Premium paid on extinguished debt - (10,818,793) -
Discount on issuance of senior notes - (809,580) -
Dividends (32,618,001) (29,146,554) (27,885,782)
Net (repayments) proceeds from short-term borrowings (13,275,263) (12,230,673) (30,034,096)
Net (repayments) proceeds from non-regulated
notes payable (368,384) 303,245 23,389

Other (154,383 ) (153,550) (135,491)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (33,022,544) (5,268,633) 6,763,445

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (514,828) (1,331,030) 2,998,952
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 13,108,197 14,439,227 11,440,275
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 12,593,369 $ 13,108,197 $ 14,439,227



subsidiaries . The consolidated entity is referred to throughout as "we" or the "Company" . On December 31, 2003 we
deconsolidated the Empire District Electric Trust I in 2003 as required by Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Interpretation No . 46-R (FIN 46-R) .

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation . These reclassifications had
no impact on the statements ofincome .

Accounting for the Effects of Regulation

In accordance with Statement ofFinancial Accounting Standards SFAS No . 71, "Accounting for the Effects ofCertain
Types of Regulation" (FAS 7l), our financial statements reflect ratemaking policies prescribed by the regulatory
commissions having jurisdiction over our regulated generation and other utility operations (the MPSC, the KCC, the OCC,
the APSC and the FERC).

In accordance with FAS 71, certain expenses and credits, normally recognized as incurred, are deferred as assets and
liabilities on the balance sheet until the time they are recognized when recovered from or refunded to customers . As such, we
have recorded certain regulatory assets which are expected to result in future revenues as these costs are recovered through
the ratemaking process . Historically, all costs of this nature, which are deterntfned by our regulators to have been prudently
incurred, have been recoverable through rates in the course of normal ratemaking procedures . As of December 31, 2004, all
of our regulatory assets are earning a current return except for approximately $9.3 million related to unamortized premiums
and related costs for debt reacquired, and $2.9 million related to certain postretirement benefit costs . All of these costs were
incurred prior to our 2004 rate case filings . These costs were allowed in rates in our latest Missouri rate case which was
approved March 10, 2005, effective March 27, 2005 . Since cost recovery of debt related costs has historically been allowed
in rate cases in our other

Use of Estimates

Revenue Recognition
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jurisdictions, we expect them to be approved in our other jurisdictions as well . Postrefrement benefit costs were also allowed
in rates in our recently approved Missouri rate case . We believe it is probable these assets will also be afforded similar
treatment by other state regulators . In addition, $2.3 million and $4.9 million of loss and gain, respectively, remaining from
interest rate derivative transactions were also incurred prior to our 2004 rate case filings, and were included in the recently
approved Missouri rate case . We believe it is probable they will also be included in our rate base in other states .

We continually assess the recoverability of our regulatory assets . Regulatory assets and liabilities are ratably eliminated
through a charge or credit, respectively, to earnings while being recovered in revenues and fully recognized if and when it is
no longer probable that such amounts will be recovered through future revenues .

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts ofassets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements . Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the period . Areas in the financial statements significantly affected by estimates and assumptions include
unbilled utility revenues, collectibility, of accounts receivable, depreciable lives, asset impairment evaluations, employee
benefit obligations, contingent liabilities, asset retirement obligations, the fair value of stock based compensation and tax
provisions . Actual amounts could differ from those estimates .
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For our utility operations, we use cycle billing and accrue estimated, but unbilled, revenue for electric services provided
between the last bill date and the period end date . We also accrue a liability for the related taxes at the end ofeach period .

Customer information software service revenues from certain of our non-regulated operations are recognized in
accordance with Statement of Position (SOP) 97-2, Software Revenue Recognition as issued by the Accounting Standards
Executive Conunittee ofthe American Institute ofCertified Public Accountants (ACSEC) and related authoritative literature .
Software revenue is recognized under SOP 97-2 based on the terms and conditions of each contract . Other non-regulated
revenues are recognized when the manufactured products ship to the customer or when the interet or other service has been
provided.

Property, Plant & Equipment

The costs of additions to utility property and replacements for retired property units are capitalized . Costs include labor,
material and an allocation ofgeneral and administrative costs, plus an allowance for funds used during construction
(AFUDC) . The original cost of units retired or disposed of is charged to accumulated depreciation. Maintenance expenditures
and the removal of items not considered units ofproperty are charged to income as incurred.

Until 2002, the depreciation/cost of service methodology utilized by our rate-regulated operations included an estimated
cost of dismantling and removing plant from service upon retirement . From January 2002 through March 2005, we
suspended accruing the cost of removing plant from service upon retirement through depreciation rates pursuant to the
October 2001 Missouri rate case . Pursuant to our latest Missouri rate case approved March 10, 2005, effective March 27,
2005, we will begin accruing cost of removal in depreciation rates for mass property (includes transmission, distribution and
general plant assets) effective April 1, 2005 . We reclassified the accrued cost of dismantling and removing plant from service
upon retirement, which is not considered an asset retirement obligation under SFAS 143, "Accounting for Obligations
Associated with the Retirement of Long-Lived Assets" (FAS 143), from accumulated depreciation to a regulatory liability . At
December 31, 2004, and 2003, the amount of accrued cost of removal was $17.6 million and $17.9 million, respectively . We
adjust this amount to reflect our actual cost of removal expenditures .

Depreciation
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Provisions for depreciation are computed at straight-line rates in accordance with GAAP consistent with rates approved
by regulatory authorities, These rates are applied to the various classes ofutility assets on a composite basis . Provisions for
depreciation for our non-regulated businesses are computed at straight-line rates over the estimated useful life of the
properties .

The table below summarizes the total provision for depreciation and depreciation rates, both capitalized and expensed for
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the years ended December 31, : .

2004 2003 2002

Provision for depreciation
Regulated $30,821,724 $28,916,777 $27,157,945
Non-regulated 971,997 840,338 535,611
Total $31,793,721 $29,757,115 $27,693,556

Annual depreciation rates
Regulated 2.6% 2.5% 2.5%
Non-regulated 5.8% 5.6% 4.1%
Total 2.5% 2 .5% 2 .5%
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The table below sets forth the average depreciation rate for each class ofassets, which have been consistently applied for
all periods presented :

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction

As provided in. the regulatory Uniform System of Accounts, utility plant is recorded at original cost, including an
allowance for funds used during construction when first placed in service . The AFUDC is a utility industry accounting
practice whereby the cost ofborrowed funds and the cost of equity funds (preferred and common stockholders' equity)
applicable to our construction program are capitalized as a cost of construction . This accounting practice offsets the effect on
earnings of the cost of financing current construction, and treats such financing costs in the same manner as construction
charges for labor and materials .

AFUDC does not represent current cash income. Recognition of this item as a cost of utility plant is in accordance with
regulatory rate practice under which such plant costs are permitted as a component of rate base and the provision for
depreciation .

In accordance with the methodology prescribed by FERC, we utilized aggregate rates (on a before-tax basis) of 6.9% for
2004, 1 .4% for 2003 and 2.4% for 2002, compounded semiannually, in determining AFUDC.

Asset Impairments

We periodically review long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount ofan asset may not be recoverable . To the extent that there is impairment, analysis is performed based on
several criteria, including but not limited to revenue trends, undiscounted forecasted cash flows and other operating factors,
to determine the impairment amount. We performed this analysis at December 31, 2004

Derivatives
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and 2003 and believe that no impairments exist at those dates, including assets related to our non-regulated operations .
Failure to achieve forecasted cash flows could result in an impairment in the future .

Derivatives are required to be recognized on the balance sheet at their fair value. On the date a derivative contract is
entered into, the derivative is designated as (1) a hedge ofa forecasted transaction or of the variability ofcash flows to be
received or paid related to a recognized asset or liability ("cash-flow" hedge), or (2) an instrument that is held for nonhedging
purposes (a "non-hedging" instrument) . Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is highly effective and designated and
qualifies as a cash-flow hedge are recorded in other comprehensive income, until earnings are affected by the variability of
cash flows (e.g ., when periodic settlements on a variable-rate asset or liability are recorded in earnings) . Changes in the fair
value of non-hedged derivative instruments and any ineffective portion ofa qualified hedge are reported in current-period -
earnings,

http://www.sec .gov/Archives/edgar/data/32689/000120677405000338/dl6510 .htm 9/10/2006

Annual Weighted Average Depreciation Rate

Electric fixed assets :
Production plant 2.5%
Transmission plant l .6%
Distribution plant 2.8%
General plant - 5.7%
Water - 3 .0%



We discontinue hedge accounting prospectively when (1) it is determined that the derivative is no longer highly effective
in offsetting changes in cash flows of a hedged item (including forecasted transactions) ; (2) the derivative expires or is sold,
terminated, or exercised; (3) the derivative is de-designated as a non-hedging instrument, because it is unlikely that a
forecasted transaction will occur ; or (4) management determines that designation ofthe derivative as a hedge instrument is no
longer appropriate . (See Note 14.)

Pensions
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Our pension expense or benefit includes amortization of previously unrecognized net gains or losses . The amortized
amount represents the average of gains and loses over the prior five years, with this amount being amortized over five years .
In compliance with SFAS 87, "Employer's Accounting for Pensions", additional gain or expense may be recognized when
our unrecognized gain or loss exceeds 10% ofour pension benefit obligation or fair value ofplan assets . In addition, we
record a liability when the accumulated benefit obligation of the plan exceeds the fair value of the plan assets .

In our most recently approved Missouri Rate Case (effective March 27, 2005), the MPSC ruled the Company would be
allowed to recover pension costs consistent with our GAAP policy noted above except that unrecognized actuarial gains or
losses will now be amortized over a 10 year period . In accordance with the rate order, we will prospectively calculate the
value ofplan assets using the Market Related Value method (as defined in SFAS 87) . This is a change from the policy
approved in the 2002 order, which allowed us to recover pension costs on an ERISA minimum funding (or cash) basis . Prior
to the 2002 order, the MPSC allowed the Company to recover pension costs consistent with our GAAP policy . We had
determined that the differencebetween the ERISA recovery allowed by the MPSC and our accounting for pension costs
under GAAP did not meet the FAS 71 requirements for treatment as a regulatory asset or liability. As a result, we have
continued to account for pension expense or benefits in accordance with SFAS 87, using the previously mentioned
amortization formula for recognizing net gains or losses . We now expect future pension expense or benefits will be fully
recovered or recognized in rates charged to customers .

Postrefrement Benefits

We recognize expense related to postretirement benefits as earned during the employee's period of service . Related assets
and liabilities are established based upon the funded status of the plan compared to the accumulated benefit obligation . Our
expense calculation includes amortization ofpreviously unrecognized net gains or losses . The amortized amount represents
the average ofgains and losses over the prior five years with this amount being amortized over five years. Additional gain or
expense may be recognized when our unrecognized gain or loss exceeds 10% of our postretirement benefit obligation or fair
value of plan assets . In addition, in the third quarter, we adopted FASB staffposition No . 106-2, "Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of2003" . (See "Recently
Issued and Proposed Accounting Standards" below and Note 8 for more discussion .)

	

.

Unamortized Debt Discount, Premium and Expense

Discount, premium and expense associated with long-term debt are amortized over the lives of the related issues . Costs,
including gains and losses, related to refunded long-term debt are amortized over the lives of the related new debt issues, in
accordance with regulatory rate practices .

Liability Insurance

We carry excess liability insurance for workers' compensation and public liability claims . In order to provide for the cost
oflosses not covered by insurance, an allowance for injuries and damages is maintained based on our loss experience . (See
Note I 1 for more detailed information on litigation exposure) .

Franchise Taxes
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Franchise taxes are collected for and remitted to their respective cities and are included in operating revenues and other
taxes in the Consolidated Statements of Income . Franchise taxes of$5,422,000, $5,142,000 and $5,464,000 were recorded for
each of the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively .

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and temporary investments purchased with an initial maturity of three
months or less . It also includes checks and electronic funds transfers that have been issued but have not cleared the bank,
which are also reflected in accounts payable . At December 31, 2004 and 2003, these amounts were $9,957,370 and
$10,232,633, respectively .

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the tax consequences oftransactions that have been treated
differently for financial reporting and tax return purposes, measured using statutory tax rates . (See Note 9).

Investment tax credits utilized in prior years were deferred and are being amortized over the useful lives of the properties
to which they relate. Remaining unamortized investment tax credits are being amortized over lives ranging from 26.5 to 50.0
years .

Computations of Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of connnon shares
outstanding. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding plus the incremental shares that would have been outstanding under the assumed exercise ofdilutive
restricted shares and options . The weighted average number of common shares outstanding used to compute basic earnings
per share for the 2004, 2003 and 2002 periods were 25,467,740, 22,845,952, and 21,433,889, respectively . Additional
dilutive shares for the 2004, 2003 and 2002 periods were 53,223, 7,153, and 3,821, respectively . Potentially dilutive shares
are not expected to have a material impact unless significant appreciation of the Company's stock price occurs .

Stock-Based Compensation

At December 31, 2004,_we had several stock-based compensation plans, which are described in more detail in Note 4 .
During 2002, we adopted SFAS No. 148, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation - Transition and Disclosure - an
Amendment ofSFAS 123" (FAS 148), and elected to adopt the accounting provision of FAS 123 "Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation" (FAS 123) . Under FAS 123, we recognize compensation expense over the vesting period ofall stock
based compensation awards issued subsequent to January 1, 2002 based upon the fair-value of the award as ofthe date of
issuance . (See further discussion in "Recently Issued and Proposed Accounting Standards" below and Note 4 .)

Asset Retirement Obligations
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We account and report for legal obligations associated with the retirement or anticipated retirement oftangible long-lived
assets in accordance with SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for Obligations Associated with the Retirement of Long-Lived
Assets" (FAS 143) . We record the estimated fair value of legal obligations associated with the retirement oftangible long-
lived assets in the period in which the liabilities are incurred and capitalize a corresponding amount as part of the book value
of the related long-lived asset . In subsequent periods, we are required to adjust asset retirement obligations based on changes
in estimated fair value, and the corresponding increases in asset book values are depreciated over the useful life of the related
asset . Uncertainties as to the probability, timing or cash flows associated with an asset retirement obligation affect our
estimate of fair value .
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Upon adoption of FAS 143 on January I, 2003, we identified future asset retirement obligations associated with the
removal of certain river water intake structures and equipment at the Iatan Power Plant, in which we have a 12%a ownership .
We also have a liability for future containment of an ash landfill at the Riverton Power Plant . The potential costs of these
future liabilities are based on engineering estimates of third party costs to remove the assets in satisfaction of the associated
obligations . These liabilities have been estimated as of the expected retirement date, or settlement date, and have been
discounted using a credit adjusted risk-free rate ranging from 5.0% to 5.52% depending on the settlement date. Revisions to
these liabilities could occur due to changes in the cost estimates, anticipated timing ofsettlement or federal or state regulatory
requirements . Upon adoption of this statement in the first quarter of 2003, we recorded a non-recurring discounted liability
and a regulatory asset of approximately $630,000 because we expect to recover these costs of removal in electric rates either
through depreciation accruals or direct expenses . This liability will be accreted over the period up to the estimated settlement
date . The balances at the end of 2004 and 2003 were approximately $690,000 and $656,000, respectively. Also, we
reclassified the accrued cost of dismantling and removing plant from service upon retirement, which is not considered an
asset retirement obligation under FAS 143, from accumulated depreciation to a regulatory liability . This balance sheet
reclassification had no impact on results of operations . As ofDecember 31, 2004 and 2003, the accrual for cost ofremoval
was $17.6 million and $17.9 million, respectively.

Recently Issued and Proposed Accounting Standards

In June 2004, the FASB issued an exposure draft on a proposed interpretation of SEAS No. 143, (FAS 143) "Accounting
for Obligations Associated with the Retirement of Long-Lived Assets" . Under the interpretation, a legal obligation to perform
an asset retirement activity that is conditional on a future event is within the scope of FAS 143 . Accordingly, an entity would
be required to recognize a liability for the fair value of an asset retirement obligation that is conditional on a future event if
the liability's fair value can be estimated reasonably. We are evaluating the effects of the proposed interpretation and cannot
currently predict what effect its adoption will have on our financial condition and results of operation . This proposed
interpretation, as currently drafted, would be effective for us no later than . December 31, 2005 .

In January 2004, FASB Staff Position No . 106-1, "Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare
Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003" was issued . Our postemployment medical plan provides
prescription drug coverage for Medicare-eligible retirees . Our accumulated postrefrement benefit obligation (APBO) and net
cost recognized for other postemployment benefits (OPEB) now reflect the effects of the Medicare Prescription Drug,
Improvement and Modernization Act of2003 (the Act). The Act provides for a federal subsidy, beginning in 2006, of 28% of
prescription drug costs between $250 and $5,000 for each Medicare-eligible retiree who does notjoin Medicare Part D, to
companies whose plans provide prescription drug benefits to their retirees that are "actuarially equivalent" to the prescription
drug benefits provided under Medicare . Equivalency must be certified annually by the Federal Government . This subsidy has
caused a decrease of $6.0 million in the APBO which will be recognized as an actuarial gain and amortized through the FAS
106 post-retirement expense . We elected to defer recognition ofthe effects of the Act until the earlier ofthe issuance of final
accounting guidance or a significant modification ofthe plan . FASB StaffPosition No . 106-2, "Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements Related to the
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Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003", was issued in May 2004 and called for the
subsidy to be generally accounted for in the first annual or interim period starting after June 15, 2004 . We believe that our
plan provides prescription drug benefits that are "actuarially equivalent" to the prescription drug benefits provided under
Medicare and will apply for certification in 2005 . As a result, we adopted FASB StaffPosition No . 106-2 in the third quarter
of 2004, and applied it retroactively, using a measurement date of December 31, 2003 . As a result, we recorded a $0.48
million credit to our FAS 106 post-retirement expense retroactive to January 1, 2004 . This resulted in a reduction to our FAS
106 cost of $0.7 million in 2004 .

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement ofFinancial Accounting Standards No . 123 (revised 2004) "Share-Based
Payments" (FAS 123R) . The statement requires companies to record stock option expense in their financial statements based
on a fair value methodology beginning no later than the first fiscal quarter beginning after June 15, 2005 . During 2002, we
adopted FAS 148, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation- Transition and Disclosure - an Amendment ofSFAS
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123" (FAS 148) and elected to adopt the accounting provisions ofFAS 123 "Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation" (FAS 123) . Under FAS 123, we currently recognize compensation expense over the vesting period of all
stock-based compensation awards issued subsequent to January 1, 2002 based upon the fair-value ofthe award as ofthe date
of issuance . We do not expect to early adopt the provisions of FAS 1238, and do not expect it to have a material impact on
our financial statements upon adoption .

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149 (FAS 149), "Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities" . FAS 149 amends and clarifies the accounting guidance on (1) derivative instruments (including certain
derivative instruments embedded in other contracts) and (2) hedging activities that fall within the scope ofFASB Statement
No . 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" (FAS 133) . FAS 149 is effective (I) for contracts
entered into or modified after June 30, 2003, with certain exceptions, and (2) for hedging relationships designated after June
30, 2003 . The adoption of FAS 149 did not have a material impact on our financial condition and results ofoperations .

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150 (FAS 150), "Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics ofboth Liabilities and Equity" . This statement requires that (1) financial instruments issued in the form of
mandatorily redeemable shares, (2) financial instruments that, at inception, represent an obligation to repurchase the issuer's
shares or are an obligation indexed to the price of the company's shares, and (3) financial instruments that embody an
unconditional obligation, or a conditional obligation for an instrument other than an outstanding share, that the issuer must or
may settle by issuing a variable number of equity shares, be classified as liabilities if, at inception, the monetary value is
based on (I) a fixed amount, (2) variations in something other than the fair value of the issuer's shares or (3) variations
inversely related to the fair value ofthe issuer's shares . We adopted the required provisions ofFAS 150 on July 1, 2003 and
the adoption did not materially impact our financial statements .

The FASB issued FASB Interpretation No . 46-R, "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities" (FIN No. 46-R), in
December 2003, which addressed the requirements for consolidating certain variable interest entities. FIN No. 46-R applied
immediately to variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003. FIN No. 46-R applies to all other variable interest
entities as of March 31, 2004, or, in the case ofspecial purpose entities, December 31, 2003. Empire District Trust 1, a
securitization trust subsidiary of Empire created in March 2001, was consolidated within our financial statements prior to the
adoption of FIN No. 46-R . As a result of the application of FIN No. 46-R, we have deconsolidated this securitization trust as
of December 31, 2003. Amounts of $50 million owed to this securitization trust were recorded within the Consolidated
Balance Sheet at December 31, 2004 and 2003 .

In July 2003, the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) reached a consensus on EITF Issue No . 03-11, "Reporting Realized
Gains and Losses on Derivative Instruments that are Subject to FASB Statement No . 133, "Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,' and Not "Held for Trading Purposes' as defined in EITF Issue No . 02-3 "Issues
Involved in Accounting for Derivative Contracts Held for Trading Purposes and Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and
Risk Management Activities'," (EITF 03-11) which was ratified by the FASB in August 2003 and was effective for the
Company on October 1, 2001 The EITF concluded that determining whether realized

2 .

	

Property, Plant and Equipment
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gains and losses on physically settled derivative contracts not "held for trading purposes" should be reported in the income
statement on a gross or net basis is a matter ofjudgment that depends on the relevant facts and circumstances . The adoption
ofEITF 03-11 did not have an impact on our Consolidated Statements of Income .

In December 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 132 (revised) to improve financial statement disclosures for defined
benefit plans . The standard requires more details about plan assets, benefit obligations, cash flows, benefit costs and other
relevant information . SFAS No. 132 (revised) became effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2003 . See Note 8
- Retirement Benefits for further information .
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Regulatory Matters

Rate Increases
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The following table sets forth information regarding electric and water rate increases granted during the four year period
ended December 31, 2004 :
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tin thousands)

As of

2004

December 31,

2003

Electric plant:
Production $ 501,678 $ 501,076
Transmission 173,233 170,276
Distribution 481,179 459,096
General 54,788 51,707
Electric plant t,210,878 . 1,182,155

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 398,191 373,128
Electric plant net of depreciation and amortization 812,687 809,027

Construction work in progress 8,567 5,598
Electric plant 821,254 814,625

Electric plant and property -other
(Net of depreciation and amortization) 10,469 9,256

Water plant 9,201 8,801
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 2,579 2,503
Water plant net ofdepreciation and amortization 6,622 6,298

Construction work in progress 21 2
Net water plant 6,643 6,300

Non-regulated:
Fiber 16,742 15,069
Non-regulated property 6,927 6,036

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 5,065 3,569
Non-regulated net of depreciation and amortization 18,604 17,536

Construction work in progress 65 241
Net non-regulated property 18,669 17,777
Net plant and property $ 857,035 $ 847,958

Jurisdiction
Date

Requested

Annual
Increase
Granted

Percent
Increase
Granted

Date
Effective

Missouri- Electric November 3, 2000 $17,100,000 8.40% October 2, 2001
Missouri-Electric March 8, 2002 11,000,000 4.97% December 1, 2002
Missouri-Electric April 30, 2004 25,705,500 9.96% March 27, 2005
Missouri- Water May 15, 2002 358,000 33.70% December 23, 2002
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The 2001 Missouri electric order approved an annual Interim Energy Charge, or IEC, of approximately $19.6 million
effective October 1, 2001 and expiring two years later, which was collected subject to refund (with interest) . The 2002
Missouri electric order called for us to refund all funds collected under the IEC, with interest, by March 15, 2003 . The
refunds were made in the first quarter of 2003 and did not have a material impact on our earnings in any of the years from
2001 through 2003 .

On March 4, 2003, we filed a request with the OCC for an annual increase in base rates for our Oklahoma electric
customers in the amount of $954,540, or 12.97% . On August 1, 2003, a Unanimous Stipulation and Agreement was approved
by'the OCC providing an annual increase in rates for our Oklahoma customers of approximately $766,500 or 10 .99%,
effective for bills rendered on or after August l, 2003 . This reflects a rate of return on equity (ROE) of 11 .27% .

On March 17, 2003, we filed a request with the FERC for an annual increase in base rates for our on-system wholesale
electric customers in the amount of $1,672,000, or 14.0°/x . This increase was approved by the FERC on April 25, 2003, with
the new rates becoming effective May 1, 2003 .

On April 30, 2004, we filed a request with the MPSC for an annual increase in base rates for our Missouri electric
customers in the amount of $38,282,294, or 14.82% . As part ofthe filing, we asked the MPSC to consider, in addition to a
traditional ratemaking approach, two options that would allow us to recover our actual fuel and purchased power expenses :
an IEC, subject to refund, similar to the one approved in our 2001 case, or a fuel,adjustment clause, that would reflect actual
fuel prices . We subsequently abandoned our request for a fuel adjustment clause due to Missouri statutes not providing for
such clauses but retained our request for the IEC, subject to refund . We also asked for a return on equity (ROE) of 11 .65%
and an annual increase in Missouri depreciation expense of approximately $10 million .

On May 20, 2004, we filed a request with the MPSC to implement the proposed IEC no later than June 15, 2004 .
However, the MPSC denied this request on August 12, 2004 . On September 20, 2004, the Staffof the MPSC filed direct
testimony in response to our initial April 2004 filing recommending an IEC be adopted for a period of 24 months, due to the
extreme volatility currently exhibited by natural gas prices. We completed two weeks of evidentiary hearings during
December 2004 . Items that were covered during the hearings were : ROE, depreciation, base fuel and purchased power costs
and the term and amount of an IEC . On February 22, 2005, we, the Office of Public Counsel (OPC) and two intervenors filed
a Nonunanimous Stipulation and Agreement Regarding Fuel and Purchased Power Expense establishing a three year
refundable IEC, which became unanimous by operation of Commission rule on March 1, 2005 .

Prior to the hearings, we were able to settle several miscellaneous issues with other parties to the case . On December 22,
2004, we, the MPSC Staff, the OPC and two intervenors filed a unanimous Stipulation and Agreement
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as to Certain Issues with the MPSC settling several of these issues . One of the issues we were able to agree on was a change
in the recognition of pension costs . See Note I - "Pensions" and Note 8 - "Retirement Benefits - Pensions"

The MPSC issued a final order on March 10, 2005 approving an annual increase in base rates of approximately $25 .7
million, or 9.96%, effective March 27, 2005. The order granted us a return on equity of 11%, an increase in depreciation rates
and an increase in base rates for fuel and purchased power at $24.68/MWH. In addition, the order approved an annual Interim
Energy Charge (IEC) of approximately $8.2 million effective March 27, 2005 and expiring three years later. The IEC is
$0.0021 per kilowatt hour of customer usage. The recent extraordinarily high natural gas prices and extreme volatility of
natural gas led the MPSC to allow forecasted fuel costs to be used rather than the traditional historical costs in determining
the fuel portion ofthe rate increase. At the end oftwo years, the excess money collected from customers, if any, above $10
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Kansas - Electric December 28, 2001 2,539,000 17.87% July 1, 2002
FERC-Electric March 17, 2003 1,672,000 14.00% May 1, 2003
Oklahoma- Electric March 4, 2003 766,500 10.99% August 1, 2003



million of the greater of the actual and prudently incurred costs or the base cost of fuel and purchased power set in rates,
will be refunded to the customers with interest equal to the current prime rate at that time . At the end ofthe three year term of
the IEC all excess money collected from customers, if any, of the greater ofthe actual and prudently incurred costs or the
base cost of fuel and purchased power set in rates, will be refunded to the customers with interest equal to the current prime
rate at that time .

On July 14, 2004, we filed a request with the APSC for an annual increase in base rates for our Arkansas electric
customers in the amount of $1,428,225, or 22.1% . Any new rates approved as a result of this request are not expected to be
effective until the second quarter of2005.

On March 2, 2005, we notified the Kansas Corporation Commission of our intent to file an application requesting a
change in base rates for our Kansas electric customers . We plan to file this application in the second quarter of 2005 .

Rate Matters

In accordance with FAS No. 71, we currently have deferred approximately $1,227,000 of expense related to rate cases
under other non-current assets and deferred charges . $1,092,000 is directly related to the current Missouri rate case . We
amortize this amount over varying periods upon the completion of the specific case . As of December 31, 2004 the full
amount of the expense related to the current Missouri case is unamortized . Based on past history, we expect this expense to
be recovered in rates .

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

Deregulation
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We have recorded the following regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities. The regulatory income tax assets and
liabilities are generally amortized over the average depreciable life of the related assets . The loss and gain on reacquired debt
and the interest rate derivatives are amortized over the life of the new debt issue, which currently ranges from 9 to 28 years .
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December

2004

31,

2003

Regulatory assets
Income taxes $27,627,645 $29,001,556
Unamortized loss on reacquired debt 17,322,028 18,635,756
Unamortized loss on interest rate derivative 2,258,192 2,526,491
Asbury five-year maintenance - 1,182,198 1,747,067
Other postretirement benefits (Note 8) 3,177,574 3,583,860
Asset retirement obligation 559,625 482,765
Total regulatory assets $52,127,262 $55,977,495

Regulatory liabilities
Income taxes $ 7,694,694 $ 8,723,449
Unamortized gain on interest rate derivative 4,901,018 5,070,995
Costs ofremoval 17,629,308 17,892,079
Total regulatory liabilities $30,225,020 $31,686,523



Although we believe it unlikely, should retail electric competition legislation be passed in the states we serve, we may
determine that we no longer meet the criteria set forth in FAS 71 with respect to continued recognition of some or all ofthe
regulatory assets and liabilities. Any regulatory changes that would require us to discontinue application ofFAS 71 based
upon competitive or other events may also impact the valuation ofcertain utility plant investments . Impairment of regulatory
assets or utility plant investments could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations .

Federal regulation has promoted and is expected to continue to promote competition in the wholesale electric utility
industry. However, none of the states in our service territory has legislation that could require competitive retail pricing to be
put into effect . The Arkansas Legislature passed a bill in April 1999 that called for deregulation of the state's electricity
industry as early as January 2002 . However, a law was passed in February 2003 repealing deregulation in the state of
Arkansas .

Regional Transmission Organization

In December 1999, the FERC issued Order No. 2000 which encourages the development of regional transmission
organizations (RTOs) . RTOs are designed to independently control the wholesale transmission services of the utilities in their
regions thereby facilitating open and more competitive bulk power markets . On October 15, 2003, the Southwest Power Pool
(SPP) announced it had filed with the FERC seeking formal recognition as an RTO in accordance with FERC Order 2000,
and on February 10, 2004, the FERC approved the SPP RTO with conditions . Upon completion of the conditions, the SPP
would gain status and FERC acceptance as an RTO. On October 4, 2004, the FERC granted RTO status to the SPP and
ordered the SPP to resolve rate . "pancaking" (accumulation of multiple access charges) concerns and assure the independence
of its proposed market monitor as conditions of the decision. FERC also ordered SPP to finalize a joint operating agreement
with Midwest Independent Transmission System Operator, Inc . (MISO) . These conditions have been addressed and the SPP
is now operating as an RTO .

4 .

	

Common Stock

New Issuances
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We are a member ofthe SPP . In October 2003, we filed a notice of intent with the SPP for the right to withdraw from the
SPP effective October 3l, 2004 because of uncertainty surrounding the treatment from the states regarding RTO participation
and cost recoveries . Such withdrawal requires approval from the FERC. We retained the option, however, to rescind such
notice on or before October 31, 2004 and remain a member of the SPP, which we did on October 25, 2004. At the same time,
we filed a new notice ofintent with the SPP for the right to withdraw from the SPP effective October 31, 2005 . We will be
seeking authorization from Missouri, Kansas and Arkansas to participate in and transfer functional control ofour
transmission facilities to the SPP RTO should we decide to remain a member . As part of the applications to the
aforementioned states, a formal independent SPP RTO Cost Benefit Analysis (CBA) will be submitted . It is anticipated that
the completion ofthe CBA will be finalized by of before April 2005 . We are unable to quantify the potential impact of
membership in the RTO on our future financial position, results of operation or cash flows at this time, but will continue to
evaluate the situation and make a decision whether or not to discontinue membership with the SPP .

On December 17,2003, we sold 2,000,000 shares.of our common stock in an underwritten public offering for $21 .15 per
share . On January 8, 2004, we sold an additional 300,000 shares to cover the underwriters' over-allotments . The December
sale resulted in proceeds of approximately $40,275,000, net of issuance costs of $2,025,000 . The January sales resulted in
proceeds of approximately $6,075,000 net of issuance costs .

On May 22, 2002, we sold 2,500,000 shares of our common stock in an underwritten public offering for $20.75 per share .
This sale resulted in proceeds of approximately $49,433,000, net of issuance costs of $2,442,000.

Stock-Based Awards and Programs
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We have several stock based awards and programs, which are described below. During 2002, we adopted SFAS No. 148,
"Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation- Transition and Disclosure- an Amendment ofSFAS 123" (FAS 148), and
elected to adopt the accounting provision of FAS 123 "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation". Under FAS 123, we
recognize compensation expense over the vesting period of all stock-based compensation awards issued subsequent to
January l, 2002 based upon the fair-value of the award as of the date of issuance . This applies to our employee stock
purchase plan and our stock incentive plan.

Stock compensation expense relative to all of our stock based awards and programs was approximately $2.1 million, $1 .1
million, and $1.0 million in 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.

	

.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Our Employee Stock Purchase Plan permits the grant to eligible employees of options to purchase common stock at 90%
of the lower ofmarket value at date of grant or at date of exercise. There are 100,953 shares available for issuance in this
plan .

Stock Incentive Plan

Stock Incentive Plan - Restricted Stock Awards
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Our 1996 Incentive Plan (the Stock Incentive Plan) provides for the grant of up to 650,000 shares ofcommon stock
through January 2006. The Stock Incentive Plan permits grants ofstock options and restricted stock to qualified employees
and permits Directors to receive common stock in lieu of cash compensation for service as a Director . The number of shares
issued to directors in lieu of fees were :

2004 2003 2002

6,537 6,623 5,071

The terms and conditions of any option or stock grant are determined by the Board ofDirectors' Compensation
Committee, within the provisions of the Stock . Incentive Plan . The other components of this Stock Incentive Plan are
described below . At December 31, 2004, there were 610,547 shares available for issuance under this plan .

During February 2002 and February 2001, awards of restricted stock were made to qualified employees under the Stock
Incentive Plan . For grants made to date, the restrictions typically lapse and the shares are issuable to employees who continue
in service with us three years from the date of grant . For employees whose service is terminated by death, retirement,
disability, or under certain circumstances following a change in control ofthe Company prior to the restrictions lapsing, the
shares are issuable immediately upon such termination . For other terminations, the grant is forfeited . No restricted shares
were granted in 2004 or 2003 nor are any expected to be granted in future periods .

2004 2003 2002
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2004 2003 2002

Subscriptions outstanding at December 31 44,901 38,400 40,574
Maximum subscription price $ 18 .00 $ 19.03 $ 17.91
Shares ofstock issued 37,105 40,121 43,696
Stock issuance price $ 18.02 $ 17.91 $ 17.73



Restricted shares awarded

	

-

	

-

	

2,669
Common stock issued upon vesting of restricted shares

	

223

	

138

	

2,881

Stock Incentive Plan - Performance-Based Restricted Stock Awards

Beginning in 2002, performance-based restricted stock awards were granted to qualified individuals consisting of the
right to receive a number ofshares of common stock at the end of the restricted period assuming performance criteria are
met. The performance measure for the award is the total return to our shareholders over a three-year period compared with an
investor-owned utility peer group .

Performance-based stock awards granted

	

26,200

	

30,200

	

37,800

Stock Incentive Plan -Stock Options

Stock options are issued with an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the shares on the date of grant, become
exercisable after three years and expire ten years after the date granted . Participants' options that are not vested become
forfeited when participants leave Empire except for terminations of employment under certain specified circumstances.
Dividend equivalent awards were also issued to the recipients of the stock options under which dividend equivalents will be
accumulated for the three-year period until the option becomes exercisable and will then be converted to restricted shares of
our common stock based on the fair market value of the shares on the date converted . Such restricted shares vest on the
eighth anniversary of the grant of the dividend equivalent award or, ifearlier, upon exercise of the related option in full . The
restricted shares are subject to forfeiture if the related option terminates without having been exercised in full prior to the
vesting of these shares .

Presented below is a summary of stock option plan activity for the years shown :
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The range of exercise prices for the options outstanding at December 31, 2004 was $18.25 to $21.79 . The Weighted-
average remaining contractual life of outstanding options at December 31, 2004 and 2003 was 8 .1 years and 8 .6 years,
respectively . The fair value ofthe options granted, which is amortized to expense over the option vesting period, has been
determined on the date ofgrant using the Expanded Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions :
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2004

Options

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

2003

Options

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

2002

Options

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Outstanding, beginning of year 118,900 $19 .83 69,700 $20.95 - -
Granted 54,200 $21 .79 49,200 $18 .25 69,700 $20.95
Exercised
Forfeited
Outstanding, end of year 173,100 $20 .45 118,900 $19.83 69,700 $20.95
Exercisable, end of year



Our Stock Unit Plan for directors (Stock Unit Plan) provides a stock-based retirement compensation program for
Directors . This plan enhances our ability to attract and retain competent and experienced directors and allows the directors
the opportunity to accumulate retirement benefits in the form ofcommon stock units . The Stock Unit Plan also provides
directors the opportunity to convert previously earned cash retirement benefits to common stock units . As ofDecember 31,
2004, all eligible Directors who had benefits under the prior cash retirement plan have converted their cash retirement
benefits to common stock units .

A total of 200,000 shares are authorized under this plan . Each common stock unit earns dividends in the form of common
stock units and can be redeemed for shares ofcommon stock upon retirement by the Director. The number of units granted
annually is computed by dividing an annual credit (determined by the Compensation Committee) by the fair market value of
our common stock on January 1 ofthe year the units are granted . Common stock unit dividends are computed based on the
fair market value of our stock on the dividend's record date . We record the related compensation expense at the time we
make the accrual for the Directors' retirement benefits as the Directors provide services . At December 31, 2004 there were
58,528 shares accrued to Directors' accounts and 164,266 shares available for issuance under this plan .

401(k) Plan and ESOP
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Our Employee 46l(k) Plan and ESOP (the 401(k) Plan) allows participating employees to defer up to 25% of their annual
compensation up to an Internal Revenue Service specified limit . We match 50% ofeach employee's deferrals by contributing
shares of our common stock, such matching contributions not to exceed 3% of the employee's eligible compensation. We
record the compensation expense at the time the quarterly matching contributions are made to the plan . At December 3l,
2004 there were 186,091 shares available to be issued.

2004 2003 2002

Shares contributed

	

40,741

	

41,878

	

40,026

Dividends
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Expected life of option 10 years 10 years 10 years
Risk-free interest rate 3.96% 4.07% 4.85%
Expected volatility of Empire stock 18 .80% 26.40% 21 .60%
Expected dividend yield on Empire stock0l 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Fair value of each option granted during year $4.78 $4.99 $5.05

(1) Reflects the existence of dividend equivalents .

Stock Unit Plan for Directors

2004 2003 2002

Units granted for service 13,798 7,099 6,466
Units granted for dividends 3,511 3,748 3,879
Units redeemed for common stock 18,663 8,914 8,158



Holders ofour common stock are entitled to dividends, if, as and when declared by our Board of Directors out of funds
legally available therefore subject to the prior rights of holders ofour outstanding cumulative preferred and preference stock .
Our indenture ofmortgage and deed of trust governing our first mortgage bonds restricts our ability to pay dividends on our
common stock. In addition, under certain circumstances (including defaults thereunder), Junior Subordinated Debentures, 8-
1/2% Series due 2031, reflected as a note payable to securitization trust on our balance sheet, held by Empire District Electric
Trust I, an unconsolidated securitization trust subsidiary, may also restrict our ability to pay dividends on our common stock .

5.

	

Preferred and Preference Stock

We have 2,500,000 shares of preference stock authorized, including 500,000 shares of Series A Participating Preference
Stock, none of which have been issued. We have 5,000,000 shares of $10.00 par value cumulative preferred stock authorized .
There was no preferred stock issued and outstanding at December 31, 2004 or 2003 .

Preference Stock Purchase Rights

Our shareholder rights plan provides each of the common stockholders one Preference Stock Purchase Right ("Right") for
each share ofcommon stock owned . Each Right enables the holder to acquire one one-hundredth of a share of Series A
Participating Preference Stock (or, under certain circumstances, other securities) at a price of $75 per one one-hundredth
share, subject to adjustment . The Rights (other than those held by an acquiring person or group (Acquiring Person)), which
expire July 25, 2010, will be exercisable only if an Acquiring Person acquires 10% or more of our common stock or ifcertain
other events occur. The Rights may be redeemed by us in whole, but not in part, for $0.01 per Right, prior to 10 days after the
first public announcement of the acquisition of 10% or more ofout common stock by an Acquiring Person. We had
25,637,443 and 24,915,722 Rights outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

In addition, upon the occurrence ofa merger or other business combination, or an event of the type referred to in the
preceding paragraph, holders of the Rights, other than an Acquiring Person, will be entitled, upon exercise ofa Right, to
receive either our common stock or common stock of the Acquiring Person having a value equal to two times the exercise
price of the Right. Any time after an Acquiring Person acquires 10% or more (but less than 50%) of our outstanding common
stock, our Board of Directors may, at their option, exchange part or all ofthe Rights (other than Rights held by the Acquiring
Person) for our common stock on a one-for-one basis .
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6. Long-Term Debt

At December 31, 2004 and 2003 the balance oflong-term debt outstanding was as follows :

2004 2003

Note payable to securitization trusth) $ 50,000,000 $ 50,000,000
First mortgage bonds :
7.60% Series due 2005 10,000,000 10,000,000
8-118% Series due 2009 20,000,000 20,000,000
6-1/2% Series due 2010 50,000,000 50,000,000
7.20% Series due 2016 25,000,000 25,000,000
7-3/4% Series due 2025(2 ) 30,000,000 30,000,000
5.3% Pollution Control Series due 2013(3 ) 8,000,000 8,000,000
5.2% Pollution Control Series due 2013( 3 ) 5,200,000 5,200,000

148,200,000 148,200,000

Senior Notes, 7.05% Series due 202213) 49,942,000 49,942,000
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Represented by our Junior Subordinated Debentures, 8 -1/2% Series due 2031 .
We may redeem some or all of the notes at any time on or after June 1, 2005 at 100°/a of their principal amount plus a
premium, plus accred and unpaid interest to the redemption date . The premium at June 1, 2005 is 3.875% and will
decline ratably to zero at June 1, 2015 .
We may redeem some or all of the notes at any time at 100% of their principal amount, plus accred and unpaid interest
to the redemption date .
We may redeem some or all of the notes at any time at 100% of their principal amount, plus a make-whole premium,
plus accred and unpaid interest to the redemption date .
EDE Holdings is the guarantor of 50.01% (25% at December 31, 2004) ofa $2.7 million secured long-term note payable
of Mid-America Precision Products (MAPP) . Although our guarantee had been towered to 25% at January 1, 2004,
MAPP's loan covenants have been revised as part of curing their violation ofcertain financial covenants at December
31, 2004 . As a result of these revisions, as of January 1, 2005, we are once again a 50.01% guarantor. Fast Freedom is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of EDE holdings and is the resulting company ofthe merger of Transaeris and Joplin .com . The
February 2003 purchase of Joplin.com was partially financed through long-terns notes payable to the previous owners .
The 2004 current obligations of these notes are included in the current obligations of long-term debt .

On March I, 2001, Empire District Electric Trust I (Trust) issued 2,000,000 shares of its 8-1/2% Trust Preferred
Securities (liquidation amount $25 per preferred security) in a public underwritten offering . Holders of the trust preferred
securities are entitled to receive distributions at an annual rate of 8-1/2% of the $25 per share liquidation amount . Quarterly
payments of dividends by the trust, as well as payments ofprincipal, are made from cash received
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from corresponding payments made by us on $50,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 8-1/2% Junior Subordinated
Debentures due March 1, 2031, issued by us to the trust and held by the trust as assets . Interest payments on the debentures
are tax deductible by us . We have effectively guaranteed the payments due on the outstanding trust preferred securities . The
Junior Subordinated Debentures are shown as "Note payable to securitization trust" on our balance sheet . In connection with
the deconsolidation, we recorded our $1,550,000 investment in the Trust and a corresponding note payable to the Trust for
the investment .

As discussed above, at January I, 2005, EDE Holdings is the guarantor for 50.01% of a $2.7 million note issued by Mid-
America Precision Products (MAPP). This is fully consolidated in our balance sheet as EDE Holdings owns 50.01% of
MAPP. EDE Holdings also guarantees 50.01% ofMAPP's revolving short-term credit facility of $0.85 million, of which
$0 .8 million is outstanding at year end and consolidated within our financial statements . We have no other guarantees .

The principal amount of all series of first mortgage bonds outstanding at any one time is limited by terms of the mortgage
to $1,000,000,000 . Substantially all of The Empire District Electric Company's property, plant and equipment is subject to
the lien ofthe mortgage . The indenture governing our first mortgage bonds contains a requirement that for new first mortgage
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Senior Notes, 4-1/2% Series due 2013(4 1 98,000,000 98,000,000
Senior Notes, 6.70% Series due 2033(4) 62,000,000 62,000,000
Long-term debt- Mid-America Precision Products(') 2,732,895 3,076,824
Long-term debt-Fast Freedom(') 275,355 299,809
Obligations under capital lease 362,254 503,211
Less unamortized net discount (893,983) (994,528)

410,618,521 411,027,316
Less current obligations of long-term debt (10,462,211) (429,140)
Less current obligations under capital lease (239,684 ) (205,556 )
Total long-term debt $399,916,626 $410,392,620



Payments Due by Period (in millions)
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bonds to be issued, our net earnings (as defined in the mortgage) for any twelve consecutive months within the 15 months
preceding issuance must be two times the annual interest requirements (as defined in the mortgage) on all first mortgage
bonds then outstanding and on the prospective issue of new first mortgage bonds . Our earnings for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2004 would permit us to issue $172.2 million of new first mortgage bonds based on this test, with an assumed
interest rate of 7%. In addition to the interest coverage requirement, the mortgage provides that new bonds must be issued
against, among. other things, retired bonds or 60% of net property additions . At December 31, 2004, we had retired bonds and
net property additions which would enable the issuance of at least $401 .1 million principal amount ofbonds if the annual
interest requirements are met . We are in compliance with all restrictive covenants of our first mortgage bonds debt
agreements .

On December 23, 2002, we sold to thepublic in an underwritten offering $50 million aggregate principal amount of our
unsecured Senior Notes, 7.05% Series due 2022 which mature on December 15, 2022 . The net proceeds of approximately
$48.6 million were added to our general funds and used to repay short-term debt .

On June 17, 2003, we sold to the public in anunderwritten offering, $98 million aggregate principal amount of our
unsecured Senior Notes, 4.5% Series due 2013, for net proceeds ofapproximately $96.6 million. We used the net proceeds
from this issuance, along with short-term debt, to redeem all $100 million aggregate principal amount of our Senior Notes,
7.70% Series due 2004 for approximately $109.8 million, including interest. We had entered into an interest rate derivative
contract in May 2003 to hedge against the risk ofa rise in interest rates impacting the 2013 Notes prior to their issuance .
Costs associated with the interest rate derivative (primarily due to interest rate fluctuations) amounted to approximately $2.7
million and were capitalized as a regulatory asset and are being amortized over the life ofthe 2013 Notes, along with the $9:1
million redemption premium paid on the Senior Notes, 7.70% Series due 2004 .

On November 3, 2003, we issued $62.0 million aggregate principal amount of Senior Notes, 6 .70% Series due 2033 for
net proceeds ofapproximately $61 .0 million . We used the proceeds from this issuance, along with short-term debt, to redeem
three separate series of our outstanding first mortgage bonds : (1) all $225 million aggregate principal amount of our First
Mortgage Bonds, 9-3/4% Series due 2020 for approximately $2.4 million, including interest ; (2) all $13 .1 million aggregate
principal amount of our First Mortgage Bonds, 7-1/4% Series due 2028 for approximately $13 .7 million, including interest;
and (3) all $45 .0 million aggregate principal amount of our First Mortgage Bonds, 7% Series due 2023 for approximately
$46.8 million, including interest . The $1 .7 million aggregate redemption premiums paid in connection with the redemption of
these first mortgage bonds, together with $1 .1 million of remaining unamortized issuance costs and discounts on the
redeemed first mortgage bonds, were recorded as a regulatory asset and are being amortized as interest expense over the life
ofthe 2033 Notes . On May 16, 2003, we entered into an interest rate derivative contract with an outside counterparty to
hedge against

the risk of a rise in interest rates impacting the 2033 Notes prior to their issue . Upon issuance ofthe 2033 Notes, the realized
gain of $5.1 million from the derivative contract was recorded as a regulatory liability and is being amortized over the life of
the debt to reduce interest expense.

The carrying amount ofour total debt exclusive of capital leases was $411,150,250 and $411,518,633 at December 31,
2004 and 2003, respectively, and its fair market value was estimated to be approximately $425,235,358 and $421,074,341,
respectively . These estimates were based on the quoted market prices for the same or similar issues or on the current rates
offered to us for debt ofthe same remaining maturities . The estimated fair market value may not represent the actual value
that could have been realized as of year-end or that will be realizable in the future .

Long-Term Debt Payout Schedule

	

Less than

	

1-3

	

3-5

	

More than
(Excluding Unamortized Discount)

	

Total

	

1 Year

	

Years

	

Years

	

5 Years

Note payable to securitization trust

	

$ 50.0

	

$

	

-

	

$-

	

$

	

-

	

$ 50.0
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7.

	

Short-term Borrowings

Short-term commercial paper outstanding and notes payable averaged $1,423,497 and $42,842,666 daily during 2004 and
2003 respectively, with the highest month-end balances being $8,500,000 and $74,350,000, respectively . The weighted
average interest rates during 2004 and 2003 was 1 .4% in each period . The weighted average interest rates of borrowings
outstanding at December 31, 2003 were 1.4% . At December 31, 2004, we had no commercial paper outstanding .

On October 22, 2004, we extended our $100 million unsecured revolving credit facility until May 31, 2006 . Borrowings
are at the bank's prime commercial rate or LIBOR plus 100 basis points based on our current credit ratings and the pricing
schedule in the line ofcredit facility . The credit facility is used for working capital, general corporate purposes and to back-
up our use of commercial paper . This facility requires our total indebtedness (which does not include our note payable to the
securitization trust) to be less than 62.5% of our total capitalization at the end of each fiscal quarter and our EBITDA
(defined as net income plus interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and certain other non-cash charges) to be at least two
times our interest charges (which includes interest on the note payable to the securitization trust) for the trailing four fiscal
quarters at the end of each fiscal quarter . Failure to maintain these ratios will result in an event of default under the credit
facility and will prohibit us from borrowing funds thereunder. As of December 31, 2004, we are in compliance with these
ratios . This credit facility is also subject to cross-default ifwe default on in excess of $5,000,000 in the aggregate on our
other indebtedness . This arrangement does not serve to legally restrict the use of our cash in the normal course of operations .
There were no outstanding borrowings under this agreement at December 31, 2004 and 2003 .

8 .

	

Retirement Benefits

Pensions
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Our noncontributory defined benefit pension plan includes all employees meeting minimum age and service
requirements . The benefits are based on years of service and the employee's average annual basic earnings . Annual
contributions to the plan are at least equal to the minimum funding requirements of ERISA . Plan assets consist ofcommon
stocks, United States government obligations, federal agency bonds, corporate bonds and commingled trust funds .

We expect there will be no contribution required under ERISA in order to maintain minimum funding levels in 2005 .
This could change, however, based on actual investment performance, any future pension plan funding and finalization of
actuarial assumptions . At December 31, 2004, there was no minimum pension liability required to be recorded .

Our pension expense or benefit includes amortization ofpreviously unrecognized actuarial net gains or losses . Through
2004, the amortized amount represents the average ofgains and losses over the prior five years, with this amount being
amortized over five years subject to minimum amortization requirements in accordance with the provisions ofSFAS 87,
"Employers' Accounting for Pensions" (FAS 87) . Pursuant to the 2004 Missouri rate case, approved March 10, 2005, these
gains or losses will be amortized over a 10 year period. Also, in accordance with the rate order, we will prospectively
calculate the value of plan assets using the Market Related Value method (as defined in FAS 87) . This is a change from the
policy approved in our 2002 order. As a result ofthe approved order, we expect our future pension expense to be fully
recovered or recognized in rates charged to customers .

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/32689/000120677405000338/dl6510 .htm 9/10/2006

Regulated entity debt obligations 358 .1 10.0 - 20.0 328.1
Capital lease obligations 0.4 0.3 0.1 - -
Non-regulated debt obligations 3.0 0.5 2 .5 - -
Total long-term debt obligations $411 .5 $10.8 _$2.6 $20.0 $378.1

Less current obligations and
unamortized discount 11.6
Total long-term debt $399.9



Risks and uncertainties affecting the application of this accounting policy include : future rate ofreturn on plan assets,
interest rates used in valuing benefit obligations (i .e . discount rates), demographic assumptions (i .e . mortality and retirement
rates), and employee compensation trend rates .

The following table sets forth the plan's projected benefit obligation, the fair value ofthe plan's assets and its funded
status :
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Reconciliation ofProjected Benefit Obligations:

2004 2003 2002

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 97,958,815 $87,474,547 $78,291,337
Service cost 2,758,833 2,518,954 2,190,415
Interest cost 6,146,270 5,827,520 5,601,019
Plan amendments - 503,251 -
Netactuarial loss 12,281,639 6,750,127 6,401,833
Benefits and expenses paid (5,434,468) (5,115,584) (5,010,057)
Benefit obligation at end ofyear $113,711,089 $97,958,815 $87,474,547

Reconciliation ofFair Value ofPlan Assets:

2004 2003 2002

Fair value ofplan assets at beginning of year $90,311,661 $78,217,601 $92,138,446
Actual return on plan assets gain/(loss) 10,681,237 17,209,644 (8,910,788)
Employer contribution 342,348 - -
Benefits paid (5,434,468) (5,115,584) (5,010,057)
Fair value ofplan assets at end of year $95,900,778 $90,311,661 $78,217,601

Reconciliation of Funded Status:

2004 2003 2002

Fair value of plan assets $ 95,900,778 $ 90,311,661 $ 78,217,601
Projected Benefit obligations (113,711,089) (97,958,815) (87,474,547 )
Funded status (17,810,311) (7,647,154) (9,256,946)

Our expected benefit payments from our pension trust, (in millions) are as follows :

2005 $ 5.5
2006 $ 5.8
2007 $ 6.0
2008 $ 6.3
2009 $ 7.0
2010-2014 $37.0



Net Periodic Pension Benefit Cost/(Income)
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Unrecognized prior service cost

	

2,619,681

	

3,175,355

	

3,227,779
Unrecognized net actuarial loss

	

29,164,457

	

21,003,931

	

26,314,821
Prepaid pension cost

	

$

	

13,973,827

	

$ 16,532,132

	

$ 20,285,654

At December 31, 2004, our accumulated benefit obligation was $94,850,123 and our plan asset value was $95,900,778 .
Therefore, a minimum pension liability has not been recorded.

Our net periodic benefit cost/(income), (related to the application of FAS 87), net of tax, as a percentage of net income for
2004, 2003 and 2002, was 6 .80%, 6.59% and (6.87%), respectively .

Net periodic benefit pension costl(income), some ofwhich is capitalized as a component of labor cost, for 2004, 2003 and
2002, is comprised of the following components:

Measurement date

	

1213112004

	

1213112003

Weighted average discount rate

	

5.75%

	

6.25%
Rate of increase in compensation levels

	

4.25%

	

4.25%

Allocation ofPlan Assets
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The expected long-term rate of return assumption was based on historical returns and adjusted to estimate the potential
range ofreturns for the current asset allocation .

%ofFair Vai.e as of December 31

2004 2003

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/32689/000120677405000338/dl6510 .htm 9/10/2006

2004 2003 2002

Service cost - benefits earned during the period $ 2,758,833 $ 2,518,954 $ 2,190,415
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 6,146,270 5,827,520 5,601,019
Expected return on plan assets (7,455,120) (6,422,995) (8,048,645)
Amortization of:

Prior service cost 555,674 555,675 519,431
Actuarial (gain)/loss 894,996 1,274,368 (3,352,843)
Unrecognized transition (asset) - - (491,158)

Net periodic pension cost/(income) $ 2,900,653 -T3-,753,522 $ 3,581,781)

Assumptions used to determine Year EndBenefit Obligation

Assumptions used to determine Net Periodic Pension Benefit Cosfl(Income)

Measurement date 01/01/2004 01/01/2003

Discount rate 6.25% 6.75%
Expected return on plan assets 8 .50% 8.50%
Rate ofcompensation increase 4.25% 4.25%



We utilize fair value in determining the market-related values for the different classes of our pension plan assets .

The Company's primary investment goals for pension fund assets are based around four basic elements :

1 .

	

Preserve capital,
2 .

	

Maintain a minimum level of return equal to the actuarial interest rate assumption,
3 .

	

Maintain a high degree of flexibility and a low degree of volatility, and
4 . Maximize the rate of return while operating within the confines ofprudence and safety .

The Company believes that it is appropriate for the pension fund to assume a moderate degree of investment risk with
diversification of fund assets among different classes (or types) of investments, as appropriate, as a means of reducing risk .
Although the pension fund can and will tolerate some variability in market value and rates of return in order to achieve a
greater long-term rate of return, primary emphasis is placed on preserving the pension fund's principal . Full discretion is
delegated to the investment managers to carry out investment policy within stated guidelines . The guidelines and
performance of the managers are monitored on a quarterly basis by the Company's Investment Committee .

Permissible Investments

Listed below are the investment vehicles specifically permitted:

Equity
" Common Stocks
" Preferred Stocks
" Convertible Preferred Stocks
" Convertible Bonds
" Covered Options

65

Fixed Income
" Bonds
" GICs, BICs
" Cash-Equivalent Securities (e.g ., U.S . T-Bills,

Commercial Paper, etc .)
" Certificates of Deposit in institutions with
FDIC/FSLIC protection

" Money Market Funds/Bank STIF Funds

The above assets can be held in commingled (mutual) funds as well as privately managed separate accounts.

THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Those investments prohibited by the Investment Committee without prior approval are :
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Actual :
Equity securities 69% 70%
Debt securities 31% 30%
Other 0% V/0

Total 100% 1000/0
Target Range:
Equity securities 60%-70% 60%-70%
Debt securities 30%-40% 30%-40%
Other 0% 0%
Total 100% 100%



" Privately Placed Securities

	

" Warrants
" Commodities Futures

	

" Short Sales
" Securities of Empire District

	

-

	

" Index Options
" Derivatives

Other Postretirement Benefits
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We provide certain healthcare and life insurance benefits to eligible retired employees, their dependents and survivors .
Participants generally become eligible for retiree healthcare benefits after reaching age 55 with 5 years of service .

Effective January 1, 1993, we adopted SEAS No. 106, "Employers' Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than
Pensions" (FAS 106), which requires recognition of these benefits on an accrual basis during the active service period of the
employees . We elected to amortize our transition obligation (approximately $21,700,000) related to FAS 106 over a twenty-
year period . Prior to adoption of FAS 106, we recognized the cost of such postretirement benefits on a pay-as-you-go (i .e.,
cash) basis . The states ofMissouri, Kansas, Oklahoma and Arkansas authorize the recovery of FAS 106 costs through rates .

In accordance with rate orders, we established two separate trusts in 1994, one for those retirees who were subject to a
collectively bargained agreement and the other for all other retirees, to fund retiree healthcare and life insurance benefits .

In addition, we adopted FASB Staff Position No . 106-2, "Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the
Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003", in the third quarter of 2004 .We applied it
retroactively, using a measurement date of December 31, 2003 . Our postemployment medical plan provides prescription drug
coverage for Medicare-eligible retirees . Our accumulated postretirement benefit obligation (APBO) and net cost recognized
for other postemployment benefits (OPEB) now reflect the effects ofthe Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and
Modernization Act of 2003 (the Act) . The provisions of the Act provide for a federal subsidy, beginning in 2006, of 28% of
prescription drug costs between $250 and $5,000 for each Medicare-eligible retiree who does not join Medicare Part D, to
companies whose plans provide prescription drug benefits to their retirees that are "actuarially equivalent" to the prescription
drug benefits provided under Medicare . We have determined that our plan provides benefits that are actuarially equivalent to
the benefits provided under Medicare and will apply for certification in 2005 . This adoption resulted in a reduction to our
FAS 106 cost of $0.7 million in 2004 .

Our funding policy is to contribute annually an amount at least equal to the revenues collected for the amount of
postretirement benefit costs allowed in rates . Based on the performance of the trust assets through December 31, 2004, we
expect to be required to fund approximately $6 million in 2005 . Assets in these trusts amounted to approximately $33.1
million at December 31, 2004, $27.9 million at December 31, 2003 and $21 .5 million at December 31, 2002.

Risks and uncertainties affecting the application of this accounting policy include: future rate ofreturn on plan assets,
interest rates used in valuing benefit obligations (i .e . discount rates), health care cost trend rates, Medicare prescription drug
costs and demographic assumptions (i .e . mortality and retirement rates) .
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Our estimated benefit payments from trust assets (in millions) are as follows :

2005 $ 2.0
2006 $ 2.0
2007 $ 2.1
2008 $ 2.3
2009 $ 2.5
2010-2014 $15.0



The following table sets forth the plan's benefit obligation, the fair value ofthe plan's assets and its funded status :
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Postretirement benefit cost, a portion of which has been capitalized for 2004, 2003 and 2002, is as follows :

2002

$ 1,141,158
3,095,057
(1,350,634)
1,084,017

-
896,316

--

4,865,914
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Reconciliation ofBenefit Obligation:

2004 2003 2002

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $58,285,354 $53,800,550 $42,315,384
Service cost 1,518,200 1,083,133 1,141,158
Interest cost 2,990,434 3,405,784 3,095,057
Amendmentstt> - (8,533,544) -
Actuarial (gain)(loss(3 ) (756,655) 10,379,025 9,029,864
Plan participants contributions 518,842 416,828 342,480
Benefits paid (2,194,883) (2,266,422 ) (2,123,393 )
Benefit obligation at end of year . $60,361,292 $58,285,354 $53,800,550

Reconciliation ofFair Value ofPlan Assets :

2004 2003 1002

Fair value ofplan assets at beginning of year $27,901,287 $21,494,115 $18,596,087
Employer contributions 4,555,877 5,355,417 5,233,834
Actual return on plan assets 2,215,066 2,894,866 (586,872)
Benefits paid (2,085,985) (2,259,939) (2,091,414)
Plan participants contributions 518,842 416,828 342,480
Fair value ofplan assets at end ofyear $33,105,087 $27,901,287 $21,494,115

Reconciliation ofFunded Status:

2004 2003 2002

Fair value of plan assets $ 33,105,087 $ 27,901,287 $ 21,494,115
Benefit obligations (60,361,292) (58,285,354) (53,800,550)
Funded status (27,256,205) (30,384,067) (32,306,435)
Unrecognized transition obligation 8,672,123 9,756,140 10,840,157
Unrecognized prior service cost (7,924,005) (8,533,544) -
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 18,276,081 21,042,234 16,915,842
Accrued postretirementbenefit cost $ (8,232,006) $ (8,119,237) $ (4,550,436 )

Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost.

2004 2003

Service cost on benefits earned during the year $ 1,518,200 $ 1,083,133
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 2,990,434 3,405,784
Expected return on assets (1,959,192) (1,611,614)
Amortization ofunrecognized transition obligation t,094,0 17 1,084,017
Amortization of prior service cost - (609,539) -
Amortization of actuarial loss 1,742,484 1,585,129
Recognition of substantive plan - 3,292,328
Net periodic postretirement benefit cost before regulatory asset

recognition(4) 4,766,404 8,838,777
Recognition of regulatory asset for previously unrecorded



benefit costs(Z l

	

-

	

(3,292,328)	-
Net periodic postretirement benefit cost

	

$ 4,766;404

	

$ 5,546,449

	

$4,865,914
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(1)

	

2003 reflects changes in our drug plan to increase the co-pay of the participants .
(2)

	

Accrued postretirement benefit cost at December 31, 2003 increased by $3 .3 million related to an adjustment to
recognize incremental substantive plan (as defined in FAS 106) benefit costs identified in 2004 . A corresponding
regulatory asset was recorded for this amount and is being afforded rate recovery in Missouri, effective with our latest
Missouri rate case, approved March 10, 2005 . We believe it is probable that these costs will also be afforded rate
recovery in our other jurisdictions consistent with past practice . The value of this asset at December 31, 2004 is
$2,918,430 .

(3)

	

2004 reflects the effect of the Medicare Act subsidy which resulted in a decrease of $6.0 million in the APBO for the
past service cost . This was recognized as an actuarial gain and will be amortized through the FAS 106 postretirement
expense .

(4)

	

Total 2004 cost reflects the impact ofthe Medicare Act subsidy on the net periodic postretrement benefit cost as
follows : .
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The expected long-term rate of return assumption was based on historical returns and adjusted to estimate the potential
range ofreturns for the current asset allocation .

The assumed 2004 cost trend rate used to measure the expected cost of healthcare benefits and benefit obligation is 9.5% .
Each trend rate decreases 0.50% through 2014 to an ultimate rate of 5% for 2014 and subsequent years .

The effect of a 1% increase in each future year's assumed healthcare cost trend rate would increase the current service
and interest cost from $4.8 million to $5.8 million and the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation from $60 .4 million
to $68.9 million . The effect of a 1% decrease in each future year's assumed healthcare cost trend rate would decrease the
current service and interest cost from $4.8 million to $4.1 million and the accumulated benefit obligation from $60.4 million
to $53.4 million .
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Assumptions used to determine Year End Benefit Obligation

Measurement date 1213112004 12/3112003
Weighted average discount rate 5.75% 6.25%
Rate of compensation increase 5.00% 5.00%

Assumptionsused to determine Net Periodic Benefit Cost

Measurement date 01/01/2004 01101/2003
Discount -rate 6.25% 6.75%
Expected return on plan assets (after tax) 6.80% 6.80%
Rate of compensation increase - 5 .00% 5.00%

Amortization of actuarial loss $(195,635)
Service cost (152,422)
Interest cost (315,206)
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We utilize fair value in determining the market-related values for the different classes of our postretirement plan assets .

The Company's primary investment goals for the component of the fund used to pay current benefits are liquidity and
safety . The primary investment goals for the component of the fund used to accumulate funds to provide for payment of
benefits after the retirement of plan participants are preservation of the fund with a reasonable rate of return .

The Company's guideline in the management of this fund is to endorse a long-term approach, but not expose the fund to
levels of volatility that might adversely affect the value of the assets . Full discretion is delegated to the investment managers
to carry out investment policy within stated guidelines . The guidelines and performance of the managers are monitored on a
quarterly basis by the Company's Investment Committee .

Permissible Investments :

Listed below are the investment vehicles specifically pemtitted :

Equity

	

FixedIncome
" Common Stocks

	

" Bonds
" Preferred Stocks

	

" Cash-Equivalent Securities with a maturity ofone year
or less
" Bonds
" Money Market Funds

The above assets can be held in commingled (mutual) funds as well as privately managed separate accounts .

Those investments prohibited by the Investment Committee are :

" Privately Placed Securities

	

" Margin Transactions
" Commodities Futures

	

" Short Sales
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Allocation ofPlan Assets

l ar Fair Vatue as orDecember 3t,

2004 2003
Actual :
Cash equivalent 11% 11%
Fixed income 40% 40%
Equities 49% 47%
Other 0% 2%
Total 100% 100%

Target Range:
Cash equivalent Oo/u 00/6-10%.

Fixed income 40%-60% 40°10-60%
Equities 40%-60% 40%-60%
Other 0% 0%
Total 100% 100%



" Securities of Empire District

	

" Index Options
" Derivatives

	

" Real Estate and Real Property
" Instrumentalities in violation of the

	

" Restricted Stock
Prohibited Transactions Standards ofERISA

9 .

	

Income Taxes
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The provision for income taxes is different from the amount of income tax determined by applying the statutory income
tax rate to income before income taxes as a result of the following differences :
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Total income tax expense is shown on more than one tax line on the income statement.

Under SFAS No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes" (FAS 109), temporary differences gave rise to deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2004 and 2003 as follows :

http://www.sec .gov/Archives/edgar/data/32689/000120677405000338/dl6510 .htm 9/10/2006

Income tax expense components for the years shown are as

Taxes currently (receivable)/payable included in operating
revenue deductions :

follows :

2004 2003 2002

Federal $ 890,000 $ 120,000 $ 1,590,000
State (365,000) 790,000 170,000

Included in"other -net" (125,000) (250,000) (80,000)
400,000 660,000 1,680,000

Deferred taxes :
Depreciation and amortization differences 13,122,000 17,106,000 11,479,000
Loss on reacquired debt (350,000) 4,318,000 (169,000)
Pension & postrefrement benefits (1,537,000) (1,493,000) 559,000
Other (78,964) (1,140,000) (964,000)
Asbury five-year maintenance (201,000) (259,000) 902,000
Software development costs 114,000 (70,000) (190,000)
Alternative minimum tax credit - (1,600,000) -
Hedging transactions - (1,470,000) -
Included in "other - net" 370,965 - 563,000

11,440,001 15,392,000 12,180,000
Deferred investment tax credits, net (540,001) (550,001) (550,000)
Total income tax expense $11,300,000 $15,501,999 $13,310,000

2004 2003 2002

Computed "expected" federal provision $11,600,000 $15,730,000 $13,590,000
State taxes, net of federal effect 1,030,000 1,380,000 1,190,000
Adjustment to taxes resulting from:
Investment tax credit Amortization (540,000) (550,000) (550,000)
Other (790,000) (I,o58,001) (920,000 )
Actual provision for income taxes $11,300,000 $15,501,999 $13,310,000



10.

	

Commonly Owned Facilities

11 .

	

Commitments and Contingencies

Coal, Natural Gas and Transportation Contracts
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The net of the deferred tax assets and liabilities above are presented as deferred income taxes under non current liabilities
on the balance sheet .

We own a 12% undivided interest in the Iatan Power Plant, a coal-fired, 670-megawatt generating unit near Weston,
Missouri . Kansas City Power & Light and Aquila own 70% and 18%, respectively, of the Unit. We are entitled to 12% of the
available capacity and are obligated for that percentage ofcosts included in the corresponding operating expense
classifications in the Statement ofIncome. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, our property, plant and equipment accounts
included the cost ofour ownership interest in the plant of $49,197,000 and $48,915,000, respectively, and accumulated
depreciation of $34,510,000 and $33,259,000, respectively. Expenditures recorded for our portion ofownership were
$6,786,000 and $7,319,000 for 2004 and 2003, respectively, excluding depreciation expenses .

On July 26, 1999, we and Westar Generating, Inc . ("WGl"), a subsidiary of Westar Energy, Inc., entered into agreements
for the construction, ownership and operation of a 500-megawatt combined cycle unit at the State Line Power Plant (the
"State Line Combined Cycle Unit") . We are responsible for the operation and maintenance of the State Line Combined Cycle
Unit, and are entitled to 60% ofthe available capacity and are responsible for approximately 60% of its costs . At December
31, 2004 and 2003, our property, plant and equipment accounts include the cost of our ownership interest in the unit of
$153,334,000 and $153,243,000, respectively, and accumulated depreciation of $18,108,000 and $13,847,000, respectively .
Expenditures recorded for our portion ofownership were $34,886,000 and $24,700,000 for 2004 and 2003, respectively,
excluding depreciation .

We are a party to various claims and legal proceedings arising out of the normal course of our business . Management
regularly analyzes this information, and has provided accruals for any liabilities, in accordance with the guidelines of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS 5, "Accounting for Contingencies" (FAS 5) . In the opinion of
management, it is not probable, given the company's defenses, that the ultimate outcome of these claims and lawsuits will
have a material adverse affect upon our financial condition, or results of operations or cash flows .

We have entered into long and short-term agreements to purchase coal and natural gas for our energy supply. Under these
contracts, the natural gas supplies are divided into firm physical commitments and options that are used to hedge future
purchases . The firm physical gas commitments, which represent normal purchases and sales, and transportation commitments
total $19.4 million for 2005, $23.0 million for 2006 through 2007, $23.3 million for 2008 through 2009 and $65 .6 million for
2010 and beyond . In the event that this gas cannot be used at our plants, the gas would be liquidated at market price .
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Deferred Tax
Assets

Balances

2004

Deferred Tax
Liabilities

as ofDecember 31,

Deferred Tax
Assets

2003

Deferred Tax
Liabilities

Noncurrent
Depreciation and other property related $12,681,303 $143,529,004 $13,451,962 $131,885,372
Unamortized investment tax credits 3,102,781 - 3,435,155 -
Miscellaneous book/tax recognition
differences 8,551,328 14,209,737 7,985,726 18,053,091
Total deferred taxes $24,335,412 $157,738,741 $24,872,843 $149,938,463



Purchased Power
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We have coal supply agreements and transportation contracts in place to provide for the delivery of coal to the plants .
These contracts are written with Force Majeure clauses that enable us to reduce tonnages or cease shipments under certain
circumstances or events . These include mechanical or electrical maintenance items, acts of God, war or insurrection, strikes,
weather and other disrupting events . This reduces the risk we have for not taking the minimum requirements of fuel under the
contracts . The minimum requirements are $17.1 million for 2005, $16.5 million for 2006 through 2007, and $0.9 million for
2008 through 2009 .

We currently supplement our on-system generating capacity with purchases of capacity and energy from other utilities in
order to meet the demands of our customers and the capacity margins applicable to us under current pooling agreements and
National Electric Reliability Council (NERC) rules .

THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We have contracted with Westar Energy for the purchase ofcapacity and energy through May 31, 2010 . Commitments
under this contract total approximately $87.7 million through May 31, 2010.

On December 10, 2004, we entered into a 20-year contract with PPM Energy, to purchase the energy generated at the
proposed 150-megawatt Elk River Windfarm located in Butler County, Kansas. We anticipate purchasing approximately
550,000 megawatt-hours ofenergy annually from the project beginning in December 2005- We will not own any portion of
the windfarm . Costs for energy purchased under this agreement will be expensed as incurred. On January 24, 2005, Flint
Hills Tallgrass Prairie Heritage Foundation, Inc . filed a purported class action complaint in the United States District Court
(the Court) seeking to halt the development or operation of industrial wind turbine electric power generation facilities within
the Flint Hills Tallgrass Prairie Ecosystem. This complaint was dismissed with prejudice by the Court on February 11, 2005 .
A notice of appeal has been filed .

Environmental Matters

We are subject to various federal, state, and local laws and regulations with respect to air and water quality as well as
other environmental matters . We believe that our operations are in compliance with present laws and regulations .

Air. The 1990 Amendments to the Clean Air Act, referred to as the 1990 Amendments, affect the Asbury, Riverton, State
Line and Iatan Power Plants and Units 3 and 4, the FT8 peaking units, at the Empire Energy Center. The 1990 Amendments
require affected plants to meet certain emission standards, including maximum emission levels for sulfur dioxide (S02) and
nitrogen oxides (NOx) . When a plant becomes an affected unit for a particular emission, it locks in the then current emission
standards . The Asbury Plant became an affected unit under the 1990 Amendments for S02 on January 1, 1995 and for NOx
as a Group 2 cyclone-fired boiler on January l, 2000 . The Iatan Plant became an affected unit for both S02 and NOx on
January 1, 2000. The Riverton Plant became an affected unit for NOx in November 1996 and for S02 on January 1, 2000 .
The State Line Plant became an affected unit for S02 and NOx on January 1, 2000 . Units 3 and 4 at the Empire Energy
Center became affected units for both S02 and NOx in April 2003 .

S02 Emissions. Under the 1990 Amendments, the amount of S02 an affected unit can emit is regulated . Each existing
affected unit has been awarded a specific number of emission allowances, each of which allows the holder to emit one ton of
S02 . Utilities covered by the 1990 Amendments must have emission allowances equal to the number of tons ofS02 emitted
during a given year by each of their affected units . Allowances may be traded between plants or utilities or "banked" for
future use . A market for the trading of emission allowances exists on the Chicago Board of Trade. The Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) withholds annually a percentage of the emission allowances awarded to each affected unit and sells
those emission allowances through a direct auction . We receive compensation from the EPA forthe sale of these allowances .

In 2004, our Asbury, Riverton and latan plants burned a blend of low sulfur Western coal (Powder River Basin) and
higher sulfur local coal or burned 100% low sulfur Western coal . In addition, tire derived fuel (TDF) was used as a
supplemental fuel at the Asbury plant . The Riverton plant can also bum natural gas as its primary fuel . The State Line Plant
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and the Energy Center Units 3 and 4 are gas-fired facilities and do not receive S02 allowances . Annual allowance
requirements for the State Line Plant and the Energy Center Units 3 and 4, which are not expected to exceed 20 allowances
per year, will be transferred from our inventoried bank ofallowances . Based on current operations, the combined actual S02
allowance need for all affected plant facilities is approximately equal to the number of allowances awarded to us annually by
the EPA. As of December 31, 2004, we currently have 48,000 banked allowances .

	

.

On July 14, 2004, we filed an application with the Missouri Public Service Commission seeking an order authorizing us
to implement a plan for the management, sale, exchange, transfer or other disposition of our S02 emission allowances .
Subsequently, we, the Missouri Public Service Commission Staff (Staff) and the Office of Public Counsel (OPC) engaged in
discussions to determine an agreeable manner for us to implement an S02
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Allowance Management Policy (SAMP) . As a result ofthese discussions, the parties entered into a Unanimous Stipulation
and Agreement on January 18, 2005, stating that we should be granted authority by the Commission to manage our S02
allowance inventory in accordance with the terms in our SAMP document, which would provide us the authority to swap
banked allowances for future vintage allowances and/or monetary value and, in extreme market conditions, provides us with
the authority to sell S02 allowances outright for monetary value. On March 1, 2005, the Missouri Public Service
Commission approved the Stipulation and'Agreement to become effective March 11, 2005 .

NOx Emissions . The Asbury, latan, State Line, Energy Center and Riverton Plants are each in compliance with the NOx
limits applicable to them under the 1990 Amendments as currently operated.

The Asbury Plant received permission from the Missouri Department ofNatural Resources (MDNR) to bum TDF at a
maximum rate of 2% oftotal fuel input. During 2004, approximately 9,550 tons ofTDF were burned .

In April 2000 the MDNR promulgated a final rule addressing the ozone moderate non-attainment classification of the St .
Louis area . The final regulation, known as the Missouri NOx Rule, set a maximum NOx emission rate of 0 .25 lbs/mmMu for
Eastern Missouri and a maximum NOx emission rate of0.35 lbs/mmBtu for Western Missouri . The Iatan, Asbury, State Line
and Energy Center facilities are affected by the Western Missouri regulation . In April 2003 the MDNR approved
amendments to the Missouri NOx Rule. Included were amendments to delay the effective date ofthe rule until May 1, 2004
and to establish a NOx emission limit of0.68 Ibs/mmBtu for plants burning tire derived fuel with a minimum annual bum of
100,000 passenger tire equivalents. The Asbury Plant qualified for the 0.681bs/mmBm emission rate. All ofour plants
currently meet the required emission limits and additional NOx controls are not required .

Water . We operate under the Kansas and Missouri Water Pollution Plans that were implemented in response to the
Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972 . The Asbury, Iatan, Riverton, Energy Center and State Line
facilities are in compliance with applicable regulations and have received discharge permits and subsequent renewals as
required . The Energy Center permit was revised in 2004 . The Riverton Plant is affected by final regulations for Cooling
Water Intake Structures issued under the CWA 316 (b) Phase 11. The regulations became final on February 16, 2004 and
require the submission of a Comprehensive Demonstration Study with the permit renewal in 2008 . The costs associated with
compliance with these regulations are not expected to be material .

Other. Under Title V of the 1990 Amendments, we must obtain site operating permits for each of our plants from the
authorities in the state in which the plant is located. These permits, which are valid for five years, regulate the plant site's
total emissions ; including emissions from stacks, individual pieces of equipment, road dust, coal dust and other emissions .
We have been issued Permits for Asbury, Iatan, Riverton, State Line and the Energy Center Power Plants . We submitted the
required renewal application for the Asbury Title V permit in 2004 and will operate under the existing permit until the
MDNR issues the renewed permit. A Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) plan is expected to be required by the
renewed permit . We estimate that the capital costs associated with the CAM plan will not exceed $2 million .

In mid-December 2003, the EPA issued proposed regulations with respect to S02, NOx and mercury emissions from
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coal-fired power plants in a proposed mlemaking known as the Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR). The final CAIR was
issued by the EPA on March 10, 2005 and will affect 28 states, including Missouri, where our Asbury plant is located, but
excluding Kansas, where our Riverton plant is located . Also in mid-December 2003, the EPA issued proposed regulations for
mercury emissions by power plants under the requirements ofthe 1990 Amendments. These proposed regulations are
currently expected to be finalized in March 2005 . It is possible that we may need to make some expenditures as early as 2005
in order to meet a proposed December 15, 2007 requirement for anticipated mercury reduction requirements under the
proposed clean air mercury regulations . The CAIR was issued, and the clean air mercury regulations are expected to be
issued, as a result of delays and setbacks in the legislative process for the President's Clear Skies Act legislation, which
would have imposed different restrictions on S02, NOx and mercury emissions . The CAIR is not directed to specific
generation units, but instead,

requires the state ofMissouri to develop a State Implementation Plan (SIP) within the next 18 months in order to comply
with specific NOx and S02 state-wide annual budgets . Until that plan is finalized, we cannot determine the required emission
rate ofNOx and S02 for the Asbury or Iatan plants. Also, the SIP will likely include an allowance trading program for NOx
and S02 that could provide compliance without additional capital expenditures . Until the proposed mercury regulations are
finalized and additional testing for mercury emissions is completed at Iatan, Asbury and Riverton, we cannot determine if
additional investments are required . It is possible that compliance with the proposed mercury regulations will not require
additional capital expenditures . However, we expect that pollution control equipment required at the latan plant by 2015 may
include a Selective Catalytic Reduction (SCR) system and a Flue Gas Desulphurization (FGD) system and a Bag House, with
our share of the capital cost estimated at $30 million . We expect that pollution control equipment needed at the Asbury plant
by 2015 may include a SCR, a FGD and a Bag House at an estimated capital cost of $80 million .

12 .

	

Non-regulated Businesses

On July 17, 2002, EDE Holdings, Inc ., together with other investors, acquired the assets ofthe Precision Products
Department of Eagle Picher Technologies, LLC, a manufacturer of close-tolerance metal products whose customers are in the
aerospace, electronics, telecommunications, and machinery industries . The acquisition was accomplished through the
creation ofa newly formed, non-regulated limited liability company, Mid-America Precision Products (MAPP) . EDE
Holdings acquired a controlling 50.01% interest in this newly formed company through a cash investment of $650,000 . As of
January 1, 2005, EDE Holdings is also the 50.01% guarantor ofa $2.7 million long-term note payable and a $0.8 million
revolving short-term credit facility . The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting in
accordance with SEAS No. 141, "Business Combinations" (FAS 141) . Current assets were valued based on the carrying
value at July 17, 2002 . The property, plant and equipment was valued through a third party appraisal . The change in non-

. regulated revenues, expenses and minority interest for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2002, reflect a full year's results of this acquisition.

	

.

In the first half of 2003, we began amortizing the accumulated costs for our Conversant software and the value of the
customer list obtained with our purchase of Joplin.com. This amortization was $237,000 and $171,000 in 2004 and 2003,
respectively .

The table below presents information about the reported revenues, operating income, net income, capital expenditures,
total assets and minority interests of our non-regulated businesses .

Statement of Income Information
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For the year ended December 31,

(000'x)

2004

	

2003

	

2002
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Non- Total Non- Total Non-

	

'total
Regulated Company Regulated Company Regulated Company
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As of December 31,

(000- S)

Non- Total Non- Total Non- Total
Regulated Company Regulated Company Regulated Company

Balance Sheet Information
Total assets

	

$25,561

	

$ 1,027,539

	

$24,439

	

$ 1,025,091

	

$22,211

	

$991,034
Minority interest

	

(705)

	

(705)

	

(1,160)

	

(1,160)

	

(806)

	

(806)

*

	

Non-Regulated numbers include revenues received from the regulated business that are eliminated in consolidation .

13 .

	

Selected Quarterly Information (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of previously reported and adjusted quarterly results for 2004 and reported quarterly results
for 2003 . We adopted FASB StaffPosition No . 106-2, "Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare
Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003", in the third quarter of 2004 . and applied it retroactively,
using a measurement date as of December 31, 2003 . The effect of this adoption on our total net periodic postretirement
benefit cost was $0.7 million for the year . The first and second quarterly results originally reported, did not include the after
tax effect on earnings of$0 .1 million per quarter .

Quarters

Page 75 of 85

(dollars in thousands except per share amounts)
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Revenues* $21,935 $ 325,540 $21,218 $325,505 $ 10,256 $305,903
Operating income (loss) (1,760) 51,540 (936) 61,435 (1,373) 56,837
Net income (loss) (1,833) 21,848 (1,393) 29,450 (1,489) 25,524
Minority interest 308 308 (354) (354) (142) (142)

Capital Expenditures 2,700 41,892 3,908 65,906 4,072 76,827

As revised
First

As revised
Second Third Fourth

(dollarsin thousands except per share amounts)

2004:
Operating revenues $77,232 $77,303 $96,741 $74,264
Operating income 9,005 9,558 23,673 9,304
Net income 1,578 2,078 16,235 1,957
Basic earnings per share 0.06 0.08 0.64 0.08
Diluted earnings per share 0.06 0.08 0.63 0.08

Quarters

First Second Third Fourth



The sum ofthe quarterly earnings per share of common stock may not equal the earnings per share of common stock as
computed on an annual basis due to rounding .

14 .

	

Risk Management and Derivative Financial Instruments

We utilize derivatives to manage our natural gas commodity market risk to help manage our exposure resulting from
purchasing natural gas, to be used as fuel, on the volatile spot market and to manage certain interest rate exposure.
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As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, we have recorded the following assets and liabilities representing the fair value of
qualifying derivative financial instruments held as ofthat date and subject to the reporting requirements of FAS 133 .

A $2,774,221 net of tax, unrealized gain representing the fair market value of these contracts is recognized as
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in the capitalization section ofthe balance sheet . The tax effect of $1,700,329 on
this gain is included in deferred taxes . These amounts will be adjusted cumulatively on a monthly basis during the
determination periods, beginning January 1, 2005 and ending on September 30, 2011 . At the end ofeach determination
period, any gain or loss for that period related to the instrument will be reclassified to fuel expense .

In the first quarter of 2003, we began recording unrealized gains/(losses) on the overhedged portion of our gas hedging
activities in "Fuel" under the Operating Revenue Deductions section of our income statements since all of our gas hedging
activities are related to stabilizing fuel costs as part ofour fuel procurement program and are not speculative activities . We
had previously recorded such gains/(losses), which were not material in the prior periods ended December 31, 2002, in
"Other- non-operating income" under the Other Income and Deductions section .

The following table sets forth "mark-to-market" pre-tax gains/(losses) from the overhedged portion of our hedging
activities and the actual pre-tax gains/(losses) from the qualified portion of our hedging activities for settled contracts
included in "Fuel" (in millions) :

December 31, 2004

	

December 31, 2003

Overhedged Portion

	

$

	

0.7

	

$

	

0.9
Qualified Portion

	

$

	

11 .5

	

$

	

9.4
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The table above does not include a $5.1 million realized gain from an interest rate derivative contract in November 2003
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2003:
Operating revenues $76,906 $74,603 $101,029 $72,967
Operating income 13,806 10,997 24,156 12,376
Net income 5,645 2,662 16,298 4,845
Basic and diluted earnings per share $ 0.25 $ 0.12 $ 0.71 $ 0.21

2004 2003

Current assets $2,867,500 $11,631,350
Noncurrent assets 4,142,900 567,000
Current liabilities 1,030,100 583,140
Noncurrent liabilities 1,505,800 80,350



or a $2.7 million realized loss from an interest rate derivative contract in June 2003. The benefit and cost of these
transactions are recorded as interest expense as amortized . See Note 6 "Long-Term Debt" for information on our hedging of
interest rate exposures .

We also enter into fixed-price forward physical contracts for the purchase ofnatural gas, coal and purchased power.
These contracts are not subject to the fair value accounting of FAS 133 because they are considered to be normal purchases
and normal sales (NPNS) . We have instituted a process to determine if any future executed contracts that otherwise qualify
for the NPNS exception contain a price adjustment feature and will account for these contracts accordingly .

15 .

	

Accounts Receivable-Other

The following table sets forth the major components comprising "accounts receivable - other" on our consolidated
balance sheet (in millions) :

76

THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Page 77 of 85

The $1 .9 million accounts receivable for insurance reimbursement for Energy Center relates to $4.1 million of total
expenses for repairs to our Unit No. 2 combustion turbine at Energy Center, less our $1 .0 million deductible which was
expensed in the first quarter of 2004 and $1.2 million of insurance reimbursement received as ofDecember 31, 2004 .
Subsequent to December 31, 2004, we have received an additional $0.6 million of the $1.9 million receivable . Based on
discussion with our insurer, we expect the remaining $1 .3 million to be reimbursed by our insurer .
The increase to $3 .1 million in accounts receivable of out non-regulated subsidiary companies is due mainly to increased -
trade receivables for Mid-America Precision Products, LLC (MAPP) .

The $1 .2 trillion in accounts receivable for true-up on maintenance contracts represents $0.2 million remaining ofthe
$3.2 million gross amount of a true-up credit from Siemens Westinghouse in September 2004 related to our maintenance
contract entered into in July 2001 for State Line'Combined Cycle Unit (SLCC) and $1 .0 million ofquarterly estimated
credits accrued in the last 6 months of 2004 . Forty percent of this credit belongs to Westar Generating, Inc ., the owner of
40% of the SLCC, and has been recorded in accounts payable as of December 31, 2004 . At both December 31, 2004 and
2003 we had accrued $0.4 million .

16 .

	

Regulated- Other Operating Expense
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December 3 t,

2004 2003

Accounts receivable-other
Accounts receivable for meter loops, meter bases, line extensions,
highway projects, etc . $ 1 .9 $1 .9

Accounts receivable for insurance reimbursement for Energy Center(l) 1 .9 -
Accounts receivable for non-regulated subsidiary companies(2) 3.1 1 .7
Accounts receivable from Westar Generating, Inc. for
commonly-owned facility 0.5 0 .5

Taxes receivable - overpayment of estimated income taxes 4.2 3.2
Accounts receivable for true-up on maintenance contractS 13 ) 1 .2 1 .0
Other 0.1 _0.9
Total Accounts receivable - other $12.9 $9.2



The following table sets forth the major components comprising "regulated - other" under "Operating Revenue
Deductions" on our consolidated statements of income (in millions) for all periods presented :

ITEM 9 .

	

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITHACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
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As of the end ofthe period covered by this report, an evaluation was carried out, under the supervision and with the
participation ofour management, including our Chief Executive Officer and ChiefFinancial Officer, of the effectiveness of
the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 . Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure
controls and procedures were effective, in all material respects, with respect to the recording, processing, summarizing and
reporting, within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms, of information to be required to be disclosed by us
in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act .

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as
such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f) . Under the supervision and with the participation of our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation ofthe effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in the Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission . Based on this evaluation, our management concluded
that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as ofDecember 31, 2004 . Our management's assessment of the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 has been audited by
PricewaterhouseCcopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included
herein .

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fourth quarter of
2004 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting .

ITEM 913 . OTHER INFORMATION
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2004 2003 2002

Transmission and distribution expense $ 7.4 $ 8.1 $ 8.7
Power operation expense (other than fuel) 10.0 9.2 8.8
Customer accounts & assistance expense 7.1 6.7 6.8
Employee pension expense (income) 3 .0 3.5 (2.1)
Employee healthcare plan 8.0 6.8 6.3
General office supplies and expense 7.7 6.3 6.0
Administrative and general expense 8.2 8 .1 7.0
Allowance for uncollectible accounts 1 .5 1 .0 l .2
Miscellaneous expense 0.1 0.1 . 0 .4
Total $53 .0 $49.8 $43 .1



None

ITEM II . EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
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PART III

ITEM 10.

	

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required by this Item with respect to directors and directorships, our audit committee, our audit
committee financial experts and Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance may be found in our proxy
statement for our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held April 28, 2005, which is incorporated herein by reference .

Pursuant to instruction 3 ofparagraph (b) of Item 401 of Regulation S-K, the information required by this Item with
respect to executive officers is set forth in Item I ofPart I ofthis Form 10-K under "Executive Officers and Other Officers of
Empire ."

We have adopted a Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers . A copy ofthis code is
available on our website at www.empiredistrict.com . No amendments to the code have been made and no waivers of the code
have been granted since its adoption . Any future amendments or waivers to the code will be posted on our website at
www.empiredistrict.com.

Because our common stock is listed on the NYSE, our Chief Executive Officer is required to make a CEO's Annual
Certification to the NYSE in accordance with Section 303A.12 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual stating that he is not
aware ofany violations by us ofthe NYSE corporate governance listing standards . Our Chief Executive Officer intends to
timely provide the NYSE with the CEO's Annual Certification and we will make this certification available on our website,
www.empiredistrict.com, as soon as reasonably practicable after filing with the NYSE.

Information regarding executive compensation may be found in our proxy statement for our Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be held April 28, 2005, which is incorporated herein by reference .

ITEM 12 .

	

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Information regarding the number of shares of our equity securities owned by persons who own beneficially more than
5% of our voting securities and beneficially owned by our directors and certain executive officers and by the directors and
executive officers as a group may be found in our proxy statement for our Annual Meeting ofStockholders to be held April
28, 2005, which is incorporated herein by reference .

There are no arrangements the operation ofwhich may at a subsequent date result in a change in control ofEmpire .

Securities Authorized For Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

Page 79 of 85

We have two equity compensation plans approved by shareholders, the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan and the Employee
Stock Purchase Plan, and one equity compensation plan not approved by shareholders (because approval was not required),
the Stock Unit Plan for Directors .

79

The following table summarizes information about our equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2004 .
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(c) Numberof securities
remaining available for

(a) Number of securities

	

(b) Weighted-average

	

future issuance under
to be issued upon

	

exercise price of

	

equity compensation
exercise ofoutstanding

	

outstanding options,

	

plans (excluding securities
Plan category

	

options, warrants and rights-

	

warrants and rights (2)

	

reflected in column (a))

The Stock Unit Plan for Directors was approved by our Board of Directors on July 23, 1998 . This plan as amended,
reserved up to 200,000 shares of our common stock for issuance under the plan . There is no exercise price for the stock
units . For a description of this plan, see Note 4 of "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements" under Item 8 .
The weighted average exercise price of $19.95 relates to 54,200, 49,200 and 69,700 options granted to executive officers
in 2004, 2003 and 2002 respectively, under the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan and 44,901 subscriptions outstanding for our
Employee Stock Purchase Plan . These two plans had a weighted average exercise price of$20.45 and $18.02,
respectively. There is no exercise price for 1,802 shares of restricted stock and 94,200 performance-based stock awards
awarded under the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan or for the 58,528 units awarded under the Stock Unit Plan for Directors .

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this Item with respect to certain relationships and related transactions may be found in our
proxy statement for our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held April 28, 2005, which is incorporated herein by
reference .

ITEM 14 . PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item with respect to principal accountant fees and services may be found in our proxy
statement for our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held April 28, 2005, which is incorporated herein by reference .

80

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

Index to Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule Covered by
Report of Independent Auditors

Page 80 of 85

Equity compensation
plans approved by
security holders 314,003 $ 19.95 397,497

Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders 0) 58,528 - 105,738
Total 372,531 $ 19.95 503,235

Consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2004 and 2003 38
Consolidated statements ofincome for each ofthe three years in the period ended
December 31, 2004 40

Consolidated statements ofcomprehensive income for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31,2004 41

Consolidated statements ofcommon shareholders' equity for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2004 42

Consolidated statements of cash flows for each ofthe three years in the period ended
December 31, 2004 43

Notes to consolidated financial statements 44
Schedule for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 :
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Schedule 11- Valuation and qualifying accounts
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All other schedules are omitted as the required information is either not present, is not present in sufficient amounts, or
the information required therein is included in the financial statements or notes thereto.

Gist of Exhibits

Exhibit
No .

	

Description

(3)(a)

(4)(a)

The Restated Articles ofIncorporation of Empire (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(a) to
Registration Statement No . 33-54539 on Form S-3) .
By-laws ofEmpire as amended October 31, 2002 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(b) to Annual
Report on Form 10-K for year ended December 31, 2002, File No . 1-3368) .
Indenture ofMortgage and Deed of Trust dated as of September 1, 1944 and First Supplemental
Indenture thereto among Empire, The Bank of New York and State Street Bank and Trust Company of
Missouri, N.A . (Incorporated by reference to Exhibits B(1) and B(2) to Foam 10, File No . 1-3368) .

(b)

	

Third Supplemental Indenture to Indenture of Mortgage and Deed ofTrust (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2(c) to form S-7, File No . 2-59924) .

(c)

	

Sixth through Eighth Supplemental Indentures to Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 2(c) to Form S-7, File No . 2-59924) .

(d)

	

Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture to Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4(f) to Form S-3, File No. 33-56635).

(e)

	

Twenty-Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of November 1, 1993 to Indenture ofMortgage and
Deed ofTrust (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(k) to Annual Report on Form 10-K for year ended
December 31, 1993, File No . 1-3368) .

(f)

	

Twenty-Third Supplemental Indenture dated as of November 1, 1993 to Indenture of Mortgage and Deed
of Trust (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(1) to Annual Report on Form 10-K for year ended
December 31, 1993, File No . 1-3368) .
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Exhibit
No .

	

-

	

Description

Page 8 1 of 85

(g)

	

Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as of March 1, 1994 to Indenture of Mortgage and Deed ofTrust
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(m) to Annual Report on Form 10-K for year ended December 31, 1993,
File No . 1-3368) .

(h)

	

Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture dated as of November 1, 1994 to Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(p) to Registration Statement No . 33-56635 on Form S-3) .

(i)

	

Twenty-Sixth Supplemental Indenture dated as of April I, 1995 to Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to Form 10-Q for quarter ended March 31, 1995, File No. 1-3368) .

(1)

	

Twenty-Seventh Supplemental Indenture dated as ofJune 1, 1995 to Indenture of Mortgage and Deed ofTrust
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to Form 10-Q for quarter ended June 30, 1995, File No . 1-3368) .

(k) -

	

Twenty-Eighth Supplemental Indenture dated as ofDecember 1, 1996 to Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of
Trust (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for year ended December 31,
1996, File No. 1-3368) .

(1)

	

Twenty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture dated as ofApril 1, 1998 to Indenture ofMortgage and Deed of Trust
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to Form 10-Q for quarter ended March 31, 1998, File No . 1-3368) .

(m)

	

Indenture for Unsecured Debt Securities, dated as ofSeptember 10, 1999 between Empire and Wells Fargo Bank
Minnesota, National Association (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(v) to Registration Statement No . 333-
87015 on Form S-3) .

(n)

	

Securities Resolution No . 2, dated as of February 22, 2001, of Empire under the Indenture for Unsecured Debt
Securities (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(s) to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002, File No. 1-3368) .

(o)

	

Securities Resolution No . 3, dated as of December 18, 2002, of Empire under the Indenture for Unsecured Debt
Securities (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(s) to Annual Report on Form 10-K for year ended December
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31, 2002, File No . 1-3368).
(P)

	

Securities Resolution No. 4, dated as ofJune 10, 2003, of Empire under the Indenture for Unsecured Debt
Securities (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 10, 2003 and filed
June 29, 2003, File No . 1-3368) .

(q)

	

Securities Resolution No. 5, dated as of October 29, 2003, of Empire under the Indenture for Unsecured Debt
Securities (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to Quarterly Report on Form l 0-Q for quarter ended
September 30, 2003) .

(r)

	

370-Day $100,000,000 Unsecured Credit Agreement, dated as ofMay 7, 2002, among Empire, UMB Bank,
N.A., as arranger and administrative agent, Bank ofAmerica, N.A., as syndication agent, and the lenders named
therein (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March
31, 2002, File No. 1-3368) .

(s)

	

First Amendment to $100,000,000 Unsecured Credit Agreement, dated as of April 17, 2003 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarter ended March 31, 2003, File No . 1-3368) .

(t)

	

Second Amendment to $100,000,000 Unsecured Credit Agreement, dated as of October 22, 2004
(u)

	

Rights Agreement dated as of April 27, 2000 between Empire and Mellon Investor Services LLC (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2000, File No . 1-3368) .

Exhibit
No.

	

Description

1996 Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Form S-8, File No. 33-64639).1
Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(d) to Annual Report on
Form l0-K for year ended December 31, 1990, File No . 1-3368) . )

(c)

	

The Empire District Electric Company Change in Control Severance Pay Plan and Forms of Agreement
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to Form l0-Q for quarter ended September 30, 1991, File No . 1-3368) .
t

(d)

	

Amendment to The Empire District Electric Company Change in Control Severance Pay Plan and revised Forms
of Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to Form 10-Q for quarter ended June 30, 1996, File No.
1-3368) . T

(e)

	

Form of Amendment to Severance Pay Agreement under The Empire District Electric Company Change in
Control Severance Pay Plan and Forms ofAgreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(e) to Annual
Report on Form l0-K for the year ended December 31, 2002, File No . 1-3368) f

(f)

	

The Empire District Electric Company Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan . (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(e) to Annual Report on Form 10-K for year ended December 31, 1994, File No . 1-3368) . t

(g)

	

Retirement Plan for Directors as amended August 1, 1998 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a) to Form
10-Q for quarter ended September 30, 1998, File No . 1-3368) . t

(h)

	

Stock Unit Plan for Directors (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit I0(b) to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
quarter ended September 30, 1998, File No . 1-3368) . t

(i)

	

First Amendment to Stock Unit Plan for Directors, dated as of January 1, 2002 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(a) to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2002, File No . 1-3368) . t

(1)

	

Summary of Annual Incentive Plan.*T
(k)

	

Form ofNotice ofAward ofDividend Equivalents .*t
(I)

	

Form ofNotice ofAward ofNon-Qualified Stock Options .* t

	

.
(m)

	

Form ofNotice ofAward ofPerformance-Based Restricted Stock.*t
(n)

	

Summary of Compensation of Non-Employee Directors.*t
(12)

	

Computation ofRatios of Earnings to Fixed Charges .*
(21)

	

Subsidiaries of Empire*
(23)

	

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP*
(24)

	

Powers ofAttorney.*
(31)(a)

	

Certification of ChiefExecutive Officer pursuant to Section 302 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*
(31)(b)

	

Certification of ChiefFinancial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*
(32)(a)

	

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U .S .C . Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2001*-

(32)(b)

	

Certification of ChiefFinancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S .C . Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906

(I 0)(a)
(b)
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t This exhibit is a compensatory plan or arrangement as contemplated by Item l5(a)(3) of Form 10-K.

* Filed herewith

ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of2002.*-

-

	

This certification accompanies this Report pursuant to Section 906 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not be
deemed filed by the Company for purposes of Section 18 or any other provision of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended .

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
Years endedDecember 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

83

SCAEDULEI1

Additions

	

Deductions from reserve

84

SIGNATURES

Page 83 of 85

NOTE A: This reserve is provided for workers' compensation, certain postemployment benefits and public liability damages .
At December 31, 2004, we carried insurance for workers' compensation claims in excess of $500,000 and for public liability
claims in excess of$500,000 . The injuries and damages reserve is included on the Balance Sheet in the section "Noncurrent
liabilities and deferred credits" in the category "Other" .
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Balance At
Beginning
of period

Charged
to income

Charged to Other

Description

Accounts

Amount Description Amount

Balance at
close of
period

Year Ended December 31, 2004
Reserve deducted from assets'. Recovery of
Accumulated provision for amounts previously Accounts
uncollectibleaccounts $ 718,336 $1,473,000 written off $ 918,796 written off $2,826,023 $ 284,109

Reserve not shown separately
in balance sheet: Property, plant &
Injuries and damages reserve (Note equipment and Claims and
A) $1,396,670 $ 770,126 clearing accounts $ 770,126 expenses $1,390,252 $1,546,670

Year ended December 31, 2003 :
Reserve deducted from assets : Recovery of
Accumulated provision for amounts previously Accounts
uncollecubleaccounts $ 678,727 $1,008,482 written oD' $1,592,930 written off $2,561,803 $ 718,336

Reserve not shown separately
in balance sheet property, plant &
Injuries and damages reserve (Note equipment and Claims and
A) $1,396,670 $ 598,091 clearing accounts $ 598,091 expenses $1,196,182 $1,396,670

Year ended December 31, 2002 :
Reserve deducted from assets : Recovery of
Accumulated provision for amounts previously Accounts
uncollectible accounts $ 894,707 $1,254,932 written off $ 915,156 written off $2,386,068 $ 678,727

Reserve not shown separately
in balance sheet : Property, plant &
Injuries and damages reserve (Note equipment and Claims and
A) $1,396,670 $ 527,971 clearing accounts $ 527,971 expenses . $1,055,942 $1,396,670
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY

Date : March 14, 2005

	

By /s/ WILLIAM L . GIPSON
W. L . Gipson, President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated .
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WILLIAM L. GIPSON March 4, 2005

William L . Gipson, President and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

GREGORY A. KNAPP March 4, 2005

Gregory A . Knapp, Vice President-Finance
(Principal Financial Officer)

DARRYL L. COIT March 4, 2005

Darryl L . Coit, Controller and Assistant
Treasurer and Assistant Secretary
(Principal Accounting Officer)

DR. JULIO S . LEON* March 4, 2005

Dr . Julio S . Leon, Director

MELVIN F . CIIUBB, JR.* March 4, 2005

Melvin F . Chubb, Jr ., Director

MYRON W. MCKINNEY* March 4, 2005

Myron W. McKinney, Director

ROSS C. HARTLEY* March 4, 2005

Ross C . Hartley, Director

D . RANDY LANEY* March 4, 2005

D. Randy Laney, Director

BILL D. HELTON* March 4, 2005

Bill D . Helton, Director

B . THOMAS MUELLER* March 4, 2005

B . Thomas Mueller, Director

ALLAN T.THOMS* March 4, 2005

Allan T. Thoms, Director
MARY McCLEARY POSNER* March 4, 2005



Mary McCleary Posner, Director

GREGORY A. KNAPP

*By (Gregory A. Knapp, As attorney in fact for each of the
persons indicated)
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EX-31 .A 12 d16510 ex31-a.htm

1, William L . Gipson, certify that :

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

1 . 1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K ofThe Empire District Electric Company ;

Page I of 2

EXHIBIT (31)(a)

2 . Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made,
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3 . Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results ofoperations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this annual report;

4 . The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(o and 15d-15(o) for the registrant and we have :

a)

	

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this annual report is being prepared ;

b)

	

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles ;

c)

	

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this annual
report our conclusions about the effectiveness ofthe disclosure controls and procedures as of the end ofthe period
covered by this annual report based on such evaluation; and

d)

	

disclosed in this annual report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5 . The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation ofinternal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent function) :

a)

	

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information ; and

b)

	

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 14, 2005

By: /s/ William L. Gipson
Name: William L. Gipson
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Title : President and Chief Executive Officer

Page 2 of 2
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EX-31 .B 13 d16510 ex31-b.htm

I, Gregory A. Knapp, certify that:

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TOSECTION 302 OFTHE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

1 . I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The Empire District Electric Company;

Page I of2

EXHIBIT (31)(h)

2 . Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement ofa material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made,
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3 . Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this annual report ;

4. The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(o and 15d-15(f))for the registrant and we have :

a)

	

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this annual report is being prepared;

b)

	

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles ;

c)

	

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this annual
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end ofthe period
covered by this annual report based on such evaluation ; and

d)

	

disclosed in this annual report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5 . The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent function) :

a)

	

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information ; and

b)

	

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant's internal control over financial reporting .

Date : March 14, 2005

By : (s/GregorY-AKnapp
Name: Gregory A. Knapp
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Title : Vice President-Finance and Chief Financial Officer
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EX-32.A 14 d16510 ex32-a.htm

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C . Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Ox1ey Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of The Empire District Electric Company (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the
period ending December 31, 2004 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof(the "Report'),
William L . Gipson, as Chief Executive Officer ofthe Company, certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C . Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements ofsection 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of
operations ofthe Company .

By /s/ William L. Gipson
Name: William L . Gipson
Title : President and ChiefExecutive Officer

Date : March 14, 2005

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 or other document authenticating, acknowledging or
otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this written statement required by
Section 906, has been provided to The Empire District Electric Company and will be retained by The Empire District Electric
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staffupon request .

Page 1 of 1

Exhibit (32)(a)
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EX-32.B 15 d16510 ex32-b.htm

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C . Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002*

In connection with the Annual Report of The Empire District Electric Company (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the
period ending December 31, 2004 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"),
Gregory A. Knapp, as Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C . Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that :

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements ofsection 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of
operations of the Company .

By /s/Greeory A. Knapp
Name: Gregory A. Knapp
Title : Vice President- Finance and Chief Financial Officer

Date : March 14, 2005

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 or other document authenticating, acknowledging or
otherwise adopting the signature that appears'in typed form within the electronic version ofthis written statement required by
Section 906, has been provided to The Empire District Electric Company and will be retained by The Empire District Electric
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request .
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Exhibit (32)(b)
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